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No. 1
Order of the Chief Justice of Ontario Appointing Arbitrators
In the Matter of an Arbitration

THE HONOURABLE Friday, the 2nd day
THE CHIEF JUSTICE OF ONTARIO } of November, 1934.

BETWEEN :

INTERNATIONAL RAILWAY COMPANY,
AND
THE NIAGARA PARKS COMMISSION,

WHEREAs, by failure to mutually agree, a difference exists between
International Railway Company, alleged successor in interest to The
Niagara Falls Park and River Railway Company, alleged successor in
interest to Edmund Boyd Osler, et al., and The Niagara Parks Commis-
sion, alleged successor to the Commissioners for the Queen Victoria
Niagara Falls Park, as to the compensation (if any) to be paid to Tnter-
national Railway Company under the terms of an agreement dated
December 4, 1891, between said Commissioners for the Queen Victoria
Niagara Falls Park and said Edmund Boyd Osler, et al., which agreement
was confirmed by Act of Parliament of the Provinee of Ontario, Chapter
96 of the Statutes of 55 Victoria, 1892, and

WHEREAs, pursuant to the terms of said agreement International
Railway Company has named and appointed Mr. R. S. Robertson, K.C.,
of Toronto, Canada, as arbitrator, and The Niagara Parks Commission
has named and appointed Mr. Gershom W. Mason, K.C., of Toronto,
Canada, as arbitrator;

Now, THEREFORE, pursuant to the terms of said agreement and the
powers vested in me by law, I hereby name and appoint the Honourahle
Robert Smith, formerly a Justice of the Supreme Court of Canada, as
third arbitrator.

W. MULOCK,
Chief Justice of Ontario.

No. 2
Award, With Schedules ‘“A,’” “B,’ «“C"

WHEREAS the Commissioners for The Queen Victoria Niagara Falls
Park entered into an agreement in writing, dated the 4th day of Decem-
ber, 1891, with Edmund Boyd Osler, Herbert Carlyle Hammond, William

In the Matter
of an
Arbditration
No. 1

Order
appointing
Arbitrators.
Nov. 2nd.,
1934,

No. 2.
Award,
29th May,
1935.
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In the Matter Hendrie and Richard Bladworth Angus relating to the construction and

(1)
Arbitration

No. 2.
Award,
29th May,
1935.

operation of an electric railway from the Village of Queenston in the
County of Lincoln to the Village of Chippawa in the County of Welland ;

AND WHEREAS by an Aect of the Legislature of the Provinee of On-
tario, assented to on the 14th day of April, 1892, 55 Victoria, Chapter

—continued 06, the said agreement was approved, ratified and confirmed and declared

to be valid and binding on the parties thereto;

AND WHEREAS International Railway Company has succeeded to the
right, title and interest of the said Edmund Boyd Osler, Herbert Carlyle
Hammond, William Hendrie and Richard Bladworth Angus;

AXD WHEREAS by an Act of the Legislature of the said Province, 17
George V, Chapter 24, the name of *The Commissioners for the Queen
Victoria Niagara Falls Park” was changed to “The Niagara Parks
Commission’’;

AND WHEREAS the said Agreement dated the 4th day of December,
1891, contained inter alia the following paragraphs:

¢16. The company may commence the construction of the said
railway whenever the location has been decided upon by the com-
missioners, and the plans and specifications approved in accordance
with Paragraph 3 of this agreement, and the right to operate the
same shall begin on the first day of September next, or so soon
(before or after that date) as the said railway or any section thereof
has been constructed and is ready for operation, and shall extend
to a period of forty years from the said first day of September, one
thousand eight hundred and ninety-two, and shall be renewable on
the request by the company for a further period of twenty years as
hereinafter provided.”

«96. If at the end of the said period of forty years, the com-
pany are unwilling to renew, or at the end of the further period of
twenty years, if the company continue to hold for such further
period, the company shall be duly compensated by the commissioners
for their railways, equipment, machinery and other works including
the low level railway, if the same shall have been constructed and
then held by the company under this agreement, as also the high
level railway from Chippawa to Queenston, and including also their
works in Chippawa and Queenston, but not in respect of any fran-
chises for holding or operating the same, such compensation to be
fixed bv mutual agreement, or in case of difference, by arbitration,
as in Paragraph 17 of this agreement, but the failure before the
expiration of any such term, to fix such compensation in the manner
aforesaid, or to pay before such expiration, the amount of compensa-
tion so fixed, shall not entitle the company to retain possession mean-
while of the said railways, equipment, machinery and works, hy this
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agreement to be constructed or operated, but the same shall never-
theless and notwithstanding that the commissioners may have taken
possession thereof remain subject to such liens and charges save as
to possession as aforesaid, as may exist in favor of bondholders or
debenture holders of the company and the company shall retain a
lien or charge thereon, save as to possession as aforesaid for the
compensation of their railway, equipment, machinery and works to
be agreed upon as aforesaid, or so to be awarded to them provided,
however, that all such liens and charges shall not exceed the amount
that may be agreed upon or may be awarded for such ecompensation
as aforesaid.”

“29. Subject always to the terms and provisions of this agree-
ment, and to the rights of the commissioners as the owners in fee
simple of the right of way in the park proper and on the chain
reserve, the said railways and their equipment and the other works
constructed or required under this agreement, shall upon such con-
struction or acquisition, as the case may be, be vested in and shall
be the property of the company who shall, subjeet as aforesaid, be
entitled to operate, manage and control the same during the period
or periods respectively above mentioned, it being however hereby
declared, understood and agreed, that at the end of the said first
or second periods, as the case may be, the whole of the company’s
said high level railway from Queenston to Chippawa, and the said
low level railway, if then held by the company under this agree-
ment, together with their equipment and the machinery and works
aforesaid, including the elevators or lifts acquired or built and
including also the works in Queenston and Chippawa shall become
the property of the commissioners, subject to the pavment of com-
pensation to be agreed upon or awarded as the case may be, and as
is hereinbefore provided for.”

AXD WHEREAS the railway referred to in the said agreement, dated
the 4th day of December, 1891, as the high level railway, was constructed
but the railway therein referred to as the low level railway was not con-
structed.

AND WHEREAS at the end of the period of forty vears referred to in
Paragraphs 16 and 26 of the said agreement, dated the 4th day of Decem-
ber, 1891, the International Railway Company was unwilling to renew.

AND WHEREAS the compensation to be paid by the Niagara Parks
Commission to International Railway Company under the terms of the
said agreement, dated the 4th day of December, 1891, was not fixed by
mutual agreement. .

AND WHEREAS Robert Spelman Robertson and Gershom William
Mason were appointed arbitrators by the International Railway and the
Niagara Parks Commission respectively.

In the Matter
of an
Arbitration
No. 2.

Award,
29th May,
1935.

—continyer]
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AND WHEREAS pursuant to the provisions of Paragraph 17 of the said
agreement dated the 4th day of December, 1891, the Chief Justice of the
Supreme Court of Ontario appointed The Honourable Robert Smith as
third arbitrator.

AND WHEREAS the said arbitrators duly took upon themselves the bur-
den of the arbitration as provided in the said agreement, dated the 4th
day of December, 1891, and the said Statute of the Legislature of the
Province of Ontario, 55 Victoria, Chapter 96, and have heard the evidence
adduced by and the argument on behalf of the parties as to the amount
of compensation payable to International Railway Company by the
Niagara Parks Commission.

NoW THEREFORE, we, the said The Honourable Robert Smith and Ger-
shom William Mason, being two of the above-named arbitrators (the
other of the said arbitrators not joining in this award although present
at the making thereof), do hereby make and publish our award in manner
following, that is to say:—

We fix, award, adjudge and determine the amount of the compensation
to be paid to International Railway Company to be the sum of One hun-
dred and seventy-nine thousand one hundred and four dollars ($179,104).

We have not included any sum for interest on the amount of the ecom-
pensation, being of opinion that this is a matter beyond our jurisdiction.

We have thought it advisable to set out in the reasons for our award
the amount of compensation which might be arrived at by applying the
method of valuation urged upon us on behalf of International Railway
Company and the amounts which, in our opinion, would be proper amounts
to be allowed in the event that it should be found that certain items for
which we bave made no allowance should have been included or that cer-
tain items for which we have made allowance should be allowed on some
other basis, or that certain items which we have included should not have
been so included.

We award, adjudge and determine that the Niagara Parks Commis-
sion do pay to International Railway Company its taxable costs of this
arbitration excluding therefrom such costs as have been the subject of
agreement between the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF we, the said The Honourable Robert Smith and
Gershom William Mason (being a majority of the said arbitrators) have
hereunto set our hands this 29th day of May, 1935.

(Signed) R. SMITH.
(Stgned) GERSHOM W. MASON.

SIGNED AND PUBLISHED the 29th day of May, 1935, by the said The
Honourable Robert Smith and Gershom William Mason (the above-
mentioned Robert Spelman Robertson being present at the time although
not joining in the award) in the presence of:

(S'l:gn@d) J. J. DATJE‘Y.
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5
“A”
Value of Property as of August 31, 1932
Land ... e $ 23,930.00
Grading . ...ttt 25,000.00
TieS e e e 1,300.00
Rails, ete. ... 12,395.00
Paving ... 3,271.00
Roadway tools ........ ... .. i 184.00
Crossings and signs ..., 400.00
Bridges ... 578.00
Highway bridge .......... .. . i 11,440.00
Ellis Street retaining wall ............ ... ... ... ... ... .. 1,944.00
Colt’s culvert ........ ... ... i 2,344.00
Whitty’s culvert ....... ... . .. 1,096.00
Bowman’s culvert .......... ... .. . ... 3,661.00
Smeaton’s culvert .......... ... ... . i 480.00
Queenston retaining wall .................. ... ... o 1,513.00
Small culverts and pipes .......... ... ... il 7,019.00
Signal system ..........c.coiiiii i 170.00
Telephone system .......... ... ... i 5.00
Poles and fixtures ........... . ... il 404.00
Distribution system ............. ... .. .o il 12,000.00
Rolling stoek ........ . . i 1,402.00
Bridge Street building .......... .. ... oo 1,500.00
Clifton ineline ....... ... .. i 18,288.00
Clifton machinery ............. .. .. .. ... il 6,000.00
Whirlpool ineline ............ .. ... . il 11,740.00
Whirlpoel shelter ......... ... .. ... ... . i 240.00
Power house ......... ... .. i e 25,000.00
Shop equipment ........... ... .. .. il 300.00
Furniture and fire equipment ........ .. ... .. ... .. .. . ... 200.00
Materials and supplies ........ .o 300.00
Power plant machinery ........... ... ... .. ..ol 5,000.00
$179,104.00
“B”
Statement of Reconstruction Cost as of September 1, 1932, and of
Depreciated Value on Basis of Reconstruction Less Depreciation.
Reconstruetion Depreciated
Cost. Value.
Land ......ovni $ 30,450.00 $ 30,450.00

Organization, engineering, legal expenses . .. 30,000.00
Correspondence and legal expenses ......... 17,500.00
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Payment Parks Commission .............. 17,500.00
Taxes during construetion ................ 750.00
Interest during construction .............. 62,405 .00
Engineering during construction .......... 50,000.00
Grading ...........c. i, 155,896 .00
Track ...... ..ot 346,788.00
Paving ... ... .. 3,675.00
Roadway tools ................. ... ... ... 306.00
Crossings and signs ..................c.... 3,723.00
Bridges numbers 1 to 7 ................... 50,124.00
Culverts and retaining walls .............. 28,184.00
Signal system ............. ... ... ... 723.00
Telephone system ........................ 2,400.00
Poles and fixtures ........................ 39,323.00
Distribution system ...................... 63,066 .00
Rolling stoek .............. ... ... ... 148,392.00
Clifton incline building ................... 24,537.00
Bridge Street building ................... 4,500.00
Whirlpool inecline building ................ 20,000.00
Whirlpool shelter ........................ 401.00
Power House, including wheel pit, tunnel,

etC. .. 152,310.00
Clifton inecline machinery ................. 10,000.00
Shop equipment .................. .. ..... 1,257.00
Furniture and fire equipment ........ .... 1,001.00
Power plant equipment ................ ... 148,793 .00
Materials and supplies .................... 680.00

144,437.00
155,896 . 00
156,251.00
3,271.00
184.00
1,867.00
33,085.00
18,057.00
600.00
1,440.00
12,010.00
2776000
84,616.00
18,288. 00
3,321.00
11,740.00
240.00

137.079.00
6,000.00
500.00
200.00
120,000.00
300.00

$1,414,684.00 $ 967,592.00

MEMORANDA

Land—We have not included parcels 121(a) and 121(b) of a total value

of $1,100.

Grading—We have omitted the Lewiston bridge line $2,885.
Track—We have not included Lewiston bridge line recon-

struction cost
and C.N.E. turnout reconstruction cost

a total of
Depreciated value - $6,400.00 (of both).

........................................

$ 13,295.00

900.00

$14,195.00

Bridges—We have included bridges numbers 1 to 7 inclusive on basis of
substituting concrete for masonry in abutments, reconstruction cost
$50,124.00 and depreciated value $33,085.00. If concrete were not

substituted the figures would be $67,112. and $50,971.

10

20

80

40



10

20

30

7

We have not included railway bridge 8. If it were included the re-
production cost of substructure would be $3,394, and of the superstructure
$16,460.—in all $19,850. while the depreciated values would be $3,055. and
$11,522. respectively or $14,577. in all.

We have not included highwayv bridge 8(a), the reproduction cost of
substructure would be $8,234. and for superstructure $6.933. in all $15,167.
while the depreciated values would be $6,587. and $4,853. respectively in
all $11,440,

Poles and fixtures—We have deducted the Lewiston bridge line which
makes a difference of $580. in reproduction eost and $180. in depreci-
ated value.

Distribution system—We have deducted the Lewiston bridge line, making
a difference in reconstruction costs of $934. and in depreciated value
of $415.

Power House—We have taken concrete as substituted for a portion of
the masonry, chiefly the masonry below grade. If the substitution
were not permissible the amount to be added for reconstruction cost
would be $26,715. and the amount to be added to the depreciated value
$24,044.

Intake—We have not included the intake. If it were included the re-
production cost would be $43,325. and the depreciated value $22,862.

We have included in grading the Macklem Street loop valued by the
Park at $172. and by the Railway at $428. The grading on the land of
the Niagara Power Company at Chippawa valued by the Park at $240.
and by the Railway at $570.

The fill in the ravines known as Colt’s and Whittv’s and Bowman’s
valued by the Park at $68,412. on which we have placed a value of $85,937.

The land subject to the Hydro easement at Queenston on which the
Park has placed a value of $25. and the Railway at $£126.

The lands sold to the Hydro Eleetric Power Commission at Queenston
over which the railway runs valued by the Park at $391. and by the Rail-
way at $866.

We have included in the track figures the Macklem loop valued by
the Park at $3,767. and by the Railway at $4,864. the depreciated value
being fixed by the Park at $1,205. and by the Railway at $3,259. The
track on the Canadian Niagara Power Company’s land at Chippawa
valued by the Park at $3,435. and by the Railway at $4.440., the depreci-
ated value being fixed by the Park at $1,099. and by the Railway at
$2,975. The table rock loop valued by the Park at $1,668. and by the

40 Railway at $3,335., the depreciated value being fixed by the Park at $534.
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and by the Railway at $2,234. The track on the land subject to the Hydro
casement at Queenston valued by the Park at $5,100. and by the Rallwav
at $6,180., the depreciated values being put by the Park at $1,632. and by
the Rallwav at $4,141. and the track on the land conveyed to the Hydro
Electric Power Commission at Queenston valued by the Park at $5,312.
and by the Railwayv at $6,535., the depreciated value being placed by the
Park at $1,700. and by the Railway at $4,378.

We have included in the power and line equipment the Macklem
Street loop valued by the Park at $427. and by the Railway at $563., the
depreciated value being put by the Park at $124.00 and by the Rallwav
at $360. The equipment on the lands of the Canadian Niagara Power
Jommission at Chippawa valued by the Park at $403. and by the Railway
at $499. the depreciated value being $117. and $319. respectively. The
equipment on the land subject to the Hydro easement at Queenston valued
by the Park at $323. and by the Railway at $433., the depreciated value
heing $94. and $277. respectively and the equipment on the Hydro land
at Queenston valued by the Park at $322. and by the Rallwav at $433.,
the depreciated value being $93.00 and $277. respectively.

Note. With regard to all of the above, except the substitution of
concrete for masonry, the figures exclude depreciation from obsolescence.

“C”
Railway Land Following the Order in Exhibit 7.

Value if acquired for

railway purposes as of Value as of

Land. August 31, 1932. August 31, 1932.
Parcel D-106 ....................... $ 5,940.00 $ 4,000.00
B-106 ...... ... ..o 2,475.00 2,000.00
A(1)-106 ... 5,000.00 5,000.00
E&F-106 ....................... 2,640.00 1,100.00
C&D-107T ... ... .. ... ... 1,325.00 600.00
A)-107T ..o 520.00 220.00
A&B-109 ... 5,000.00 4,840.00
111 1,200.00 1,200.00
112 . 588.00 588.00
113 . 737.00 737.00
115 .o 200.00 120.00
116 ..o 450.00 350.00

118—Not property of railway.

120(a) ... 900.00 450.00
120 (e) ..ot o 500.00 500.00
122 (a),(b) ....... ... 1,275.00 1,275.00
124 ... 450.00 450.00
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125 ... 1,250.00 500.00
$30,450.00 $23,930.00

121 (a) Disallowed as not being within terms of agreement
450.00 450.00
121 (b)) ... 650.00 650.00

Disallowed as not being within terms of agreement.

No. 3
Reasons for Award of Majority Arbitrators

THis arbitration arises under the terms of an agrecment made the
4th day of December, 1891, between the commissioners for the Queen
Victoria Niagara Falls Park acting therein on their own behalf as well
as on behalf and with the approval of the Government of the Province
of Ontario described as ‘‘Commissioners’” and Edmund Boyd Osler and
others, described as the ‘‘Company.”’

The agreement recited that the Company desired to construet and
operate an electric railway along the west bank of the Niagara River
from Queenston to Chippawa, described as the High IL.evel Railway and
that the Company desired to acquire the rights of way to construet the
railway through and in Queen Victoria Niagara Falls Park, which was
the property of the Commissioners, and through and over other lands
of the Commissioners and other lands held or contracted for by the
Commissioners. It was recited that the Company intended to apply to
the Ontario Legislature for a charter enabling them to construet and
operate the railway, the new company to assume the liabilities and en-
gagements of the contracting company and the personal liabilities of
Mr. Osler and his associates also to cease when the liabilities and engage-
ments of the Company had been assumed by the new company, with
certain exceptions which are not now material.

The Commissioners licensed the Company to construct an electric
railway with single or double track as might later be agreed upon in
and through the park and on or over other lands of the Commissioners
to a point in or near Queenston and the Commissioners agreed to supply
the right of way therefor. The Company agreed to construct and operate
the railway and extend the same to Chippawa Creek but provided that
the Company should not be compelled to operate the railway between
December 1 and March 1 in each year except between the Grand Trunk
Railway in Niagara Falls and the upper Islands within the park. The
plans and specifications governing the construetion were to be approved
of by the Commissioners and by the Commissioner of Public Works for
the Province and the location of the railway in the park proper and on
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that part of the property of the Commissioners known as the Chain
Reserve extending from the north boundary of the park to the north
boundary of Niagara Falls was to be as the Commissioners might decide.
The Company agreed to pay to the Commissioners $10,000.00 for the
right of way over the Chain Reserve and the benefit of contracts already
entered into between the Commissioners and various land owners.

Paragraph 11 of the agreement provided that the Company should
have the right to construct and operate incline railways and elevators
at such points north of Niagara Falls Ferry as might be approved of by
the Commissioners and that it should have the right to aequire and
operate such incline railways and lifts together with machinery and
works connected therewith.

Paragraph 13 provided that the Commissioners should not grant to
or confer on any other company or person any right to construct or
operate the railway within the park limits or to construct or operate
lifts or inecline railways in the areas therein designated.

Paragraph 14 provided that the Commissioners would assent to an
arrangement being made between the Company and the Municipality of
Niagara Falls for the supply to the Company of power for working the
railway and the machinery necessary to operate and light it and that if
satisfactory arrangements could not be made the Commissioners would
grant to the Company such necessary rights as would enable it to procure
from the waters above the Falls the power required for these purposes.
This was later amended to read that the Commissioners would grant
such rights as would enable the Company to procure from the waters
ahove the Falls the power required for the purposes of any railway
company which purchased the franchises of the Company.

Paragraph 16 provided that the right to operate the railway should
extend to a period of 40 years from September 1, 1892, and should be
renewable for a further period of 20 vears. The Company did not
exercise the right to renew.

Paragraph 19 provided that the Company should pay to the Com-
missioners an annual sum of $10,000.00 by way of rental for each vear
during the 40-vear period.

Paragraphs 26 and 29 are particularly important as affecting the
present arbitration and are as follows:

26, If at the end of the said period of forty years, the company
are unwilling to renew, or at the end of the further period of twenty
vears, if the company continue to hold for such further period, the
company shall be duly compensated by the ecommissioners for their
railways, equipment, machinery and other works including the low
level railway, if the same shall have been constructed and then heid
by the company under this agreement, as also the high level railway
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from Chippawa to Queenston, and including also their works in
Chippawa and Queenston, but not in respect of any franchises for
holding or operating the same, such compensation to be fixed by
mutual agreement, or in case of difference, by arbitration as in Para-
graph 17 of this agreement, but the failure before the expiration of
any such term. to fix such compensation in manner aforesaid, or
to pay before such expiration, the amount of compensation so fixed,
shall not entitle the company to retain possession meanwhile of the
said railways, equipment, machineryv and works, by this agreement
to be constructed or operated, but the same shall nevertheless and
notwithstanding that the commissioners may have taken possession
thereof remain subject to such liens and charges save as to posses-
sion as aforesaid, as may exist in favor of bondholders or debenture
holders of the company, and the company shall retain a lien or
charge thereon, save as to possession as aforesaid for the compensa-
tion of their railway, equipment, machinery and works to be agreed
upon as aforesaid, or so to be awarded to them provided, however,
that all such liens and charges shall not exceed the amount that may
be agreed upon or may be awarded for such compensation as afore-
said.”

¢29. Subject always to the terms and provisions of this agree-
ment, and to the rights of the commissioners as the owners in fee
simple of the right of way in the park proper and on the chain
reserve, the said railways and their equipment and the other works
constructed or required under this agreement, shall upon such con-
struction or acquisition, as the case may be, be vested in and shall
be the property of the company who shall, subject as aforesaid, be
entitled to operate, manage and control the same during the period
or periods respectively abeve mentioned, it being however hereby
declared, understood and agreed, that at the end of the said first
or second periods, as the case may he, the whole. of the company’s
said high level railway from Queenston to Chippawa, and the said
low level railway, if then held by the company under this agree-
ment, together with their equipment and the machinery and works
aforesaid, including the elevators or lifts acquired or built and
including also the works in Queenston and Chippawa shall become
the property of the commissioners, subject to the payment of com-
pensation to be agreed upon or awarded as the case may be, and as
is hereinbefore provided for.”

This agreement was confirmed and declared to be valid and binding
on the parties by Chapter 96, 55 Vie. (Ontario). This Statute con-
stituted the persons forming the company a body corporate by the name
“The Niagara Falls Park and River Railway Company’’ and gave the
Company power to construct and operate the railway in accordance with
the terms provided by the agreement,
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Subsection 9 of Section 4 gave the Company the power to acquire
the right to convey electricity required for the working and lighting of
the railway over, through or under lands other than the right of way,
as well as the right of way, and to lay conduits under or erect poles and
wires on or over such lands as might be determined by the Company
and further provided that electricity so conveyved should not be used for
any other purpose than the purposes set out in the section. This was
subsequently amended te provide that electricity so conveved should
not be used for any other purpose than the purposes of any railway
company which should purchase the franchises of the Company.

Paragraph 8 of the agreement provided that the capital stock of
the Company should be $1,000,000.00 to be divided into shares of £100.00
each.

Paragraphs 18 and 21 are particularly important and are as follows:

““18. The directors of the said company shall have power to
issue bonds of the company for the purpose of raising money for
proseeuting the said undertaking, the whole amount of the issue
of such bonds not to exceed in all the sum of $45,000. for each mile
of the said railway and the actual cash value of the wharves, piers,
docks, steamers, vessels and other water craft, inecline railways,
elevators and hotels of the company and the equipment thereof
respectively, but such bonds shall be limited as a charge so as not
to interfere with the terms of Section 26 of the agreement, and
the amount of compensation under Section 26 for the railway, its
equipment, machinery and works between Queenston and Chippawa
shall not include the value of hotels, vessels, steamboats, nor the
value of any other equipment or work than such as may be inci-
dental to the use of electric power, nor any excess of the value of
the class of work prescribed by the plans and specifications which
shall have been approved by the Commissioner of Public Works,
nor stocks in navigating companies, or in companies building or
operating elevators or incline railways, nor the cost or value of
elevators or inelined railway, except the elevators or inclined rail-
ways expressly authorized to be built or acquired under the agree-
ment, nor of any other works not expressly and specifically pro-
vided for by the said agreement set forth in the schedule hereto.’”

¢21. Before proceeding with the construction of the said
railways, plans and maps showing the location thereof, with pro-
file, cross sections and specifications, and determining and including
the width of right of way where not already expressly provided
and specified in the agreement shall be submitted to and approved
by the Commissioner of Public Works; and the said company shall
also submit in detail, to the Commissioner of Public Works plans
and drawings of the carriages or coaches proposed to be used for
passenger traffic, for his approval, and the same shall be approved
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of by him before the said carriages or coaches shall be used upon
the said railways, and before proceeding with any changes or ex-
pansions in the plans and specifications affecting the system of the
renewal of the construction of the said railways and the building
of the said carriages or coaches such changes, expansions or re-
newals shall be subject from time to time to the inspection, direction
and approval of the Commissioner of Public Works, on such terms
as he may require of the company, and copies of all such railways,
plans, with cross-sections and specifications shall be deposited in
the Department of Public Works for Ontario.”

Both the agreement and the Statute made reference to a low level
railway to be erected as near to the edge of the waters of the river as
circumstances would permit but this railway was not construeted and
the provisions relating to it are of no importance in this arbitration.

The railway was constructed and operated for some yvears by the
Niagara Falls Park and River Railway Company. By Chapter 54 of
63-64 Vie. (Canada) the Buffalo Railway Company, a company in-
corporated under the laws of the State of New York, was invested with
the powers necessary to carry on certain undertakings therein set out
and to purchase the entire assets, undertaking, name, franchise and
goodwill of the Niagara Falls Park and River Railway Company and
by Chapter 86 of 1 Edward VII (Ontario) the Niagara Falls Park and
River Railway Company was authorized to sell its assets, undertaking,
ete. to the Buffalo Railway Company and the latter Company was
authorized to purchase the same. The sale and purchase were carried
out accordingly.

By Chapter 12, 2 Edward VII (Ontario) and Chapter 43, 2 Ed-
ward VII (Canada) the name ‘‘International Railway Company’’ was
substituted for the name ¢ Buffalo Railway Company’ wherever the
same appeared in Chapter 86, 1 Edward VII (Ontario).

The International Railway Company thus became the successor
of the Niagara Falls Park and River Railway Company within the
meaning of the agreement of December 4, 1891, which provided that the
expression ‘‘The Company’’ should include not only the Company to be
incorporated but its successors and assigns.

Paragraph 26 of the agreement of December 4, 1891, provided that
if at the end of the period of 40 years the Company were unwilling to
renew, it should be duly compensated by the Commissioners for its
railways, equipment, machinery and other works, including the high
level railway from Chippawa to Queenston and including also its works
from Chippawa to Queenston but not in respect of any franchises for
holding or operating the same, such compensation to be determined as
therein set out.
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Paragraph 29 provided that at the end of the period the whole of
the Company’s high level railway from Queenston to Chippawa, to-
gether with its equipment and the machinery and works aforesaid in-
cluding also the works in Queenston and Chippawa, should become the
property of the Commissioners, subject to the payment of compensa-
tion. The Company was unwilling to renew and so notified the Com-
missioners by a letter from its president to the Commission, dated July
27, 1931. Subsequently, and at the expiry of the 40-year period which
had commenced on September 1, 1892, the Company’s railway and other
property as described in Paragraphs 26 and 29 of the agreement of De-
cember 4, 1891, became the property of the Commissioners, subject to
the payment of compensation. The Railway continued to operate for
the first eleven days of September of 1932 but this was under an ar-
rangement made by the Railway Company and the Commissioners with-
out prejudice to their rights.

On the 1st day of Scptember, 1932, the property of the Railway
Company which became vested in the Commission consisted not only of
the railway structure including ballast, rails, ties, track equipment, poles,
cross-arms, feeders, trolley wires and the other appurtenances of an
electric railway, but also of a number of buildings, a number of parcels
of real estate, chattel property of various kinds ordinarily used in con-
nection with an electric railway, power house equipment used in the
furnishing of electric power for the operation of the railway, an inecline
railway situate near the whirlpool and an incline railway known as
the Clifton Incline Railway; the latter incline railway included, and
the whirlpool railway excluded, the machinery necessary for its oper-
ation.

Questions have arisen before us as to whether or not certain items
included in the Railway Company’s claim come within the provisions
of the agreement and these questions will have to be discussed later,
but the important question at the threshold of our inquiry is to de-
termine the method by which the ‘‘just compensation’ provided for by
the agreement is to be determined, and as to this the parties are at
great variance.

The Company contends that the only proper method of arriving
at the compensation is to ascertain the cost of reconstruction of the
railway, as of the date of its being vested in the Commission, then to
ascertain the amount of deterioration from the new condition as the
railway actually existed in its physical state and to fix the amount of
the difference as the just compensation. The Commission contends that
the railway has operated at a very heavy loss for a long period; that
the passenger traffic on which the railway depended has greatly de-
creased, that the railway is no longer the best means of transportation
for visitors wishing to see the beauties of the Park, that the dayvs of the
railway are over and that the only means of arriving at its worth is
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to sell its component parts at the best price possible, it being impossible
to sell the railway as a whole for the purpose of operation.

In support of the method of reproduction less depreciation, counsel
for the railway has referred us to the following cases:

The Kirkleatham Local Board and the Stockton and Middle-
brough Water Board, 1893, 1 Q.B.D., 375 and 1893 A.C., 444,

Edinburgh Street Tramway Company vs Edinburgh Corpor-
ation, 1894, A.C., 456;

re-London and London, 1894, A.C., 489;

London vs London, 1898, A.C., 375;

Lucas vs Chesterfield, 1909 1 K.B., 16;

Hamilton vs Hamilton, 1910 A.C., 300;

Melbourne vs Tramways Board, 1919 A.C., 667;
Oldham vs Ashton, 1921 1 K.B,, 269 and 1921 3 K.B,, 511;
Peterborough vs Peterborough, 52 O.L.R., 9;

City of Toronto vs Toronto Railway, 1925, A.C., 177;
Berlin vs Berlin and W. Railway, 42, S.C.R., 581

and furnished the arbitrators with copies of the award made by the
arbitrators in the Toronto Street Railway Arbitration from which the
appeal was subsequently taken which is reported in 1925 A.C., 177, and
the award in National Telephone Company, Limited vs His Majesty’s
Post Master General, reported in 29 T.L.R., 190.

Mr. Slaght for the Commission discussed these cases and certain
cases tried in the United States and referred to in volume 1 of the 2nd
ldition of Whitten on Valuation of Public Service Corporations (1928)
at pages 384, 489 to 492 inclusive, 508, 526 to 528 inclusive, and has also
furnished the Board with a copy of the award made by the arbitrators
appointed to fix the value of the shares of the Grand Trunk Railway
Company. None of the English cases or of the Canadian cases cited
is the same kind of case as the case before the Board.

In the Kirkleatham case the Water Board were empowered by
statute to take over the pipes and plant of the local board for the pur-
pose of improving the water supply in outlying districts, and exercised
that right. The amount to be paid was to be determined by arbitra-
tion. The Water Board contended that the basis of calculation should
be the value of mains, pipes, ete.. as planned in situ capable of earning
profit which they arrived at by taking the cost of laying them down
and making good the ground and deducting an amount for depreciation.
The Joint Board contended that the amount to be fixed was the value,
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not so measured, but measured by the revenue which that board was able
to earn by means of them. The arbitrators adopted the latter basis
and capitalized the net revenues for a period of seven years making
certain deductions. This basis was held to be wrong in all the sub-
sequent appeals. Lord Justice Lindley at page 384 of the judgment in
the Court of Appeal held that the arbitrator was wrong because he in-
cluded in his estimate of price compensation for the loss of the right
to supply water, which to his mind was contrary to the Aet. He pointed
out that the matter was not to be dealt with as an ordinary matter be-
tween vendor and purchaser because it was a case where there was only
cne person who could buy. Lord Justice Bowen pointed out at page
385 that the key to the section was that it did not provide compensation
to the sellers but merely empowered them to obtain a price for some-
thing to be sold. The Legislature had said that the sellers were to re-
ceive a price as distinet from compensation. ILord Herschell adopted the
same view in the House of Lords and said that what the Joint Board
really claimed was not the price of the mains, ete., but such price
coupled with certain statutory rights. The effect of the judgment,
therefore, was that these rights were not included in what was sold
and were not to be compensated for. The method of fixing a price
by capitalizing the revenues was not proper because the relevant section
of the Statute in question provided that the Board should when so re-
quired by the sanitary authorities sell to such sanitary authorities the
mains, etc. The Board acquiring the mains was compelling the other
Board to sell. The mains, cte. in situ were capable of earning a profit
and the taking Board was acquiring them for continued operation.

The ground stated for rejecting value based on capitalization of
revenue was that revenue or earnings ceased to be available to the sellers
as their further right to earn was cut off and value based on rights that
the sellers were not entitled to transfer to the purchasers was not an
element of value to the sellers and they were not entitled to compensa-
tion for that right.

The Edinburgh case was decided under a section of the English
Tramways Act which provides that where the promoters of a tramway
in any district are not the local authority, the local authority may with-
in six months after the expiration of 21 years from the time when the
promoters were empowered to construct the tramway, require the pro-
moters to sell to them their undertaking upon the terms of paying ‘‘the
then value (exclusive of any allowance for past or future profits of the
undertaking, or any compensation for compulsory sale, or other consid-
eration whatsoever) of the tramway and all lands, buildings, works, ete.,
of the promoters suitable to and used by them for the purpose of their
undertaking.”’

The real point at issue was again the question as to whether or not
the price should include the value of the powers given the promoters.
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Lord Herschell said that the word ‘‘tramway’’ as used in the section was
used to describe the structure laid down on highways and nothing more.
He pointed out that the local authority, that is the purchasers, became
entitled to the tramway by reason of the Statute and that this right was
not eonferred by the Company which constructed the tramway, that is.
the sellers. Lord Watson, to the same effect, excludes the value of the
franchise because the Act does not include it. The sellers had no further
right to the earnings and these therefore could not be an element in fix-
ing value to the sellers.

It is to be observed that the governing section in the Tramways Act
fixed the amount to be paid at the then value of the tramway, etc., ex-
clusive of every other consideration.

The London vs London case, 1894 A.C., 489, is very similar to the
Edinburgh case and adds nothing to it.

London vs London, 1898 A.C., 375, deals with a motion in the House
of Lords to reverse the judgment in the Edinburgh case, which was re-
fused, firstly, because the House of Lords held that they had no power
to reverse their own judgment and secondly, because they believed the
Judgment to be right.

The Lucas vs Chesterfield case deals with compensation for the com-
pulsory taking of land. It is well settled that in such cases the owner
is to be compensated for the loss to him by reason of the taking. The
case before the Board is not such a taking and if the value to the owner
were to be the basis of fixing compensation, many factors would have
to be taken into account other than the principle of ascertaining value
by applying the reproduction less depreciation basis.

In the Hamilton case the point at issue was onee more the question
of whether or not the Gas Company had the statutory right to supply
gas and to transfer that right to the Town of Hamilton as purchasers.
The Privy Council held that it had and that the Town was the assignee
of these rights and must pay their value in the price to be fixed. This
resulted entirely from the proper construction to be placed on the words
of the Statute. I.ord Shaw in delivering the judgment and in stating
its effect on the fixing of value, proceeds as follows, at page 311:

““One limit to the profit-earning power of the undertaking does
appear in the Act, namely, that its profits could never be declared
at more than 15 per cent; any balance that might, so to speak, be
earned over that figure was by anticipation drawn off for the ben-
efit of the community in relief of the price of gas. Below that figure
and down to nil or a loss—all these considerations going to its value—
were elements for the arbitrator in ascertaining the price to be paid
under s. 46, sub-s.l.”’

In the National Telephone case the Post Master General had the
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right to take over the plant, land, ete., of National Telephone Company,
Limited and entered into an agreement with the Telephone Company in
which it was provided that the value as of a fixed date of all the plant,
land, etc., purchased should be the then value (exclusive of any allow-
ance for past or future profits of the undertaking or any compensation
for compulsory sale or other consideration whatever) of such plant,
land, etc., having regard to its suitability for the purposes of the Post
Master General’s telephonic service. It will be observed that the lan-
guage adopted in the Telephone Company agreement was the same lan-
guage as appears in the Tramways Act and that every consideration was
excluded except the value of the plant, ete., baving regard to its suit-
ability for the purposes of the Post Master General’s telephonic service.
The use of these words indicated an intention on the part of the parties
to that agreement to adopt the method of valuation followed in the
Edinburgh case with the addition that suitability for the purposes of
the taker would have to be considered. Apparently the National Tele-
phone Company was highly successful and the Post Master General was
anxious to acquire the property for the purpose of cxpanding and sup-
plementing the telephone service already given by the Post Master
Gieneral.

The Melbourne case differs from all the others. In that case the
Tramways Company was a lessee of the tramways and owner of the
rolling stock and plant. The Act besides vesting the tramways in the
Tramway Board and providing that compensation should be determined
by arbitration, the arbitrators to determine the value of the subject
matter in accordance with the specifie provisions of the Act and so far
as necessary the provisions of the Lands Compensation Aet, also pro-
vided that no allowance was to be made for compulsory purchase and
that the arbitrator should have authority to determine the matters sub-
mitted to him to the end that the award might effect a final and equitable
settlement. The arbitrator fixed the compensation in respect of many
of the assets, including rolling stock, but considered them as things in situ
capable of earning profit and this in many cases, in his view, necessitated
tixing values by reference to structural cost with a proper deduction for
depreciation.

Lord Dunedin points out at page 674 of the judgment, in the Judicial
Committee, that the Legislature had intervened in the interests of the
public and that the Act must be construed in the light of the provisions
of the statute, that there should be no interruption of traffic and that the
authority of the arbitrator should extend to the determining by him of
the matters referred to him to the end that his award might effect a
final and equitable settlement. He thought that the method adopted
by the arbitrator was within his power and that within reason he was
master of the situation. He goes on to say: *Their Lordships recognize

that this is a special case arising on the provisions of a statute specially
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cxpressed and they are not in the slightest degree criticising or quali-
fying the series of decisions of which in re-Lucas and Chesterfield Gas
and Water Board (1909) 1 K.B. 16; Cedars Rapids vs Lacoste, 1914 A.C.
269, and Ruddy vs Toronto Eastern Ry. Co. 1917, W.N. 34, (decided
by this Board) may be taken as examples.”” It is to be observed that
the arbitrator considered the plant as capable of earning a profit and
that he pointed out that this was a consideration in fixing the valuation
as he did.

Oldham vs Ashton was a case of compulsory taking by a local
authority under Section 43 of the English Tramways Act of 1870 and
the Edinburgh case was followed in determining the then value of the
tramways. It does not add anything to the determination of the case
now under consideration.

Peterborough vs Peterborough—The City of Peterborough expro-
priated the property of an electric light and power company under the
provisions of a special Act of the Ontario Legislature. One of the sec-
tions of the Act provided that in determining the compensation to be
paid nothing should be taken into account or allowed for prospective
profits or loss of profits and the taking was a compulsory taking. The
compensation was to be assessed on the basis that certain considerations
such as profits or loss of profits should not be taken into aceount and it
was pointed out in the Court of Appeal that there existed the clearest
provision for continuation of the enterprise as it was never contem-
plated that a period of darkness should settle upon the city. The cor-
poration was bound to supply power and light to the Company’s cus-
tomers under existing contracts. It was held that the corporation was
to take the property off the Company’s hands as a workable property of
value to the corporation as such. Mr. Justice Masten said that the
intention of the Legislature was that the undertaking was to be valued
as at the moment it was taken over at which moment it was a going con-
cern and was to be valued as such and not as scrap, but that any estimate
founded on revenue or profit was excluded, and he held that the arhi-
trators were bound to value the plant, not as a profit earning concern
but as a concern ready for operation in situ.

In the Toronto Railway case the rights of the parties arose under
a contract between the Railway Company and the City of Toronto by
which it was provided that at the termination of the contraect the City
might take over the property at a value to be determined by arbitra-
tion. The agreement further provided that in determining such value
the rights and privileges granted by the agreement and the revenues,
profits and dividends being or likely to be derived from the enterprise
were not to be considered but the arbitrators were to consider onlv the
actual value of the actual tangible property, etc., connected with and
necessary for the operation of the railway, such value to be only the
value of the property to the City at the time of the arbitration hhving
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regard to the requirements of a railway of the best kind in system then
in operation and applicable to the City. It is apparent, therefore, that
the agreement was very different from the agreement between the parties
to the present arbitration. The judgment in the House of Lords is the
last important case dealing with some of the questions which have been
argued and it may be important to observe the language as to repro-
duction cost less depreciation occurring in the reasons for judgment of
Viscount Cave. At page 191 he says that no doubt the arbitrators took
reproduction cost less depreciation as affording a serviceable guide in
valuing the track, rolling stock and building in which they were fully
justified by the authorities cited but that the arbitrators were careful
to make it clear that they had not adopted reproduction cost less de-
preciation as the only and safe test of value. They had allowed not
only for wear and tear but for obsolescence and had regard also to
comparative utility and other relevant considerations.

In the Berlin case, the Ontario Street Railway Act provided that
no municipal council should grant to a street railway company any
privilege for a longer period than 20 years and that at the expiration of
a franchise so granted it might on giving notice assume the ownership
of the railway and of real and personal property in connection with
the working thereof on payment of the value of the same. It was held
in the Supreme Court of Canada that the proper mode of estimating
the value was by estimating what the property taken over was worth
as a railway in use and capable of being operated. Apparently the
railway was a successful enterprise and the Railway Company contend-
ed that the proper method of estimating the value was to capitalize
its revenue. This contention, however, was held to be erroneous be-
cause the franchise of the company was at an end and ‘‘without a priv-
ilege to operate the railway system the franchise would not be revenue
producing.”

The Grand Trunk arbitration was for the purpose of determining
the value, if any, of certain stock of the Grand Trunk Railway Company
of Canada. The majority of the arbitrators refused to consider the
reproduction cost as they considered that the correet prineciple upon
which the valuation had to be made was the earnings of the Company.
It does not follow, however, that the same considerations which would
be of value in determining the value of the stock of a corporation would
be useful in deciding the question before the present Board.

The American cases cited by counsel for the Railway, while not
binding upon the Board, touch more closely the question we are con-
sidering than do the English and Ontario cases above mentioned. These
cases are set out quite fully in Whitten on Valuation of Publie Service
Corporations, 2nd Edition, 1928. Pages 384 and 385, Volume 1, in re
City of Bureka, 19 Cal. R.C.R. 952. There, a commission was appoint-
ed for the purpose of fixing just compensation for local street railway
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lines which the city proposed to acquire. The California railroad com-
mission in fixing the compensation said that if the property had been
able to earn its operating expenses plus a fair return, or if there were
reasonable prospects of sueh condition being brought about in the
future the fair value would not be less than iis reproduction cost less
depreciation plus a reasonable development cost, but that the evidence
established that for at least ten years the company lad carried on and
operated at a loss and that there was no reasonable prospect of the
company making even reasonable expenses plus taxes and depreciation
in the future. In that case, however, the Commission found that a fair
value was considerably more than the mere serap value because the
Commission could see no reason why under competent ownership and
operation the railway system should not earn all its expenses and prove
a valuable asset. The railway would be relieved from the payment of
taxes, street paving costs and certain overhead expenses. The Com-
mission thought that there was no possibility at the time of the hearing
of a substitute for the railwav that would furnish equally satisfactory
service at equal cost and that it would be more economical for the City
to acquire the existing property at a reasonable price and later re-
habilitate the system, while a plant which it would build itself would
cost at least $300,000.00. It was found on the evidence that if the City
did not buy the property the more economical step for the Company was
to discontinue operation and salvage the scrap. Apparently the City
had the right to take the property from the electric railway company
by virtue of some statutory provision.

In re City of Oroville, P.U.R. 1922, 451, the City asked the Cali-
fornia Railroad Commission to fix the just compensation to be paid for
the electric system and gas properties of a company operating in the
City and in the adjacent territory. The Commission held that the
amount of the just compensation was affected by the fact that the
property was engaged in a losing business and earning not even all its
expenses for operation and that a finding of just compensation re-
quired the consideration of all factors affecting value relations whether
they tended towards a higher or a lower price. They stated that in a
case of this kind measures of value such as reproduction cost or histor-
ical cost or reasonable investment failed completely. The Commission
held, however, that they should also consider that it must be assumed
that if the City desired to acquire the plant it did so because it con-
sidered the property of value to the City as it wished to supply its in-
habitants with the utility whether the operation was carried on at a
profit or at a loss. To do this the City would have to build a new plant
or acquire the existing plant by paying just compensation and, there-
fore, the property was of value because the cost to the City of a new
plant would certainly be greater than the value of the present plant
plus the cost of placing it in first class operating condition. They
pointed out that the City would be able to eliminate certain expenses,
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such as taxes, and that the value to the City was an element of value to

be considered but that the value of the property to the-City hore no
relation to the estimate of cost of reproduction less depreciation and
that such measure of value did not apply either in the case of the
value to the Company or of the value to the City.

The quotation from the judgment of the Privy Council in the
Hamilton case set out above seems to be precisely in point and the
principle there laid down is in accord with what was said in the Ameri-
can cases cited in Whitten. Lord Shaw, in this quotation, expressly
holds that, whether there are earnings or no earnings or a loss is an
clement to be taken into consideration in fixing value and Mr. Justice
Rowlatt in Oldbam vs Ashton is of opinion that it is the only element
to be considered, except where it is excluded by statute or agreement.
At page 276 he says, ‘“ When one comes to examine carefully the powers
which the section describes, one is met with great difficulty in under-
standing it because when one is discussing the value of a commercial
undertaking the element of value is its profits, and there is none other.
To seek to find a value without looking into profits is like seeking to
build a house without materials. If one disregards the profits the value
seems to be the scrap value.”

The difficulty he found resulted from the provisions of the statute
which exeluded from consideration the element of profits. This ex-
clusion of profits resulted in the establishment of the rule laid down in
the Kirkleatham and Edinburgh and other cases. Had it not been for
the provision in the statute excluding profits from consideration Mr.
Justice Rowlatt, apparently, would bhave considered profits as the real
and only element to be considered in fixing the value and was no doubt
cguided to that view by what was laid down in the Hamilton case as
above quoted. In the Edinburgh, London, Oldham, Telephone, Peter-
borough and Toronto cases, rents or profits are expressly excluded from
consideration as clements to be considered in fixing the value by the
terms of the statutes and agreements relating to the works in questlon
In the Kirkleatham and Berlin cases there were similar exclusions as
a result of the construction placed on the statutes and agreements. We
are of opinion, therefore, that these cases have no application to the
questions involved in this arbltratlon because hy the terms of the agree-
ment here, consideration of profits is not excluded as an element in fixing
the value. It is also argued on behalf of the Parks Commission that
these cases dealt with the taking over of works that the takers were
desirous of aequiring for use and operation by them and which had a
value to them for that purpose, while the rallwav here in question is
one which the Parks Commission does not wish to operate and which
at the time it was handed over was useless to them and of no value as
a railway.

The Company, however, had a right to turn it over at the end of
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the 40 years and the Commission was obliged to take it over and to pay
the compensation by the terms of the contract which they voluntarily
entered into and their wishes at the end of the period are not an element
to be considered. During the last 11 years of operation down to the
time of handing over the railway to the Commission the earnings each
vear with one exception fell short of paying operating expenses. In
the one year, J925, the ecarnings exceeded the operating expeuses by
only $2,535.93. fDuring the last 13 years of operation the annual loss,
after allowing #pr depreciation and after paying 5 per cent. interest on
the $600,000.00 boud issue, ranges from $25,980.42 in 1921 to $112,303.72
in 1931 which was the last full vear of operation and for the last 8
months the loss was $78,350.34. These facts appear from Exhihit No.
68. The evidence establishes beyond question that there was no pros-
pect of any change in this condition for the future. The railway, there-
fore, at the time that it was handed over to the Parks Commission was
of no value for operation as a railway to the Railway Company or the
Parks Commission or to anyone else.

We have, therefore, concluded that the compensation to be paid by
the Parks Commission to the Railway Company for its railway, equip-
ment, machinery and other works is not to be arrived at on the basis
of reproduction cost less depreciation but by applying various consider-
ations to various component parts of the property of the Railway Com-
pany in an endeavor to arrive at the full value to be attached to each.
With respeet to such items as track, distribution system, machinery and
rolling stock, the value is the amount that could be realized from the
disposal thereof. With respect to the incline railways which the Com-
mission continued to operate after August 31, 1932, we have taken into
consideration the reproduction cost less depreeiation, their earning power
and other circumstances affecting their value. With respect to items
such as paving, retaining walls and culverts, we have regarded them
as adding value to the property of the Commission and have allowed
for them on the basis of reconstruction cost less depreciation. As to
certain other items, including the power house building and a portion
of the grading, we have regarded them as adding value to the property
of the Commission and have allowed what we think is their full value
on this basis. With respect to the lands. we have allowed what we con-
sider to have been the full value thereof as of the 31st day of August,
1932, but not on a reconstruction basis.

Applying all these various considerations to the property in respect
of which compensation is to be allowed, we have arrived at the amount
set out in our award.

We do not accept the argument that the Railway Company and the
Commission were engaged in a joint venture or that the railwayv should
be compensated for the service which it rendered to the Park during the
vears of its operation. It must be assumed that the parties entered into
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a business agreement and that if it had been intended that compensa-
tion should be awarded on such a basis language to that effect would have
been found in the agreement. Neither of the parties knew what the
future would bring forth. The Railway Company had the right to
retire from the operation of the railway at the expiration of the 40-year
period should it sec fit to do so. The Commission was clearly not
desirous of acquiring the railway and had no intention of operating it
after September 1, 1932. In reaching our conclusion we have not been
unmindful of the fact that the operations of the railway after 1929 were
conducted in a period when its earnings would be seriously and increas-
ingly affected by the general depression prevalent throughout North
America but a perusal of the evidence, including the statement prepared
by Mr. Schmunk, the Railway Company’s Auditor, shows clearly that
there was a marked decline in the earnings of the Company in the prosper-
ous years preceding the depression. We are satisfied by the uncontradict-
ed evidence of several witnesses of knowledge and experience that owing
to the advent of the automobile, its growing use and, as a result, an ever
extending system of good highways, and the later development of motor
buses, the mode of transportation offered by the railway was effectively
superseded to the extent that it could not serve a sufficient number of
people to make it possible to operate the railway without great loss.

It was argued that the Railway Company served as a great feeder
to the Park’s revenue but there is no evidence on which it might be
found that any benefit the revenue of the Park might obtain from the
continued operation of the railway would make up the huge loss that
such operation would entail. Indeed it is apparent from the exhibits
that the public visiting the Park were coming largely by other means of
transportation. For instance, the figures filed showing the receipts of the
whirlpool ineline railway and the Clifton incline railway show that while
the number of passengers carried by the railway had greatly diminished
up to the end of 1929, that year was the peak year of the revenues ob-
tained from the incline railways.

In the California cases above mentioned the Commission was able
to find an intermediate value because the City taking over the utility
could obtain certain economies in operating costs and found it necessary
to have the railway in order to provide the service for the public which
would otherwise be lacking. Had they not been able to acquire the utili-
ties there in question they would have had to construct anew. We do
not see how we can apply these considerations to the present ecase
because the only expenses the Commission could avoid in operating the
railway would be comparatively trivial in amount and on the evidence
we could not find that the operation of the railway was essential to be
carried on by the Commission and the agreement imposed ne obligation
to carry it on.

In addition to the cases cited above we would refer to Milnes vs.
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Tery, 14 Ves. 400 at 407 and to Irwin vs. Campbell 51, S.C.R., 358 at
Page 372 where Anglin, J. refers to the principles applicable to a valua-
tion between a tenant and his landlord who is taking over the tenant’s
building at the expiry of a lease.

proper basis on which the compensation should be fixed. } The Railway
Company directed practically all its evidence to the compe®sation proper
to be fixed on the bhasis of reconstruction less depreciation. The Parks
Commission, while also submitting evidence as to compensation on that
basis, contended from the outset that compensation on the basis of the
cost of reconstruction less depreciation was wholly inapplicable to the
present case because the railway when turned over had no value as such
to either the Railway Company or the Parks Commission, its sole value,
according to this contention, being the value that could be realized from
the disposal of its component parts.

The contention between the parties turns upon the qLestion of the

Having concluded that the proper basis of fixing the compensation
is not by ascertaining the reconstruction cost of the railway in 1932 as
a whole less depreciation, we think it is a question of law as to whether
or not this conclusion is right and we have thought it advisable, in order
to prevent unnecessary expense to the parties, to fix the amount of the
reconstruction cost and the depreciated value, should it later be deter-
mind that that basis should have been adopted. We find that the reeon-
struction cost of the railway as of August 31, 1932, on the basis urged
on behalf of the Railway Company is the sum of $1,414,684 and that
the depreciated value therecof as of the said date was $967,592.00.

It was, however, contended on behalf of the Railway Company that
to the above amounts there should be added certain items which we dis-
allowed and which are as follows:—

Reconstruction Depreciated

Land Cost Value
Parcels 121 (a)
121 (b) ..o $ 1,100.00 $ 1,100.00

[tems relating to the Lewiston bridge line.... 17,694.00 9,375.00
Items relating to the C.N.E. turnout in the City

of Niagara Falls ......................... 900.00 405.00
Bridges Nos. 1 to 7, additional amount if

concrete not substituted for masonry ...... 16,988.00 17,886.00
Railway bridge No. 8,

Substructure ...........oii . 3,394.00 3,055.00

Superstructure ........... ...l 16,460.00 11,522.00

Highway bridge No. 8 (a),
Substructure .............. ... ..o 8,234.00 6,587.00
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Superstrueture ............. ... ... ... 6,933.00 4.853.00
Power House if concrete not substituted for cer-

tain portions of masonry ................. 26,715.00 24,044.00
Intake ........ ... . . . . .. 43,325.00 22.862.00

We disallowed the cost of the items relating to the Lewiston bridge
line and the C.N.E. turnout because we considered them not to be part
of the railway to be taken over by the Parks Commission.

We disallowed the cost of the enlarged and lengthened intake and
of the two bridges over it because that work was done under an agree-
ment between the Canadian Niagara Power Company and the Railway
Company without the approval of the Commissioner of Public Works
as required by the agreement, which work entailed the expenditure in
reference to these items set out above.

Counsel for the Parks Commission urged that we should find that
the railway as a whole was obsolete.

Much of the machinery and equipment was old and, therefore, not
up to the standard of modern design but was capable, with proper main-
tenance of performing the functions for which it was designed.

In arriving at our opinion as to reconstruction and depreciated
values we have made proper allowance for the age and obsolete type of
the machinery and equipment. The railway as a whole when turned over
to the Parks Commission was capable with proper maintenance of per-
forming its functions as an operating railway and up to that time was
in fact performing these functions. It was obsolete as a whole in the
sense that by reason of the changed conditions already referred to it
became incapable of earning the cost of operating it and competing
satisfactorily with other modes of transportation.

In arriving at the depreciated value of $967,592.00 we have not had
regard to any claim for obsolescence of the railway as a whole.

Application was made at the opening of the proceedings for leave
to call .a greater number of witnesses giving opinion evidence than the
number preseribed by statute, and this was allowed.

R. SMITH
GERSHOM W. MASON.

No. 4
Reasons of Dissenting Arbitrator

As T am unable to concur in the Award of the majority of the
Arbitrators, it is proper that I should make some statement of my
reasons for dissent.
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The governing Agreement was made on 4th December, 1891,
between The Park Commissioners and certain individuals, the predeces-
sors in title and interest of the International Railway Company, who
are referred to in the Agreement as the Company. This Agreement
provided that the Company should construet, equip and operate a first-
class electric railway with sufficient sidings and equipment to meet the
development of traffic; the railway to be constructed in part upon lands
provided by the Park Commissioners and in part on lands to be
acquired by the Railway Company. The Agreement provided, in Para-
graph 29, that at the end of the pcriod of forty vears from the First day
of September, 1892, (subject to certain rights of renewal which were
not exercised) the whole of the Company’s railway with equipment,
machinery and works should become the property of the Park Commis-
sioners, and, in Paragraph 26, that the Company should be duly compen-
sated by the Park Commissioners for their ‘‘railway, equipment, machin-
ery and other works,”” but not in respect of any franchises for holding or
operating the same. The duty of the Arbitrators is to determine the
amount of the compensation.

The majority of the Arbitrators have determined that the basis
upon which compensation should be fixed is the basis commonly krown
as ‘“‘scrap value.”” This means that the railway with its equipment,
machinery and other works is to be considered not as a railway at all,
but as a collection of unrelated parcels of land and chattels which are
to be sold off so far as possible to any available buyers. It is of the very
essence of this method of fixing compensation that all consideration of
the property as a railway shall be excluded. Any other conceivable use
of the several properties may be regarded, but one must not regard them
as a railway.

I have not seen the Reasons for the Award, which T understand are
in preparation by the other Arbitrators, but I am aware of the details
making up the amount of their Award and a reference to some of the
items will illustrate the particular method adopted by them in arriving
at their Award. There are lands which the Railway Company acquired
for its right of way, consisting mainly of long narrow strips lying
between the Park Commissioners’ boulevard drive and the river. This
land is not valued as the right of way for a railway, but is valued
merely at the prices that might be obtained for it if it were divided into
parcels and sold as vacant land to any available purchasers. The rails
and their fastenings are valued not as an essential part of a railway,
but as waste material to be removed from their location and sold as
scrap metal. Not only is no allowance made for the cost of labor in
laying the rails, but a deduction is made from the price of the scrap
metal for the cost of labor in tearing them up and transporting them
to market. The ties, worth over $30,000 for their present use, are valued
at $1,300 for firewood No allowance whatever is made for the ballast
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on which the ties and rails are laid, not because it is not serviceable as
ballast where it is, but because it cannot he sold as something else. A
telephone system some miles in length used in the operation of the rail-
way is valued at $5.00, that being the amount which might be obtained
by the sale of some small piece of its equipment. The cables carrying
the electric current and the trolley wires and other overhead work are
put in at the amount they would realize if sold as waste material. The
poles which carried the wires are in the main given no value whatsoever,
hut some of the wooden poles are considered as likely to sell for some-
thing. The power plant equipment, the present depreciated value of
which for the purpose for which it has been in use, is put by the expert
witness called by the Park Commissioners at $119,000, is put in at
$5,000 on the assumption that the power plant will all be removed, and
that a buyer may be found for some small part of it.

The foregoing are illustrations of the application of the basis of
compensation which bas been adopted in the Award. In my opinion, it
is in direet conflict with the provisions of the Agreement. The railway
may be a good railway or it may be a poor railway, it may be worth
much or little, but it is a railway and it is only as a railway that we are
to consider it. Amny other basis of valuation is outside the scope of this
arbitration. The Railway Company could not ‘‘serap’’ the railway and
sell off the salvaged materials. Under the terms of the agreement the
Railway Company was bound to maintain and operate the railway until
the moment when it vested in the Park Commissioners. We are referred
to numerous reported decisions in Great Britain and in Canada dealing
with the valuation of public utilities under a variety of circumstances.
In none of these cases was the so-called ‘‘scrap value’’ basis approved
although it was not infrequently put forward. Tt has been referred to
as being, in a measure, confisecation.

The undertaking provided for in the Agreement of December, 1891,
was in the nature of a joint venture from which each party expected cer-
tain benefits, and in which each of them assumed definite obligations.
So far as the Park Commissioners were concerned the railway was part
of a larger scheme of development. The Commissioners needed more
revenue and hoped to get it by establishing at various points along the
railway, restaurants and other places where visitors would be likely to
spend money. The Railway would bring the people who would become
the Commissioners’ customers. The Commissioners invested a great deal
of money in these various enterprises and, as expected, the revenue from
them became substantial. The continued operation of the railway was
vital to these other ventures of the Commissioners and they accordingly
stipulated that the Company should operate the railwayv during the term
agreed upon and that the railway should vest in the Commissioners at
the end of the term—original or renewed. As this bound the Company
to maintain and operate the railway for 40 years, whether it was profit-
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able or not, it was important that the Company should be assured that
at the end of that period it would be paid for the railway on turning it
over to the Commissioners. The title of the Company to the railway was
alwayvs subject to the terms of the agreement (see Paragraph 29) so
that it was never the absolute owner and the Commissioners had from
the first a real title in the nature of a revisionary interest in the railway.
These co-relative rights, therefore, on the part of the Commissioners to
the continued maintenance and operation of the railway and then to its
ownership, and on the part of the Company to receive compensation for
the railway as a railway constructed and maintained by it under the
agreement, have their origin in the agreement of 1901 and are to be
understood and to be enforced as the parties then intended. The later
fortunes of the venture do not impair nor alter the rights and obligations
of either party.

This is not a case where it is alleged that the Railway Company has
by reason of failure to perform the agreement on its part become dis-
entitled to the benefit of it. The Railway Company agreed to construct
the railway and to operate it for 40 vears, and to turn over to the Park
Commissioners on First September, 1932, a railway i situ and in
operating condition. This agreement it fully performed. Even if it had
not, the Arbitrators could do nothing about it. That would be a matter
for the Courts to deal with.

Neither is this a case where the Park Commissioners say that owing
to what has happened or to changed conditions since the agreement,
without fault in either party, the agreement cannot be performed and
should be deemed to be at an end—in other words that the doctrine of
“frustration’’ applies. That also would have to be dealt with by the
Courts if it were raised, and is foreign to this arbitration. Further,
the Park Commissioners have in fact taken over the railway, and the
agreement is fully performed except the payment of compensation.

The main ground upon which Counsel for the Park Commissioners
placed his claim for the adoption of ‘‘scrap value’ as the basis of com-
pensation was what he termed the ‘‘general obsolescence’” of the railway.
It is very necessary to understand exactly what he meant by ‘‘general
obsolescence’’ of the railway. It has nothing whatever to do with the
age or condition of the railway and its equipment, or with their fitness
for service. The claim is that electric railways in general have gone
out of use as carriers and that the motor bus and private motor ears
have replaced them. Then it is said that if this is not true of eleetrie
railways in general, it is true of interurban electric railways, and in
any event that it is true of this particular electrie railway.

Even if the evidence established what is asserted, it does not seem
to me that the Park Commissioners can make anv use of it. This is
one of the chances they themselves took when they bargained for the
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railway in 1891. They have got the railway they bargained for. Their
revisionary interest in it has matured into full ownership. Further, I
think the conduct of the Park Commissioners ought to prevent them
from saying that the railway is obsolete. Obolescence does not come on
suddenly. The Company at great cost maintained and operated the
railway until the very end of the 40 year period. For the whole of that
period the Park Commissioners collected their $10,000 per vear and
enjoved the benefits of the traffic brought by the railway. They never
suggested that the railway was of no use and that the Company had
better cease operating it and save its money. On the contrary the railway
was regarded in every way as the railway contemplated by the agreement.
In fact the Park Commissioners proposed to the Company a discussion
of terms for the renewal of the franchise for another 20 years. When
this did not interest the Company, the Commissioners publicly adver-
tised for tenders for the future operation of the railway. It would be
a strange thing if, having accepted to the very end the benefit of the
Company’s heavy expenditure in the maintenance and operation of the
railway in addition to the yearly rent, and having treated the railway
always as a useful railway, the Commissioners could be heard to say
that it should not be considered as a railway when fixing the amount they
should pay for it.

As to the fact of obsolescence:— In my opinion the evidence falls
far short of cstablishing any of the things that were termed general

obsolescence. There is no evidence that electric railways generally have-

goue out of use. It is, of course, common knowledge that electric rail-
ways, and steam railways as well, have had a bad time in recent years.
A great many of them are not making any money. No doubt the motor
bus and motor cars generally are important factors in the situation. But
neither Mr. Wilson, the Commissioners’ chief witness on this matter,
nor any other witness would say that the motor bus and motor car have
solved the transportation problem. They have merely created it. There
are still many electric railways in operation and the public seem to
demand them and their cheap fares and suitability for handling large
numbers in a short time.

Then as to the class of electric railways termed ‘‘interurban’’: It
is said that they especially have suffered from the competition of the
motor bus. One would have thought that the term ‘‘interurban’’ would
not be applied by anyone to this railway. But it was gravely put for-
ward that this is an interurban railway because Queenston, a small
hamlet, is at one end of it and Chippawa, a small town, is at the other
end. Perhaps it is sufficient to refer to PParagraph 2 of the Agreement
of 4th December, 1891. It indicates what the parties themselves thought
of the importance to the railway of these two ‘‘urban’’ communities.

This railway was built to serve a speeial locality. Its passengers
are mainly tourists who come to see Niagara Falls and the upper and
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lower rapids. They come chiefly in the summer and in great numbers
on holidays and at week-ends. What is the evidence that this particular
railway has become obsolete? Of course, no one claims that it has been
profitable to the Railway Company. It has paid, I think, only one
dividend in 40 years. But it is not claimed that failure to make money
for its shareholders is sufficient to establish obsolescence. The railway
may still be a useful railway, serving a public need, and, with their other
enterprises, even profitable to the Park Commissioners. The Commis-
sioners, as their reports show, from the beginning counted upon the
railway to substantially inercase their revenues quite apart from the
annual rental of $10,000 paid directly by the Company. The revenues
of the Commission from their places of entertainment have been large
and depend directly upon the number of casual customers brought to
them. The Commissioners made no effort to show to what extent their
revenues are to be attributed to the railway, or whether it would be
profitable to their operations as a whole if they operated the railway,
even if they had to take care of some loss in its operation. On the con-
trary, Counsel for the Commissioners made strenuous objection to the
introduction of evidence to show what their revenues had been and to
what extent they had fallen off since the railway ceased operating. The
Commissioners have, therefore, left us without any evidenee upon which
it can be said that even when looked at strictly as a financial venture, the
operation of the railway will not be profitable to the Commission.

The evidence clearly establishes that there is still a demand by the
public for the service of the railway. In 1929, the last season before the
depression, which has caused a great falling off in travel, the gross
revenue of the Railway Company was greater than in any of the first
25 vears of its existence, save 1901, when there was a grecat Fxhibition
at the neighboring City of Buffalo—see Exhibit 68. Unfortunately, the
cost of operation also increased. The fact remains that until the depres-
sion set in the public made great use of the railway and it continued
to perform the important purpose of bringing people in large numbers
to the Park.

There is no evidence that any other method of transportation has dis-
placed this railway. The Park Commissioners have that matter peculiarly
within their own control. They can prohibit the use by motor buses
of the roads through the Park and in fact they did so while the railway
was operated. The evidence is cxceedingly meagre as to bus service since.
There is a bus line, but what service it gives and to what extent it is
used we do not know. There is no evidence to show that there is any
bus service available to take care of a summer holiday crowd. The
situation upon such an occasion would seem to be one for which the rail-
way is especially useful. In any event the evidence falls far short of
proving that the railway has lost its usefulness as a carrier of passengers.

An alternative valuation was madc as appears by the Award, upon
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the basis commonly known as ‘‘re-construction cost less depreciation.”
The method followed was substantially that adopted in the Award in the
Toronto Railway case and approved by the Privy Couneil in 1925, A, C.
177. Full allowance was made uot only for depreciation but for every
other element proper for consideration. A long line of cases has approved
this as a correct method of valwing a public utility where the value of
the franchise is excluded from consideration.

The amount mentioned in the Award should be increased, however,
from $967,592, to $1,069,652 by adding the following items:—

(a) For the spur to the Lewiston Bridge and the spur to connect
with the Canadian National Railway $11,051.00. Paragraph 2 of the
agreement required the Company to construct sufficient sidings and
equipments to meet the development of traffic. The evidence is that a
large volume of traffic came from the Lewiston Bridge connection.

(b) For the intake at the Power House $22,862.00. A plant for
the development of hydro-electric power would ecertainly require an
intake. The objection is made that the present intake which was sub-
stituted thirty yecars ago for the original intake was not approved by
the Commissioner of Public Works. I think the finding of fact should
he that it was so approved. The approval was not required to be in
writing, and there was no evidence that it was not approved. Annual
reports were made by the Park Commissioners for the information of
the Legislature and contained references to the building of the new
intake. No objection was ever made to it and it is inconeceivable that
the Commissioner of Public Works did not know of its existence. The
fact that no plan or letter with the Commissioner’s approval is pro-
duced is not of any great significance. No great care seems to have
been taken of the plans in use for the numerous purposes of the Park
and Railway, and from the way in which they turned up from time to
time during the course of the arbitration and the variety of places from
which they came, one would hardly know when he had exhausted all
sources of inquiry. Private individuals, such as Mr. Bunnell and Mr.
Frid, seem to have been able to get possession of plans in the custody of
the Government and of the Park Commission and while no one would
suggest that they would not take proper care of them it still indicates a
Joose method in the care of plans that should be found in the Government
office.

(¢) For two bridges at the intake—$26,017, divided as follows:
For the Railway bridge ....................... $11,440.
For the Highway bridge .................... ... $14,577.

(d) For the amount deducted from the present value of the Power
House building on the assumption that concrete is substituted
for stone in foundations ............. ... . .. o L. $24,244.
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(e) For the amount deducted from the present value of certain
bridges on the assumption that concrete is substituted for
stone in the substructures ............ .. ... .. ... ... ... ..., $17,886.

I do not think there is any warrant for these deductions. The work
is done in stone in accordance with plans duly approved. The evidence
does not establish that in the places where this stone is used conerete
would have been acceptable. In the case of the power-house the question
of durability is important especially when there is direct exposure to
water and ice. In the case of the bridges the stone may well have been
used on account of its better appearance. It is noticeable that the Park
Commissioners have used and are still using stone in structures where
concrete could be used but where a good appearance is desired.

For these reasons and with every respect to the opinion of the
majority of the Board of Arbitrators I think the amount awarded should
be $1,069,652.

(Sgd.) R. S. ROBERTSON.

No. 5

Notice of Appeal

TAkE NorticE that a motion will be made on behalf of International
Railway Company, the appellants herein, to the Court of Appeal for
Ontario, on Monday, the 16th day of September, 1935, at the hour of eleven
o’clock in the forenoon, or so soon thereafter as an application can be
heard, by way of appeal from the Award of the majority arbitrators
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herein, (made in pursuance of the terms of the provisions of the agree- 1935

ment between the above-mentioned parties, dated the 4th day of December,
1891, and confirmed by the Act of the Legislature of Ontario, being Chap-
ter 96 of 55 Victoria, 1892), dated the 29th day of May, 1935, and filed
and served on the 19th day of June, 1935, upon the following amongst
other grounds:

1. That the majority arbitrators erred in law and in fact in the
method or methods adopted in arriving at the compensation to be paid
by the Niagara Parks Commission to the International Railway Company
under the terms of the agreement, dated the 4th day of December, 1891,
and ratified by Act of Parliament, being Chapter 96 of 55 Vietoria
(Ontario) 1892, according to the Reasons for Award delivered by the
majority arbitrators,

2. That the majority arbitrators in determining the method by which
they should fix the compensation due from the Niagara Parks Commission
to the International Railway Company, proceeded upon an erroneous basis
and declined to follow a long line of cases both in England and in the
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Courts of this country, in which the method of determining the principle
of compensation was fully discussed and settled, and improperly followed
cases cited in the Courts of the United States of America, which, the
appellants submit, are in no way applicable.

3. That the reasons given by the majority arbitrators for arriving
at their Award are indefinite and inconclusive, nor do they state the
amount which they have allowed in respect of the different items referred
to in their reasons, and the appellants have no opportunity of knowing
how the total amount is arrived at.

4, 'That the majority arbitrators failed to give effect to the over-
riding provisions of the agreement of the 4th day of December, 1891, as
confirmed by the Statute under which the appellant Company undertook
to construet a railway and maintain it and operate it for forty years, upon
receiving due compensation for so doing.

5. That the majority arbitrators in coming to their conclusions were
apparently influenced by utterly irrelevant matters, such as the number
of passengers carried, the expenses of operating and the fact that the
appellant Company were operating at a loss, there being no understanding
or undertaking given on the part of the appellant Company that the
venture would be a sucecessful one from an operating standpoint, although
they were required under their contract to operate the same for forty
vears, which they did, and to pay to the Commissioners a clear annual
sum of ten thousand dollars by way of rental for each and every year until
the termination of said period or term of forty years, which they paid.

6. The methods adopted by the majority arbitrators in reaching their
Award are inconsistent with the terms of the agreement or the Act con-
firming the same, or the facts appearing in the evidence on the hearing
before the Board, nor are they in aceordance with the well recognized
principles of law in determining the ecompensation to be paid in matters
of this kind.

7. The majority arbitrators in determining the amount due the
appellant Company have failed to give effect to facts proved in the
evidence on behalf of the appellants in support of their claim and the
amount awarded is improper and insufficient to properly compensate the
appellants in accordance with the terms of the agreement and the evidence
adduced before the Board.

AND FURTHER TAKE NOTICE that at the hearing of this appeal the appel-
lants will ask that the majority arbitrators be requested to state the
amounts awarded under the different methods and principles adopted by
them in awarding compensation for the different items for which com-
pensation was to be paid.

AND FURTHER TAKE NOTICE that upon and in support of this applica-
tion will be read the agreement of the 4th day of December, 1891, the Act
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of Parliament, being Chapter 96, 55 Victoria, 1892, the Award of the
majority arbitrators, the Reasons for Award of the majority arbitrators,
the Reasons for Dissent from Award of R. S. Robertson, K.C., the minor-
ity arbitrator, the evidence taken at the hearing before the Board of
Arbitrators and the exhibits filed, and such further and other material as
counsel may advise.

DateD at Toronto this 28th day of June, 1935.
D. L. McCARTHY,

Counsel for the Appellants,

International Railway Company.
To:

THE NTAGARA PARKS COMMISSION:
AND TO:

A. G. SLAGHT, ESQ., K.C,,
their counsel.

No. 6

Reasons for Judgment of the Court of Appeal for Ontario on Motion to
Set Aside the Award

Mvurock, C.J.0., MasTEN, MIppLETON, FISHER AND HENDERSON, JJ.A.

Argued on the 28th, 29th, 30th and 31st days of October, and on the
1st, 4th and 5th days of November, 1935.
JUDGMENT OF MASTEN, J.A.:

This is an appeal to this Court from an award of arbitrators dated
29th May, 1935, fixing the amount of the ecompensation payable by the
respondents to the appellants in respect to its railways, equipment,
machinery and other works.

The award was made and this appeal is brought in pursuance of the
provisions of an agreement between the respondents and the predecessors
in title of the appellants dated the 4th day of December, 1891, which was
confirmed by an Aect of the Legislature of Ontario, being Chapter 96 of
55 Viet. (1892).

The award fixes the compensation to be paid at the sum of $179,104.
The sum so awarded is ascertained on the footing that the railway has no
value as an operating railway and that the only compensation payable by
the respondents is the value of its various component parts taken separ-
ately and not as a railway; in other words, what is commonly called serap.

In their reasons for the award the majority arbitrators state that
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In the Court they disallowed for the various reasons assigned by them the following
items claimed by the appellants:
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Reconstruction Depreciated

Land Cost Value
1. Parcels 121(a)
121(b) ..oeiiii $ 1100.00 $ 1,100.00 (1)

2. Items relating to the Lewiston

Bridge line ...................... 17,694.00 9,375.00 (2)
3. Items relating to C.N.E. turnout in

the City of Niagara Falls ......... 900.00 405.00 (3)
4, Bridges Nos. 1 to 7, additional

amount if concrete not substituted

for masonry ............. ... ... 16,988.00 17,886.00 (4)
5. Railway bridge No. 8, Substructure 3,394.00 3,055.00 (5)
6. Superstructure ................... 16,460.00 11,522.00 (6)
7. Highway Bridge No. 8 (a) sub-

strueture ........ ... ... ..ol 8,234.00 6,587.00 (7)
8. Superstructure ................... 6,933.00 4,853.00 (8)
9. Power House if concrete not sub-

stituted for certain portions of

INASONLY ..ot vevaeevnnnnennnnnens 26,715.00 24,044.00 (9)
10. Intake .......coviiiiiiniinaennnn 43,325.00 22,862.00(10)

The majority arbitrators also include in their reasons the following
paragraph:

“Having concluded that the proper basis of fixing the compen-
sation is not by ascertaining the reconstruction cost of the railway
in 1932 as a whole less depreciation, we think it is a question of law
as to whether or not this conclusion is right and we have thought it
advisable, in order to prevent unnecessary expense to the parties, to
fix the amount of the reconstruction cost and the depreciated value,
should it later be determined that that basis should have been adopted.
We find that the reconstruction cost of the railway as of August 31,
1932, on the basis urged on behalf of the Railway Company is the
sum of $1,414,684. and that the depreciated value thereof as of the
said date was $967,592.00.”

The contention of the appellant is first (and principally) that

compensation ought to be computed and measured by ascertaining the
cost of reconstruction at the date of taking over and deducting there-
from a proper sum for depreciation and obsolescence; second, that
the several items above mentioned which were for various reasons dis-
allowed by the majority arbitrators ought to have been allowed by
them.

The respondents did not serve any notice of ‘cross-appeal within

the time allowed for appealing, but during the hearing of this appeal
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they applied to the Court to extend the time for appealing and for leave
to cross-appeal in respect of the five items mentioned below which were
allowed by the majority arhitrators.

In support of their application they allege that umtil particulars of
the items making up the sum of $179.104 was furnished by the arbi-
trators at the request of the Court they were unaware of how that
sum was reached, and also that they were under a misconception as to
their right to cross-appeal without serving formal notice.

With some hesitation I am of opinion that the leave asked should
be granted as all relevant evidence is before the Court and the appel-
lant ecompany cannot be prejudiced.

The cross-appeal is against the following items allowed by the
award and is supported on the grounds stated below:

¢1—The sum of $25,000.00 for grading.
2—The sum of $3,271.00 for paving.
3—The sum of $18,057 for culverts.
4—The sum of $25,000 for Power House.

5—The taxable costs of the -arbitration which the Respondent
was directed to pay to the Railway Company.”

“(1) That the learned majority Arbitrators erred in law and in
fact in the basis and principle adopted in arriving at the compensation
allowed with respect to the above numbered one to five items accord-
ing to the Reasons for Award and the itemized statements delivered
and filed by such majority Arbitrators.

““(2) That there was no evidence to warrant the amounts and
findings included in the first four items above indicated.

““(3) That it was not open for the said majority Arbitrators under
the Agreement and Statute to allow the Railway any sums whatever
because the assets for which such allowances were made were regarded
as adding value to the property of the Commission.

‘“(4) With regard to the allowance of costs comprised in item No.
5 above, the submission to arbitration by the parties herein did not
include any power or authority on the part of the Arbitrators to award
costs, and such award was outside and beyond the jurisdiction of the
Arbitrators.”

The subject matter in respect of which compensation is sought is
an Electric Railway twenty-two miles long extending along the west
bank of the Niagara River from the Village of Chippawa at the south
to the Village of Queenston at the north, including the equipment,
machinery and other works of the Railway. It is located on lands
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owned by the respondent Commissioners who granted to the prede-
cessors in title of the appellant Company an exclusive franchise which
terminated at midnight on August 31st, 1932, as provided by the
agreement of the 4th December, 1891,

That agreement stipulates that on the determination of the fran-
chise ‘‘The Company shall be duly compensated for their railways
¢quipment, machinery and other works.”

The relevant provisions of the statute and of the agreement are
very fully set forth in the reasons for their award prepared by the
majority arbitrators but for the purpose of the present judgment it
appears sufficient to quote clause one of the statute and clauses twenty-
six and twenty-nine of the agreement.

Clause one of the Statute:—

““The agreement between the Commissioner for the Queen
Victoria Niagara Falls Park and the said Edmund Boyd Osler,
Herbert Carlyle Hammond, William Hendrie and Richard Blad-
worth Angus, dated the fourth day of December, 1891, and as set
forth in schedule ‘B’ hereto, and in this Act hereinafter designated
as ‘the agreement,’ is hereby. approved, ratified, confirmed and de-
clared to be valid and binding on the parties thereto; and each of
the parties thereto is hereby authorized and empowered to do
whatever is necessary to give effeet to the substance and intention
of the pruvisions of the agreement, and is hereby declared to have
and have had power to do all acts necessary to give effect to the
same.”’ '

Clause twenty-six of the Agreement:—

“If at the end of the said period of forty years, the company
are unwilling to renew, or at the end of the further period of
twenty years, if the company continue to hold for such further
period, the company shall be duly compensated by the commis-
sioners for their railways, equipment, machinery and other works
including the low level railway, if the same shall have been con-
structed and then held by the company under this agreement, as
also the high level railway from Chippawa to Queenston, and in-
cluding also their works in Chippawa and Queenston, but not in
respect of any franchise for holding or operating the same, such
compensation to be fixed by mutual agreement, or in case of dif-
ference, by arbitration as in Paragraph 17 of this agreement, but
the failure before the expiration of any such term, to fix such com-
pensation in manner aforesaid, or to pay before such expiration,
the amount of compensation so fixed, shall not entitle the company
to retain possession meanwhile of the said railway, equipment,
machinery and works, by this agreement to be constructed or op-
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erated, but the same shall nevertheless and notwithstanding that
the commissioners may have taken possession thereof remain sub-
ject to such liens and charges save as to possession as aforesaid,
as may exist in favour of bondholders or debenture holders of the
company, and the company shall retain a lien or charge thereon,
save as to possession as aforesaid for the compensation of their
railway, equipment, machinery and works to be agreed upon as
aforesaid, or so to be awarded to them provided, however, that all
such liens and charges shall not exceed the amount that may be
agreed upon or may be awarded for such compensation as afore-
said.

¢29. Subject always to the terms and provisions of this
agreement, and to the rights of the commissioners as the owners
in fee simple of the right of way in the park proper and on the
chain reserve, the said railways and their equipment and the other
works constructed or required under this agreement, shall upon
such construction or acquisition, as the case may be, be vested in
and shall be the property of the company who shall, subject as
aforesaid, be entitled to operate, manage and control the same
during the period or periods respectively above mentioned, it being
however hereby declared, understood and agreed, that at the end
of the said first or second periods, as the case may be, the whole
of the company’s said high level railway if then held by the company
under this agreement, together with their equipment and the
machinery and works aforesaid, including the elevators or lifts
acquired or built and including also the works in Queenston and
Chippawa shall become the property of the commissioners, sub-
ject to the payment of compensation to be agreed upon or awarded
as the case may be, and as is hereinbefore provided for.”

It is not in controversy that the claimant (appellant) fulfilled the
terms of its agreement by operating the railway in question down to
the 1st of September, 1932, and by paying the rental of $10,000.00 per
annum stipulated by the agreement; also that the claimant handed over
to the respondent Commissioners on September 1st, 1932, a complete
electric railway with its appurtenances capable of operating in situ.
There was no compulsory taking. The term of the franchise was forty
years definite with the right to the appellant to require an extension
which extension by written notice it expressly declined to take.

The possession conferred on the appellant by the original agree-
ment of 1891 came to an end on September 1st, 1932, and on that date
the railway with its equipment, machinery and other works passed
to the respondent Commissioners as an organic railway capable of op-
eration tn situ.

During the forty years life of the franchise the appellant paid a
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dividend in one year only, namely, in the year 1901, and to the follow-
ing finding of the arbitrators no exception was or could be taken:—

“During the last 11 years of operation down to the time of
handing over the railway to the Commission the earnings each
year with one exception fell short of paying operating expenses.
In the one year, 1925, the earnings exceeded the operating ex-
penses by only $2,535.93. During the last 13 years of operation the
annual loss, after allowing for depreciation and after paying 5
per cent interest on the $600,000.00 bond issue, ranges from $25,-
980.42 in 1921 to $112,303.72 in 1931 which was the last full year
of operation and for the last 8 months the loss was $78,350.34.
These facts appear from Exhibit No. 68.”

Supplementing the financial statements which support the forego-
ing finding, expert testimony was given by the witnesses Waller, Camp-
bell, Wilson, Acres, Bunnell and Beattie, the effect of which is that
there was no prospect of a change in this condition for the future.

In consequence of the very able, candid and exhaustive arguments
which were addressed to us during seven days, I think that I have an
adequate appreciation not only of the misfortunes which have befallen
the appellant Company but also of the fact that the respondent Com-
mission for forty years received in full measure all the benefits and ad-
vantages contemplated by the agreement of 1891. These considera-
tions eannot, however, affect the conclusions of this Court which must
depend on the construction of the agreement in question and its ap-
plication to the circumstances established hy the evidence.

I proceed to consider, in the first place, the principle or measure
in accordance with which the compensation is to be ascertained under
the agreement in question as applied to the circumstances existing on
September 1st, 1932. I refer to the oft quoted words of Lord Shaw
in the case of Hamilton Gas Company, Limited v. Hamilton Corporation,
1910, Appeal Cases, 300, where he says:

“Their Lordships, however, are of opinion that each of these
cases and also the present case depended and depends, not upon
any rule or principle of law of general application, but solely and
entirely upon what is the just construection of the language, whether
of statute or agreement, regulating the measure and nature of the
claim. Illustration might easily be given of this fact, as, for in-
stance, the decision in the case of Stockton and Middlesbrough Wa-
ter Board v. Kirkleatham Local Board, (1893) A.C. 444. In that
case a water board constituted by a special Aet was bound, when
so required, to sell to the sanitary authority the mains, pipes, and
fittings belonging to the board within that distriect. It was held,
upon a construction of certain statutory provisions, and upon the
terms above quoted, that the sum to be awarded was merely as a
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price for the mains, pipes, and fittings themselves, and not as a
compensation for the loss of statutory rights of supply as a rev-
enue-earning undertaking. The case was treated purely as one
of construction, and the same method of treatment appears in
Toronto St. Ry. Co. v. Corporation of the City of Toronto, (1893)
A.C. 511, and the other cases cited in the Court of Appeal. In none
of these did the decision invoke any general principle whatever,
except that the language employed by the parties must be care-
fully looked to in order to attach to it its accurate meaning.”’

I also refer to the language of Chief Justice W. R. Meredith ap-
proved by Viscount Cave in Toronto Cily Corporation v. Toronto Rail-
way Corporation, 1925, Appeal Cases, at page 197, as follows: ‘‘There
is no law which limits arbitrators to one method of determining value.
Any and every method that may be helpful may be applied. Actual
cost, reproduction cost and market value direct or indireect or actual
value may each and all give assistance or only one may be useful ac-
cording to the nature and circumstances of the particular enquiry.”
For the reasons stated at length by the arbitrators and which it is un-
necessary to repeat, I think that none of the cases discussed before us
are on all fours with this case so as to bind us when considering this
appeal.

The outstanding features to be considered in fixing the compen-
sation in the present case seem to me to be as follows:—

First—That the taking is not compulsory for the franchise of the
appellant ended in compliance with the original agreement aided by the
act of the appellant itself in declining any extension.

Second—Consideration by the arbitrators of profits and losses is
not expressly excluded by the agreement or by the statute. Mr. Me-
Carthy argues that such consideration is in fact excluded by law. But
for reasons to be hereafter stated I am unable to agree with his con-
tention.

Third—The railway by reason of changed conditions in trans-
portation had become absolescent, incapable of earning the cost of op-
erating it and of competing satisfactorily with other modes of trans-
portation.

Fourth—Except in Paragraph one, quoted above, the statute (55
Vic. cap. 96) relates exclusively to the incorporation of the railway, its
powers and limitations and has no bearing on the question of com-
pensation.

These features and eircumstances seem to me to distinguish the
present case from all the cases brought to our attention except the
American cases which, of course, are not binding on us.
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As already stated -4t is not in controversy that what passed to
the respondent Commissioners from the appellant, claimant, was the
“railway with its equipment, machinery and other works’ in situ,
capable of operation as a going concern. The question is whether the
actual financial value as an operating railway tn site is to be taken as
the basis of compensation or whether under the terms of the agree-
ment such actual value should be ignored and compensation awarded
on the basis of cost to the appellant, that is, cost of reproduction less
depreciation and obsoleseence.

I think that the railway took its chances not only in regard to
profits and losses occurring through operation during the forty years of
the existence of its franchise but that it also took its chances as to the
quantum of compensation based on the financial value of that which
passed to the Commission at the expiry of their franchise. For reasons
stated hereafter, I think that compensation must be based on the
actual financial value to the respondents of that which passed and not
on any artificial value such as the appellants seek to establish.

Mr. McCarthy’s argument to the contrary is summarized by him
in the following words:—

“The majority Arbitrators erred in finding that the electric
railway, its equipment, machinery and works had no value to the
Respondent as an electric railway (a) because they reached this
finding by considering ‘losses’ which they were precluded from
considering, and (b) because even if they were permitted to con-
sider ‘losses’ the evidence would not support the finding, and (¢)
because the Respondent was estopped from denying the value of the
railway &ec. as a railway.”

On ground (a), viz., that the arbitrators were precluded from con-
sidering losses, I understand from the oral argument that the propo-
sition is supported on the following reasoning:

The method of fixing compensation by capitalizing profits is not
applicable in the case of a public utility where the franchise comes to
an end by the original agreement or by a right to the taker conferred
by a statute which was in force when the franchise was granted, (citing
the Kirkleatham case (1893) A.C. 444, and the Edinburgh Street Tram-
way case (1894) A.C. 456). The essential point determined in these
cases is that the franchise having come to an end, no future profits can
acerue to the claimant; and the method of fixing compensation by cap-
italization of estimated future profits is inapplicable. It follows that
evidence of past profits is irrelevant and therefore inadmissible for the
purpose of determining compensation by capitalizing profits.

But it does not follow that evidence of profits or of losses is in-
admissible when it is sought to fix the compensation by ascertaining
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directly the actual value of the subject matter. In this connection I
refer to certain observations of Lord Herschell in the Edinburgh case
(1894) A.C. at page 465:—

“My Lords, I have so far dealt with the language of the see-
tion, without taking into consideration the words within the par-
enthesis, upon which so much of the argument turned; what was
to be paid by the purchasers was the then value of the tramway,
‘exclusive of any allowance for past or future profits of the un-
dertaking’, or any compensation for compulsory sale, or other con-
sideration whatsoever.”’

“....It is said that the words ‘exclusive of any allowance
for past or future profits of the undertaking’ were introduced for
the purpose of preventing the arbitrator making any addition to
the value otherwise arrived at in respect of such profit. I find it
difficult to understand how it could ever be supposed that an ar-
bitrator would make any addition to the value of the tramway in
respect of the past profits of the undertaking, or how it could
ever have been thought necessary to prohibit his doing so. It is,
however, quite intelligible that it might be thought necessary to
guard against his allowing for, or, in other words, taking into ac-
count past profits in arriving at the value of the tramway.”

In the case of the Toronto Rail:way and the City of Toronto, the
majority arbitrators in their reasons for their award make the follow-
ing observations:—

“We understand the word ‘depreciation’ occurring in the de-
cisions cited to inelude obsoleseence and deterioration from what-
ever cause, and not as confined to physical wear and tear and to
what might be called ‘obsoleteness’ as distinguished from °‘obsol-
escence’ at the time of valuation. The fact and degree of obsol-
escence must be determined from the evidence upon the point having
regard to good practice in railway administration.”

I do not find in the judgment of the Court of Appeal or in the
judgment of the Judicial Committee any eriticism of this observation,
and it appears to me to be a correct statement. It is true that in the
Toronto Railway case it was expressly provided that ‘‘the value of the
franchise and earnings present and future of the railway’’ are not to
be taken into consideration but where as in this case there is no ex-
press prohibition of such evidence it appears to me that the arbitrators
were right in admitting evidence of losses from year to year and expert
evidence to show that through obsolescence the railway possessed no
value as a going concern.

This view receives support from the observation of Lord Shaw in
the Hamilton Gas Case (1910) A.C. at page 311, where he says: ‘‘One
limit to the profit-earning power of the undertaking does appear

In the Court
of Appeal
for Ontario.
No. 6.
Reasons for
Judgment of
Court of
Appeal on
Appeal from
Award,
31st Dec.,
1935.

—continued



In the Court
of Appeal
for Ontarto.
No. 6.
Reasons for
Judgment of
Court of
Appeal on
Appeal from
Award,
31st Dec,,
1935.

—continued

44

in the Act, namely, that its profits could never be declared at more than
15 per cent.; any balance that might, so to speak, be earned over that
figure was by anticipation drawn off for the benefit of the community
in relief of the price of gas. Below that figure and down to mil or a
loss—all these considerations going to its value—uwere elements for the
arbitrator in ascertaining the price to be paid....”’

I, therefore, reach the coneclusion that evidence of losses was in
the present case admissible.

The second ground taken by the appellants is that even if the ar-
bitrators were permitted to consider losses the evidence does not sup-
port their finding.

This is a question of fact, and while no doubt this Court has
jurisdiction on the present appeal to consider their finding and to re-
verse or modify it, vet after full consideration of the appellant’s argu-
ment, I find no grounds to warrant interference with the finding that
“the railway at the time it was handed over to the Parks Commission
was of no value for operation as a railway to the Railway Company
or the Parks Commission or to any one else.”’

The third ground stated by Mr. McCarthy is: ‘“Because the re-
spondent was estopped from denying the value of the railway &ec. as a
railway.” I find difficulty in understanding how the principle of es-
toppel ean be applied to the circumstances of this case, for the obligation
to pay the rental of $10,000.00 per annum during the life of the
franchise rests on direct contract, and by Clause 19 of the Agreement
it is expressly provided that the rent shall be paid although the Company
may not by virtue of this agreement be able to exercise the rights and
powers to construct and operate the said railway.

For these reasons I am of opinion that evidence of losses and evi-
dence that the railway could not hereafter be operated without loss was
admissible; that the majority finding of the arbitrators that as a rail-
way operating in situ it is valueless is right and consequently that it
is impossible to ascribe to it a value based on Reconstruction less de-
preciation.

If T am right in the views just expressed, fixing of compensation
by the method of reconstruction cost less depreciation is not applicable
and some other method of ascertaining the compensation must be applied,
and as the railway is valueless as an operating railway, the only value
to be attributed to it as a basis for compensation is the value which can
be ascribed to its component parts. But value to whom? I venture
to think that the well-established rule laid down by the Privy Council
in Corrie et al v. McDermot 1914 A.C. 1056, does not here apply, and
that compensation is, in the special circumstances existing, to be meas-
ured by the value to the taker and not by the value to the owner. Tt
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geems to me that the compensation in question falls to be determined by
the terms of the agreement between the parties. That agreement, like
any other contract, is to be construed in accordance with the language
used as applicable to the surrounding circumstances. The words of the
agreement are ‘‘the company shall be duly compensated by the com-
missioners for their railways, equipment, machinery and other works.”

The surrounding circumstances are (1) that the railway as such
is a.fixture in situ; (2) under the agreement it cannot be sold to the
public because it passes to the Commission contemporaneously with the
cessation of the franchise, (3) whether profitable or unprofitable it
is valueless to the railway company. Tt cannot use it and it cannot sell
it either as a complete railway or as ‘‘scrap.”

Did then the parties intend by their agreement that on the term-
ination of the franchise all the physical assets of the railway should
pass to the commissioners for nothing without payment of any com-
pensation because such compensation was to be measured by the value
to the taker which was nil? To construe the agreement in that way
would in my opinion be doing violence to the intention of the parties,
for real compensation was plainly intended. See the observation of
Cassels, C. J. Exch. in The King v. Halifax (1918) 18 Exch.R. at page
72. The basis of compensation applicable under this agreement is an-
algous to that which is applied as between landlord and tenant where
buildings are erccted by a tenant and at the conclusion of the tenancy
are taken over by the landlord, i.e., at their value to the landlord.

Here, the lands on which the railway was constructed remained
at all times the property of the Parks Commissioners. All that the
railway had was an easement to build and operate its railway for which
it paid a rental of $10,000.00 per annum. The railway and its equip-
ment passed to the Parks Commissioners at the expiry of the fran-
chise with a right to the railway of compensation, like the right of
the tenant to compensation for his improvements. For these reasons
I think that this case falls outside the well-established rule that com-
pensation is to be measured by the value to the owner and not the
value to the taker, and that under the terms of this agreement com-
pensation is here to be awarded on the footing adopted by the arbi-
trators, that is, the value to the respondent commissioners of the com-
ponent parts when broken up.

It remains to consider the ten items disallowed by the arbitrators
and appealed against by the company as also the five items of the
Commissioners’ cross-appeal.

In dealing with those items disallowed by the arbitrators against
which disallowance appeal is taken by tbe Railway Company I follow
the numbering ascribed to these items during the argument of the
appeal.
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Item Omne.

Parcels 121 (a) being lands on Kent Street in Queenston
121 (b) as shewn on Plans 121 and 122.

The claim for disallowance is based on the following grounds:
(1) The title of the Company to these lands was not established ;

(2) They were acquired for the purpose of a spur leading to the
Lewiston Bridge as distinguished from a siding and form no part of

—continued the main line of railway between Chippawa and Queenston for which

alone compensation can be awarded;

(3) Their acquisition is not shewn to have been approved by the
Minister of Public Works as required by See. 21 of the Statute.

These lots were acquired as part of a scheme for cooperation be-
tween the appellant Railway Company and an American Company
operating on the Eastern side of the Niagara River so that passengers
might make a round trip down one side of the river and up the other.
The scheme reccived the support and approval of the Park (ommission-
ers and proved advantageous to the appellant Company but it has been
found impossible to establish by evidence the express approval of the
Commissioner of Public Works for Ontario.

I am of opinion that the right of the Railway Company to acquire
these lands is conferred by Section 2 of the agreement which required
the appellant Company to construct sufficient sidings and equipment to
meet the development of traffic.

I am also of opinion that it was not necessary for the appellant
company to prove express approval by the Commissioner for Public
Works for Ontario. These lands were notoriously in use by the Com-
pany for a great number of years. I think from 1903 and the maxim
omnia praesumuntur rite esse acta applies.

But apart from the foregoing reasons, a study of the Statute, Cap.
96 of 55 Vie. convinces me that the requirement by Sect. 21, of the ap-
proval of the Commissioner of Public Works is solely for the protec-
tion of the public and the absence of express approval by the Commis-
sioner of Public Works cannot operate to exclude from the assets which
passed to the respondents and for which compensation is to be awarded,
these lands which had been legitimately acquired under clause (2) of
the agreement.

Counsel for the respondent in his last memorandum says:

“If this Court should give effect to the argument for the Rail-
way that this item was improperly disallowed and should seek to
allow it on a salvage or scrap basis, the sum of $1100.00 would be
the proper amount to be added to the award.”
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I would allow the appeal on this item and add $1100. to the sum
awarded.

Item 2.

“IJtems relating to the Lewiston Bridge line.”
“Depreciated Value $9,375.00.”

The views just expressed in regard to item 1 apply also to this
item. But no evidence has been pointed out to us to shew what its
value would be on a ‘‘scrap’ basis. It is suggested that in existing
circumstances it has no value as a bridge and that wrecking it would
cost more than the resulting scrap would be worth.

To avoid the expense of a reference back I would suggest an al-
lowance of $500. for salvage in respect to this item. If this allowance
is not agreed there should be a reference back to the arbitrators at the
risk as to costs against the party who declines the above allowance, to
fix the salvage value of this bridge.

Item 3.
“C.N.E.” turnout in the City of Niagara Falls.”

This is a siding or spur laid down some years ago in Niagara Falls
for the purpose of enabling the appellant Company to run up Bridge
Street, in the centre of the Highway, to the former waiting room of the
Niagara and St. Catharines Railroad so as to make close and convenient
connection with that Railway. This waiting room was long ago
moved to another part of Niagara Falls and this bit of track there-
upon fell into disuse and is valueless to the Park Commissioners who
moreover are not shown to have any right to tear up the street and re-
move the rails. In any aspect I can find no ground shown for the
allowance of compensation in respect of this item. The appeal should
therefore be dismissed as to this item.

On the argument of the appeal items 4 and 9 were dealt with to-
gether. In the reasons for award they read as follows:

“Bridges No. 1 and 7. Additional amount if concrete not sub-
stituted for masonry.”’

“9, Power House. If concrete not substituted for certain por-
tions of masonry.”

It is easy to comprehend the argument of the appellant Company
on these two items, if compensation were to be fixed on the basis of re-
production cost less depreciation; but I have difficulty in eomprehend-
ing how on the basis which this Court finds applicable such claims to
compensation are intelligible or can be entertained. The appeal on these

40 two items should be dismissed.
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Items 5, 6, and 10 read as follows:

“Railway Bridge No. 8—substructure (5)
superstructure (6)

intake (10).

While for reasons already stated I cannot agree with the majority
arbitrators in holding that the want of evidence to establish the con-
currence of the Commissioner of Works warrants the disallowance of
these items as not being within the terms of the agreement and while
these assets might have value to the Commissioners as component parts
of a railway under actual operation yet, as a separate disassociated part
the intake has no value whatever to the Parks Commissioner and the
bridge has value only as ‘‘scrap.”” The appeal as to item 10 should
therefore be dismissed. As to items 5 and 6 I would suggest a serap
allowance of $500, by consent in order to avoid the expense of a re-
ference back. If this is not agreed there should be a reference back to
the arbitrators at the risk of the refusing party as to costs, to fix the
“serap’’ value of this bridge.

Items 7 and 8 read as follows:

““Highway Bridge No. 8a. substructure (7)
superstructure (8)

In the reasons of the majority of the Board these items are dis-
allowed but by inadvertence the sum of $11,440. being their depreciated
value is included in the total award of $179,104. This is admitted by
counsel for the appellant railway and the award should, pursuant to his
consent, be reduced by the sum of $11,440. This item forms no part of
the physical assets handed over to the Commissioners. Whatever might
be argued if reconstruction less depreciation was the basis of compen-
sation no allowance can be made on the footing of ‘‘serap’ value. The
appeal on this item should therefore be dismissed.

I proceed to deal with the cross-appeal of the Parks Commissioners.
The first four items of that appeal, the particulars of which have al-
ready been stated, may be dealt with together. These items and the
reasons for their allowance are referred to in the following passage of
the arbitrators’ reasons:

‘““We have, therefore, concluded that the compensation to be paid
by the Parks Commission to the Railway Company for its rail-
way, equipment, machinery and other works is not to be arrived at
on the basis of reproduction cost less depreciation but by applyving
various considerations to various component parts of the property
of the Railway Company in an endeavour to arrive at the full value
to be attached to each. With respect to such items as track, distri-
bution system, machinery and rolling stock, the value is the amount
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that could be realized from the disposal thereof. With respect
to the incline railways which the Commission continued to operate
after August 31, 1932, we have taken into consideration the repro-
duction cost less depreciation, their earning power and other eir-
cumstances affecting their value. With respect to items such as
paving, retaining walls and culverts, we have regarded them as
adding value to the property of the Commission and have allowed
for them on the basis of reconstruction cost less depreciation. As
to certain other items, including the power house building and a
portion of the grading, we have regarded them as adding value to
the property of the Commission and have allowed what we think is
their full value on this basis. With respect to the lands, we have
allowed what we consider to have been the full value thereof as of
the 31st day of August, 1932, but not on a reconstruction basis.”

I agree with these observations and with the opinion elsewhere ex-
pressed by the arbitrators that under the special provisions of this agree-
ment compensation is to be fixed, as in the case of Landlord and Tenant,
bv the value to the taker and not to the owner.

The allowances made by the arbitrators in respect to the four items
now under consideration seem to have sprung into prominence only at
a late stage of the argument in this Court. Little attention was paid
to these items by either party during the hearing before the arbi-
trators. It is true that certain of the expert witnesses called by the
Commissioners expressed the opinion that these items possessed no
value. Apparently the majority arbitrators discredited these opinions
of the experts as they were entitled to do. They had necessarily during
the forty-eight days of taking evidence supplemented as it was by an
extended inspection of the whole property acquired a very real and
complete apprehension of the undertaking and of its component parts
including these four items. It is impossible for this Court, even though
assisted by the able arguments of counsel, to acquire the complete grasp
of the situation which was possessed by the arbitrators who saw the
property and with maps and plans before them received explanations
which are not available to this Court. Under these circumstances I find
it impossible to say that the arbitrators were wrong and accordingly, T
would dismiss the cross-appeal in respect to these four items.

The contention of the Parks Commission as to costs remains for
consideration. As stated in the notice of appeal, it is this *‘The sub-
mission to arbitration by the parties did not include any power or
authority on the part of the arbitrators to award costs, and such award
was outside and beyond the jurisdiction of the arbitrators.”’

At the date of the agreement between the parties, the arbitrators
bad no power over costs unless it was conferred by the submission, or
the submission covered all matters in difference between the parties, and
the question of costs of the arbitration was deemed to be one of the
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matters in dispute and so came within the terms of the submission.
This state of affairs was remedied by the Act of the Ontario Legis-
lature in 1897, recasting the provisions of The Arbitration Aect. This
Act, 60 Viet., cap. 16, provided, Section 4, that a submission unless a
contrary intention is expressed therein, thereby deemed to include the
provisions set forth in Schedule A to this Act, so far as they are ap-
plicable to the reference under the submission, and in Schedule A is
found the provision, as paragraph (i), *The costs of the reference and
award shall be in the discretion of the arbitrators or umpire who may
direct by and to whom and in what manner these costs or any part there-
of shall be paid and may award costs to be paid as between solicitor
and client.”’

Section 48 of this Act provided: “‘This Act shall not affect any ar-
bitration pending on the 1st day of September, 1897, but shall apply to
any arbitration commenced thereafter under any agreement or order
made on or before the said date.”

The effect of this statute is to add the implied provision to the
agreement of the parties ratified by the Act of Parliament under which
this arbitration is now held. Re Williams v. Stepney (1891) 2 Q.B.
257, C.A.

This statutory provision was carried unchanged into the revision
of 1897 and the implied provision has ever since continued, notwith-
standing the various revisions of the statute, but Section 48, being re-
garded as of a temporary nature, has disappeared and been repealed,
and it is not now found in the statute. The effect of its repeal (by 9
Rdw. VII, cap. 35) is not to remove the implied provision from the
contract of which it had been made a part. The implied provision had
been effectively added to the actual contract between the parties by
the Act of 1897. This provision was spent and so repealed. But the
effect of the repeal was not to destroy everything that had been done
under the repealed Act.

The Interpretation Act, Sec. 16, modifies the earlier cases.

Upon another ground the arbitrators may be said to have power
to order the costs of the arbitration. Sec. 3 of Cap. 97 of the present
revised statutes provides that ‘‘this Aect shall apply to every arbitra-
tion under any Act passed before or after the commencement of this
Act as if the arbitration were pursuant to a submission, execept in so
far as this Act is inconsistent with the Aect remedying an arbitration
or with any rules of procedure recognized and authorized by that Act,”
so that if this arbitration is regarded as an arbitration authorized by
the Statute which approved and validated the agreement of the parties,
the present Arbitration Act and its Schedule apply to this arbitration.

As appears by the notice of appeal, the appeal is only as to the
powers of the arbitrators to award costs. Tt is hard to understand
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why the arbitrators should have given to the railway the costs of the
entire arbitration. Obviously a great part of the costs were occasioned
in connection with matters in which the railway has completely failed,
and had an appeal been taken upon this ground we might have felt
constrained to relieve the Parks Commission from an award which was
productive of this consequence and possibly giving to them the costs
of the matters in which they succeeded. But it does not by any means
follow that a general award of costs entitled the party in whose favour
the award is made to all the costs of proceedings. The claims put for-
ward before the tribunal disposing of the matter may be looked at and
where it is obvious that the costs have been substantially inereased by
the making of certain contentions and putting forward of certain claims
in which that party is unsuccessful, a general award of costs will not
entitle him to the costs of these claims and of these contentions. He
will only be entitled to tax his general costs of the arbitration, the
costs incurred with relation to matters upon which he has succceded,
not those incurred solely in respect of matters upon which he has
failed. This is the effect of a general award of costs. There should
be a declaration to this effect.

The award should be varied to accord with the foregoing declara-
tions after the parties have indicated their respective positions with
regard to the bridges above mentioned.

The appellant Company should pay to the respondent Commission-
ers the costs of the principal appeal to this Court and the Commission-
ers should pay to the Company the costs of the cross-appeal and of
the motion for leave to cross-appeal.

Murock, C.J.0.: FIsHER, J.A.

MippLETON, J.A. HEeNDERsSON, J.A. T agree.
No. 7
Order of Court of Appeal.
Seal
14.4.36
“G-T.”

THE RicHT HONOURABLE THE CHIEF
JUSTICE OF ONTARIO

THE HoNOURABLE MR. JUSTICE MASTEN

THE HoNOURABLE MR. JUSTICE MIDDLETON

THE HoNOURABLE MR. JUsTIicE FISHER

THE HONOURABLE MR. JUSTICE HENDERSON

1. Upron MotioN made unto this Court on the 28th, 29th, 30th and
31st days of October, and on the 1st, 4th and 5th days of November, A.D.
1935, by counsel for the Appellant by way of appeal from the Award of
the majority arbitrators dated the 29th day of May, 1935, herein, and

Tuesday, the 31st
day of December,
A.D. 1935.
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upon motion made unto this Court on the 1st, 4th and 5th days of Novem-
ber, A.D. 1935, by counsel on behalf of the Respondent for leave to cross-
appeal and also by way of cross-appeal from those portions of the Award
of the majority arbitrators dealing with allowances for grading, paving,
culverts, power house and the taxable costs of the arbitration dated the
29th day of May, 1935, herein, and in the presence of counsel for all
parties, and upon hearing read the pleadings, the evidence adduced at the
arbitration and the Award aforesaid, and judgment having been reserved
unto this day

2. Tauis CourT DotH OrDER that the said Award be varied, and as
varied be as follows:—

(1) WE Fix, AWARD, ADJUDGE AND DETERMINE the amount of
the compensation to be paid to the Appellant, International Railway
Company, by the Respondent, The Niagara Parks Commission, to be
the sum of $168,764.00 as full compensation except for items relating
to the Lewiston Bridge line and items comprising the substructure
and superstrueture of the Railway Bridge, which items are specially
hereinafter dealt with.

(2) WE Fix, AwarDp, ApJUDGE AND DETERMINE that the Re-
spondent, The Niagara Parks Commission, do pay to the Appellant,
International Railway Company, its costs of the arbitration incurred
with relation to matters upon which it succeeded, excluding therefrom
such costs as have been subject of agreement between the parties,
forthwith after taxation thereof.

3. Tuis Courtr DorH FURTHER ORDER AND ADJUDGE that the applica-
tion on behalf of the Respondent for leave to cross-appeal from those
portions of the Award of the majority arbitrators dealing with allow-
ances for grading, paving, culverts, power house and the taxable costs of
the arbitration, be and the same is hereby granted, and that the appeal
of the Respondent from those portions of the said Award of the majority
arhitrators dealing with allowances for grading, paving, culverts and
power house be and the same is hereby dismissed.

4. Tuis Courr DorH FURTHER ORDER AND ADJUDGE that this Court
having determined that the Respondent, The Niagara Parks Commission,
should pay to the Appellant, International Railway Company, compensa-
tion for items relating to the Lewiston Bridge line and for items com-
prising the substrueture and superstructure of the Railway Bridge, and
having fixed the sum of $500.00 as compensation for each of such items
subject to the parties hereto agreeing to such sum or sums, and the parties
having failed to agree to such sum or sums, it shall be referred back to
the Board of Arbitrators to determine the additional amount of compen-
sation to be paid on a salvage or serap basis by the Respondent, The
Niagara Parks Commission, to the Appellant, International Railway
Company, for said items, and that such reference shall be had at the risk
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of costs against the Appellant, International Railway Company, being the
party who declined to accept such sum or sums.

~ 5. Axp Tais Courtr Dora FUurTHER ORDER that the Respondent, The
Niagara Parks Commission, do pay to the Appellant, International Rail-
way Company, its costs of the cross-appeal and motion for leave to cross-
appeal forthwith after taxation thereof.

6. AND THis Courr Dorr FURTHER ORDER that the Appellant, Inter-
national Railway Company, do pay to the Respondent, The Niagars Parks
Commission, its costs of this appeal forthwith after taxation thereof.

“D’Arcy Hixbps,”
Registrar, S.C.O.

10

Entered O.B. 156 page 174-5.
April 14th, 1936,
“R.M.”

No. 8

Reasons for Judgment of Fisher, J.A., Admitting Appeal to
His Majesty in Council.

This is a motion by the railway company for an order admitting
the appeal of The International Railway Company to the Privy Council
from the judgment of the Court of Appeal for Ontario, and to approve
the security for the costs of the appeal. No objection is raised to the
security. The motion arises out of an appeal from an award of a board
of arbitrators to the Court of Appeal. The company and the commission,
years ago, entered into an agreement which had to do with the operation
of the railway company in this province. The terms of the agrecement
are set out in the Statute under which it was confirmed, 1892, 55 Vict,,
ch. 96 (Ont.).

Mr. Slaght on behalf of the Commission opposes the motion upon
two grounds:

20

(1) That under para. 17 of the agreement the parties agreed upon
the Court of Appeal for Ontario to determine any questions of law or
fact arising on an appeal from the award of the board of arbitrators and
there is no appeal to the Privy Council. The Court of Appeal was agreed
upon as a finality.

30

(2) That the railway company, being an extra provineial foreign
corporation, having discontinued carrying on business 'in Ontario in
September, 1932 (now having no licence), can not enter suit by way of
action or participate in any proceedings before an Ontario Court, in the
absence of an extra provincial corporation licence: The Extra Provineial

40 Corporations Act, R.S.0. 1927, ch. 219, sec. 15.
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Mr. Slaght’s contention is, in regard to the second ground, that this
motion is a proceeding in the Supreme Court of Ontario and he refers
to class 9 in sec. 3 of The Extra Provincial Corporations Act (which de-
fines the railway company as a corporation not coming within classes
1 to 8) and that class 9 is applicable, and the railway company having
no licence, it is a bar to the motion.

Mr, McCarthy’s contention is that, the railway company having
ceased operations under the agreement, no licence is required to com-
mence an action to recover in the Courts of Ontario anything that might
be due under the agreement, or to enforce its rights arising under the
arbitration clause.

I am of the opinion that the aim and object of The Extra Provincial
Corporations Act is to compel all foreign corporations before com-
mencing business operations in this province to take out a licence, and
on failure to do so under sec. 15 a penalty of £50.00 per day is imposed;
that this railway company was licensed to operate, but since the ter-
mination of the agreement all operations and business have ceased; that
I am unable to find anything in the Act, requiring the railway company
to take out a licence to enforce its rights under the agreement; that a
procecding to enforce rights under a contract entered into under a
licence is an entirely different matter to operating a business after a
licence has expired. It would follow, if Mr. Slaght’s argument is to be
upheld, that the railway company had no right to proceed with the ar-
bitration without a licence. It scems to me that if the railway company
had applied to the Department for a licence after the termination of the
agreement the Department would have asked, ‘‘What business do you
contemplate operating ?’’; and the only possible answer would be: ‘“We
do not intend to operate the railway company or engage in any business
but we want a licence to arbitrate or commence an action to enforece our
rights under an agreement which we had with the Parks Commission’’.
In these circumstances, I think the Department would have said that
bringing an action or proceeding with an arbitration under the terms
of an expired agreement does not mean ‘‘operating a business’’ and that
“no licence is required”’. I also think that the general Act in view of the
terms of the special Act has no application. I can see no merit in this
contention.

The first objection raised by Mr. Slaght has given me considerable
difficulty. Briefly, Mr. Slaght’s argument is that the agreement gave both
parties the right to arbitrate, and, if either was dissatisfied, they agreed
to go to the Court of Appeal; that the railway company having gone to
the Court of Appeal, that is a finality, and The Privy Council Appeals
Act, R.S.0. 1927, ch. 86, has no application. The relevant part of para. 17,
following the provision made for the appointment by the Chief Justice
or a senior presiding Judge of the Provincial Court of ultimate appellate
jurisdiction for Ontario, reads:
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“ And the award of such arbitrators shall be subject to the same pro-
vision of law as if the said arbitrators had heen appointed by the said
parties upon a voluntary reference under the Revised Statutes of On-
tario respecting Arbitrations and Refercnces. Kither party to such ar-
bitration may appeal from the award upon any question of law or fact
to the said provincial court of ultimate appellate jurisdiction for Ontario
and the said court shall have the same jurisdiction therein as a Judge
has on an appeal from a report or certificate under section 4 of the afore-
said Revised Statute respeecting Arbitrations and References’’.

It is to be noted that under the old Arbitration Act an appeal from
an award was taken direct to a single Judge.

For the company, Mr. McCarthy contends that para. 17 does not
state that the award of the arbitrators was to be final; that either party
was given a right to appeal to the Court of Appeal instead of going to
a single Judge; that the Court of Appeal has the same jurisdiction as
that of the single Judge; and also that the Court of Appeal, having given
judgment, two rights exist:

(a) Either party may appeal to the Supreme Court of Canada, or

(b) Appeal to the Privy Council under The Privy Council Appeals
Act, R.S.0. 1927, ch. 86. Sec. 1 of that Act reads:

¢1, Where the matter in controversy in anyv case cxceeds the sum
or value of $4,000, as well as in any case where the matter in question
relates to the taking of any annual or other rent, customary or other
duty, or fee, or any like demand of a general and public nature affecting
future rights, of what value or amount soever the same may be, an appeal
shall lie to His Majestv in His Privy Council; and, except as aforesaid,
no appeal shall lie to His Majesty in His Privy Council”.

He refers to Re Boulton et al., and The Toronto Terminals Railway
Co. Ltd., [1933] O.R. 816.

I confess that on the argument I was much impressed with Mr.
Slaght’s contention, but, after careful consideration, my conclusion is
that the railway company is entitled to the order. Briefly, my reasons
are as follows.

Admitting that the agreement does provide for an appeal to the
Court of Appeal and also admitting that both parties applied to and had
the agreement confirmed by legislation, the important fact remains that
the agreement is silent on the right of either party to a further or last
appeal.

The judgment of the Court of Appeal awarded the railway company
a sum far in excess of $4,000.00, and dealt with important questions of
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law and fact, and it seems to me that, until such time as it is found that
both parties to an arbitration or to litigation have expressly agreed that
there shall be no further appeal either to the Supreme Court of Canada
or to the Privy Council, section (1) of The Privy Council Appeals Act
(supra) is available to either litigant desiring an appeal.

One of the natural and statutory consequences of an appeal to the
Court of Appeal is that the judgment of that Court is appealable to the
Supreme Court of Canada or to the Privy Council, and I think it must
be found that, when the parties agreed to what is set out in para. 17, they
assumed all the natural and statutory consequences thereof. I can find
nothing in para. 17 or on the face of the agreement which even suggests
a limitation on the unqualified right of appeals stipulated. The right of
appeal to the Privy Council from any judgment of the Court of Appeal
of {he appropriate nature or amount being given by statute, it is unneces-
sary for the parties to provide for such a further appeal by their agree-
nment, but had they intended to exclude such an appeal they would have
dove so in express terms. The Court cannot possibly supply or infer
such a term involving waiver of the statutory benefit by implieation,
where there is nothing in the agreement that would even suggest the
propriety of such an implieation.

The order asked for will issue. The costs of the motion will be to
the successful party on the final determination of the appeal.

No. 9

Order of Fisher, J.A. Admitting Appeal by International Railway
Company to His Majesty in Council
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF ONTARIO

THE HONOURABLE } Fripay, the 7th day of February,

MR. JusricE FIsHER A.D., 1936.

IN CHAMBERS

Upron THE ArPLICATION made the 30th day of January, 1936, by
Counsel on behalf of International Railway Company, in the presence
of Counsel for The Niagara Parks Commission, for an order admitting
the appeal herein of International Railway Company from the Judg-
ment of the Court of Appeal for Ontario, dated the 31st day of De-
cember, 1935, to His Majesty in His Privy Council, and approving
the security for the costs of the said appeal, and upon hearing read
the affidavits (2) of D’Alton Lally McCarthy, filed, and the affidavit of
Donald Day Carrick, filed, and the exhibits referred to in the said
affidavits, and upon hearing Counsel as aforesaid, and it appearing that
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International Railway Company has, under the provisions of the Privy
Council Appeals Act, being Chapter 86 of the Revised Statutes of
Ontario, 1927, a right of appeal to His Majesty in His Privy Council;

1. It Is Orperep that the sum of $2,000.00 paid into The Can-
adian Bank of Commerce by International Railway Company to the
credit of the Accountant of this Honourable Court, as appears by the
receipt of the said Bank dated the 23rd day of January, 1936, be and
the same is hereby approved as good and sufficient security that the
International Railway Company will effectually prosecute its appeal
to His Majesty in His Privy Council from the said Judgment of the
Court of Appeal for Ontario and will pay such costs and damages as
may be awarded in the event of the said Judgment being affirmed.

2. Axp IT Is FurTHER ORDERED that the appeal by International
Railway Company herein to His Majesty in His Privy Council from
the said Judgment of the Court of Appeal for Ontario be and the same
is hereby admitted.

3. Axp It Is FurrHER ORDERED that the costs of this application
shall be costs in the said appeal.

“D’Arcy Hinps”’
Registrar,
S. C. O.

Entered O.B. 153, page 568,
February 8th, 1936.
R.M.

No. 10
Affidavit of D. L. McCarthy

I, D’AvrtoN LaLLy MeCartHY, of the City of Toronto, in the County
of York, Solicitor, MAXE OATH AND Say as follows:

1. I am the Solicitor for the International Railway Company, the
appellant herein.

2. T have been instructed by the said International Railway Com-
pany to appeal from the Judgment of the Court of Appeal for Ontario
pronounced herein on the 31st day of December, 1935, to His Majesty
in His Privy Counecil.

3. The matter in controversy in this matter and appeal exceeds
the sum or value of Four Thousand ($4,000.) Dollars.

4. That now shown to me and marked Exhibit ‘““A” to this my
affidavit, is the certificate of the Aecountant of the Supreme Court of
Ontario of the payment into Court by International Railway Com-
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pany of the sum of Two Thousand ($2,000.00) Dollars as security on
the appeal to His Majesty in His Privy Council.

In the Court .
of Appeal  SWORN before me at the City of
Jor Ontario. 3

— Toronto, in the County of York,

Ao 10, this 29th day of January, 1936. “D. L. McCarTHY”
DL “G. W, Apams”’
McCarthy, A Commissioner &e.

29th Jan'y.,
1936.

-—continued

No. 11
No. 11. Affidavit of Donald D. Carrick
Affidavit of I, DonaLp DAy Carrick, of the City of Toronto, in the County of 10
zcﬁgifl;h'y., York, Solicitor, MAXE OATH AND Say THAT:
1936. 1. I am a Solicitor in the office of Mr. A. G. Slaght, K.C., solicitor

for the Niagara Parks Commission, and have knowledge of the facts
herein deposed to.

2. An arbitration in this matter was proceeded with and an award
made by the Board of Arbitrators who were appointed by the above
named parties in accordance with the terms of the written agreement
between the parties hereto.

3. From such award, an appeal was taken by International Rail-
way Company to the provincial court of ultimate appellate jurisdiction 20
for Ontario, being the Court of Appeal for Ontario, such appeal having
been expressly provided for by the agreement of the parties.

4. A copy of the agreement above referred to dated the 4th day
of December, 1891, is now shown to me and marked Exhibit ‘“A’’ to this
my affidavit, and a statute ratifving such agreement was enacted by
the Province of Ontario and is known as Chap. 96, 55 Victoria.

5. No further or other right of appeal was agreed upon or pro-
vided for by the parties either in the written agreement made between -
them or in the statute confirming the same, or otherwise howsoever.

6. The above named appellant, International Railway Company, 3¢
is an extra-provinecial corporation, being a foreign corporation incor-
porated under the laws of the State of New York, one of the United
States of America, and search has been made by me in the office of the
Provincial Secretary of the Province of Ontario, and I find that such
International Railway Company was licensed to carry on business in
the Province of Ontario by extra-provincial corporation license dated
August 19th, 1904, which provides that such license shall be forfeited
by non-user during two consecutive years at any one time. Now
shown to me and marked Exhibit “B’’ to this my affidavit is a certi-
fied copy of such license. 40
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7. In such search I also found two letters dated January 18th,
1934, and January 23rd, 1934, the latter stating that operation of the
railway was discontinued on September 11th, 1932 by the International
Railway Company. Now shown to me and marked Exhibit ‘““C”’ to
this my affidavit are certified copies of the said letters.

SworN before me at the City of
Toronto, in the County of York

this 27th day of January, AD, “DoNALD DAY CARRICK”’
1936. |

“A. B. MoRTIMER”’
A Commissioner, &e.
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PART II—EXTRACTS FROM EVIDENCE

No. 1. Extract from remarks of Counsel on behalf of INTERNA-
TIONAL RAILWAY COMPANY, giving historical review of situation,
in opening his case before BOARD OF ARBITRATORS.

MRr. McCarTHY: The first statute of the Province of Ontario in
which the Niagara Falls or the adjacent lands in Niagara Falls are men-
tioned is chapter 13 of 43 Victoria, being an act passed in 1880 by the
Provincial Legislature. Nothing vervy much turns on that because that
Act was repealed very shortly afterwards. It was an endeavour on the
part of the Government to get the State of New York and the Province
of Ontario together with the idea of unifyving the Park or the lands
adjacent to the Falls on both sides.

Then I refer you, sirs, to 48 Victoria, chapter 21, an Aet passed in
1885 for the preservation of the natural scenery about Niagara Falls.
That Act repeals the Act of 1880. Sections 3, 4 and 5 are perhaps inter-
esting. Under section 3 the lieutenant-Governor-in-Council was given
power to appoint three persons to constitute a Board of Commissioners
for Niagara Falls Park, and they held office during pleasure. They were
given certain powers in reference to the appropriation of lands, and they
were to report their plans and opinions to the Lieutenant-Governor-in-
Council from time to time for his approval and assent.

The next Act is the Act of 1887, being 50 Victoria, chapter 13. Sec-
tion 2 of that Act, which is called ‘“An Act respecting the Niagara Falls
Park’’ appoints the Commissioners as follows:

¢2—(1) From and after the commencement of this Act, Colonel
‘‘Casimer Stanislaus Gzowski, of the City of Toronto, Aide-de-Camp
“to the Queen; John Woodburn Langmuir, and James (Grant Mac-
““donald, both of the City of Toronto, Esquires, the persons forming
“‘the Board of Commlsswners for Niagara Falls Park, and two other

“persons to be appointed by the Lieutenant-Governor-in-Couneil if

“‘he thinks fit, shall be a_corporation by the name of ‘The Commis-
‘“‘sioners for the Queen Vietoria Niagara Falls Park,’ and shall con-
“tinue to hold their respective offices, as members of the said cor-
‘“poration, during the pleasure of the Lieutenant-Governor-in-
“Council, and the ILieutenant-Governor in Council may, upon the
‘‘death of any such persons respectively, or on their resignation, or
“removal from office, and from time to time thereafter appomt
“other persons to fill 'their places during pleasure as aforesaid.”’
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Then Clause 14 of the Act is important in view of some evidence
which I propose to submit:—

14, The commissioners shall make an annual report for the
*‘information of the Legislature, setting forth the receipts and ex-
““penditure of the year and such other matters as may appear to
‘““them to be of public interest in relation to the park or as the
‘‘Lieutenant-Giovernor-in-Council may direet.”’

Now, following the incorporation of the Park Commissioners eer-
tain reports were made by them, and T am going to call the Board’s
attention to them. The first two reports do not contain anything of
interest so far as this arbitration is concerned, but the third report, at
page 58, makes this statement—

Mg. SracgaT: Official reports from the Commission to the Legis-
lature?

MR. McCartHY: To the Lieutenant-Gtovernor-in-Council.

Mrg. StagHT: Is there a volume containing these reports?

MR. McCarTHY: Yes, this volume contains the official documents
from 1880 to 1895, of the Queen Victoria Niagara Falls Park. I read
from page 58:—

“The Commissioners, after much consideration of the question,
¢gre forced to admit, that, even under improved conditions, the
“‘sources from which the revenues are now drawn will prove inade-
‘“‘quate to meet the annual cost of maintaining the Park, exclusive
*‘of the payment of the interest and sinking fund on the debentures.
“In view of this the Commissioners have given a great deal of
“‘thought during the past year to various measures, having for their
“object the augmentation of the revenue, and at the same time in-
“‘creased comfort and convenience of visitors to the Park.

“The first and most important of these is the promotion of an
«‘undertaking for the construction on the bank of the river, of an
‘electric railway between the park and Queenston. Perhaps at no
“‘place on the continent of America are the conditions so favourable
“for building, attracting travel, and, from a financial view, success-
“fully operating an electric railway than between the points named;
“‘the locality is the most celebrated in the world, offering no engin-
“gering difficulties in construction, possessing inexhaustible means
“for the creation of electric power, with the finest views of the Falls,
“Whirlpool Rapids, Whirlpool and the gorges of the river in full
“view from observation cars from the beginning to the end of the
“line . . .”

Mg, SLagaT: I do not want to interrupt my friend, but so that it
cannot be said that I am guilty of permitting my friend to be misled,
the report from which he is now reading is a matter which, in my view,
is not receivable in evidence, and when offered in evidence would be
objected to by me; but I do not think I should from time to time interrupt
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my friend’s statement as counsel of what he regards as a historical
record. I rise now to say that as to some of the Statutes and this report
and other matters, I desire to be of record that I am not to be regarded
as acquiescing to their relevancy.

MR. McCarTHY: I gave you, sirs, a reference to the Act of 1887,
which required the Commissioners to make annual reports, and I am
reading now from the third annual report dated December, 1888, 1 gave
my friend notice to produce them, because they are in the custody of the
Government. I am reading from an official document. Tf my friend
has the originals I would be glad to put them in, and if my friend has
not the originals I am reading a copy from the files of the department
of the Provincial Secretary:—

*“. . . all tending to increase the already great crowds of people

“from all parts of the world and constantly increasing local travel

‘“‘between Toronto, Niagara Falls and Buffalo. With all these ad-

“vantages, the privilege to construct a railway along the banks of

““the river should, in the opinion of the Commissioners, be a most

““valuable asset for the purpose of increasing the annual revenue of

“the Park. Believing this to be the case a survey of the route is

“now being made, and when completed the Commissioners propose

‘““asking the consent of the Government to advertise for proposals

“for the acquirement of the franchise for a term of years to be

““agreed upon.’’

MR. McCarTHY: Mr. Chairman, no doubt vou still have in mind the
provisions of section 14 of the Aect incorporating the Commission, namely,
chapter 13 of 50 Victoria, passed in 1887, to which I referred yesterday.
That was the Act appointing Sir Casimer Stanislaus Gzowski, Mr. Lang-
muir and Mr. Macdonald the Commissioners, and incorporating them
as the Queen Victoria Niagara Falls Park. Section 14 of that Act pro-
vides that the Commissioners shall make an annual report for the in-
formation of the Legislature, setting forth the receipts and expenditures
of the year and such other matters as may appear to them to be of public
interest in relation to the park or as the Lieutenant-Governor-in-Couneil
may direct. Now, the matters which I seek to refer to, and which were
referred to in the reports prior to the making of the agreement, were
matters which appeared to them to be of public interest, and in the
interests of the park. They had found that the revenues of the park
were insufficient to maintain the expenditures. They had found that
there was no means of the public reaching the park. This was a scheme
which was intimately tied up with the park itself, in an effort to enable
the Commissioners to draw the public to the park and to get the public
to patronize the various attractions and amusements which they had set
up. One of my claims in this case for compensation is that whether the
railway did or did not pay us makes no difference; we built the railway
and operated it for forty years, and the Act says we are to be compen-
sated. These reports in addition to showing the views of the Commis-
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sioners in regard to matters of interest, also set forth the receipts and
expenditures; and I propose at some stage to introduce evidence showing
the benefits that accrued to the park and to the different industries con-
nected with the park as the result of this railway being built. For
instance, they have a number of lunch rooms, sight-seeing facilities,
guides, and so on, all of which prospered as the result of this railway
being introduced. My submission is that these preliminary statements
by the Commissioners, which are amply verified by the results and by
the Commissioners subsequent findings tell the whole story in regard to
why these capitalists were induced to make this investment, and also why
the investment was made, and the benefit that accrued to the park as the
result of it. It does not matter very much to me whether or not the
railway was a financial success; it would not benefit me if it had been
a great success; if the railway had paid ten per cent. I could not take
advantage of it in claiming compensation. And my friend, I submit can-
not take advantage of it, because what we are to be compensated for is
our railway. We built our railway and ran it for forty years. We
may have lost money on it, but it became an integral part of the affairs
of this Commission and this park. Therefore I submit I am entitled
to refer to the whole story from beginning to end as it appears in these
reports, and that this Board should have these reports before them. The
reports constitute a continuous history, and therefore I submit they are
not in the class of documents to which my friend refers, namely, negoti-
ations between parties prior to the making of the agreement, These
reports are statements made by members of a public body to the
Lieutenant-Governor-in-Council, and as such they became a public docu-
ment, as the result of which this railway was promoted. I therefore ask
that the reports prior as well as subsequent to the making of the agree-
ment be admitted as evidence.

MRr. SragHT: In answering my objection my friend dealt with mat-
ters that are new and were not put forward earlier, and I confine my
remarks to those new matters. The task here, as I see it, is to ascertain
an amount which will duly compensate the railway for turning over to
us on the first September, 1932, certain assets. I entirely disagree with
my friend’s submission when he suggests that because our lunchrooms
may have prospered as the result of the operation of this railway during
the forty vears his clients operated it that is a factor to be taken into
account in fixing the due compensation to his clients in September, 1932,
for what they are turning over to us, I submit that if there was any
added prosperity enjoyed by our lunchrooms during the forty-vear period
because of the operation of the railway that is something we were entitled
to the benefit of under our contract as it flowed along. A proposition of
that kind, it seems to me, is beside the question when you come to deter-
mine exactly the value that the railway company are losing in parting
with the assets they did part with to us in September, 1932.

The question whether the railway was a financial success from my
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friend’s clients’ standpoint is, in my submission, a very important aspect’
of this inquiry. This is not an expropriation or a compulsory taking by
us of any property of my friend’s clients, and it is therefore entirely
outside of the considerations which move Boards and Courts in fixing
value under those circumstances.

I would like to remind the Board at this stage of the character of
this turning-over. It is a turning-over of assets of which the railway
company desire to rid themselves. They have a perfect right to keep
them; they contracted for that right by saying to us, ‘““We will carry
on for another twenty years’’—with further right of renewal for another
twenty years—they may keep the assets; but they are ridding themselves
of unwanted assets to us. We are reluctantly receiving unwanted assets;
they are being forced upon us at a date and a period when we do not
want to take them. Evidence will be offered, as has been stated by
counsel already, that we have not continued to operate this railroad, our
reason being, as will appear, that it has been operatéd by my friend’s
clients at a loss for ten years. With the best advice possible we found
it could be operated by us at present and in the future only at a loss,
which we do not think the Park Commissioners are justified in doing.
Bearing that in mind, I must now point out to the Board that whether
or not the type of revenue-producing asset which we are being forced
to take against our will, and of which myv friends are ridding themselves
because they choose to do so, is a white elephant or is an asset which
can be used as a railway qua railway without incurring a loss, is one
of the vital matters with which this Board will have to deal. So, re-
peating the grounds I put forward before, I submit that the earlier
historical references and statements which my friend seeks to file are
not receivable in evidence by the Board hecause they are not relevant
evidence to the inquiry.

THE CHAIRMAXN: Do you wish to add anything?

MRr. McCarTHY: No, sir.

THE CHAIRMAN: The question of the admissibility or non-admissibil-
ity of these documents is reserved. We accept the documents subject
to objection, and reserve the question of their admissibility or of their
value to be determined later. In the meantime we will allow them to
be read.

MRg. McCarTHY: I have now completed the correspondence (FExhibit
3).

MRr. RoBerTsox: Will the reports be marked Exhibit No. 5¢

Mg. SvacHT: May I point out that only a fractional portion of the
extracts of which a copy was furnished to me by my friend Mr. McCarthy
have been read or called to the attention of the Board.

Mg. RoBERTSON: I beg your pardon?

Mg, SpLaGHT: As I understand it, what is now being received as
Exhibit No. 5, of which I have been furnished with a copy, are such
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portions of extracts as have been prepared and read or specifically indi-
cated to the Board by my friend Mr. McCarthy yesterday.

MRr. McCarrHY: No; I want to put in all the reports. I cannot go
through them all and read the different portions, but there are portions
to which both of us would desire to refer.

MR. SvaGHT: If they are relevant it seems to me that now is the
proper time to refer to them, because I cannot hope to deal in argument
with fifty pages of data that you have not read to the Board, and with
which the Board is not familiar.

Mgr. RoBeErTsoN: Yesterday each of us was furnished with a docu-
ment headed ‘‘ Historical”” which contains the statute, the agreement, and
certain extracts from the reports. Those extracts were all read to us?

MR. McCarTHY: Yes.

MR. RoBERTSON: We have had all of Exhibit 5 read to us?
MR. SLAGHT: No, I am afraid we have not.

Mg. RoBERrTSON: What part has not been read?

Mkr.
MR.
MR.

SLAGHT: There must be many parts.
McCarTHY: No; I read it all.
SLAGHT: From the first to the last page?
Mg. McCarTHY: Yes.
MgR. RoBerTsON: Mr. McCarthy did not read verbatim the agreement
or the Act.
MR. McCarTHY: The Act and the agreement are in the document.
MR. SragHT: If the only things contained in the proposed Exhibit
5 are the extracts read yesterday to the Board plus the agreement and
the statute, then my trouble disappears.
THE CHAIRMAN: Then this document will be marked Exhibit 5¢

Mg. McCarTHY: Yes.
THE CHAIRMAN: Exhibit 5 contains what you read vesterday.
MR. McCarTHY: Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN: You skipped some clauses as being unimportant?

Mg. McCartHY: I read all the extracts verbatim, but there were
some portions of the agreement which I did not read.

EXHIBIT 5: Reports of the Commissioners for the Niagara Falls
Park.

Mg. ROBERTSON: Are we to pay any attention now to any other por-
tion of any reports?

MRr. McCARTHY:
later.

Not at this stage; I will seek to introduce those

* ¥* * * *

No. 2. Extract from Evidence of H. L. LOWE, Engineer. Called
on behalf of INTERNATIONAL RAILWAY COMPANY.

H. LELAND LOWE, Sworn. Examined by MR. McCARTHY :

Q. What is your full name? A. H. Leland Lowe.
Q. Where do you live? A. On North Street, Rye, New York.

In the Matter
of an
Arbitration
No. 1.
Iixtract from

remarks of
Counsel in
presenting
case to Board
of Arbitrators,
Jan. 9th, 1935.

—continued

Claimant's
Evidence.
No. 2.

H. Leland
Lowe,
Fxamination,
January 10,
935.



In the Matter
of an
Arbitration
Claimant’s
Evidence.
No. 2.
H. Leland
Lowe,
Examination,
january 10,
1935.

66

Q. What is your business? A. I am an employee of Stone & Web-
ster, Engineering Corporation. My business is that of Engineer, and 1
bear the title of Consulting Engineer for that company.

Q. Would you be kind enough to tell us what the scope of the
activities of Stone & Webster are? A. Stone & Webster Engineering
Corporation, which, with its affiliated companies, is located at 20 Broad
Street, New York, with offices elsewhere in the United States, is one of
several companies engaged in the activities of Stone & Webster, Incor-

_continuea Porated, which is the parent company of the group. The engineering

corporation looks after such matters as engineering, which includes de-
sign, consultation, appraisals of property, and work of that kind; and
construction and other companies forming the Stone & Webster group,
supervise the management of public utility propertics, the company
doing that being known as Stone & Webster Service Corporation. This
latter company devotes its entire time to the management of properties
which are not owned in any way by Stone & Webster Incorporated or any
of its subsidiaries. The management of those properties which are owned
by Stone & Webster, Incorporated, comes under Engineers Public Ser-
vice Company, Incorporated. In addition to those companies there is
another company which handles the financial and security matters of the
company, which is known as Stone & Webster and Blodgett. That com-
pany is engaged in the buying of securities from companies desiring to
raise money and distributing those securities to the public. Stone &
Webster Engineering Corporation has over a long period of years de-
rived approximately twenty per cent. of its income from the companies
under the Stone & Webster management, and eighty per cent. of its
income from other companies that are not connected with it in any way.
This income is to a very large extent from construction activities, the
building of works of all kinds, including industrial properties, as well as
public utility property; and in recent years with the depressed position
in the public utility industry, the chief revenue of this sort has come
from the industries. Incidental—and I think it is regarded as incidental
to the designing and construction activities, there has grown up a
service for the clients of the company of a consulting nature, and that
service is available to any who want it, whether they have employed
Stone & Webster for construction purposes or not, and the circumstances
under which I am here relate to this latter service. I am here on assign-
ment by my company to testify with respect to certain particular things
which I have been asked to testify upon. I think that describes in a gen-
eral way the activities of the company.

Q.  What have been their activities in the railway field, for instance?
A. In the railway business Stone & Webster were particularly active in
the early days of railway electrification, and a considerable portion of
their business in the late nineties and the early nineteen hundreds was in
the electric railway business. They built railways at that time, acquired
them through ownership and managed them and continue now to manage
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railway properties in various parts of the United States, although there
has been little construction activity, as you probably know, in that field
in recent years. In addition to that work Stone & Webster have been
consulted with respect to transportation and rapid transit problems by
companies doing business in some of the largest cities of the United
States, ,

Q. To what extent were you associated with the activities of Stone
& Webster personally? A. My activities with Stone & Webster in the
railway business began when I joined the company in 1916. As a matter
of fact my first assignment with them related to some designing and con-
struction work for the El Paso Electric Railway Company. Subsequently,
and I believe in that same year, I did some work for the Dallas Railways.
The company at that time operated a railway through a number of
villages in the neighborhood of Plymouth, Massachusetts, and I recall
having to go there in connection with some operating questions.

* * * * *

Mg. McCarTHY: Would it be sufficient to say your firm were con-
sulted on matters of vital importance in connection with transportation
problems? A. That is true; I think they were really important problems.

Q. You say you joined the firm of Stone & Webster in 1916. Are
you a graduate engineer? A. I am.

Q. Of what university? A. Cornell University.

Q. Where did you graduate? A. The class of 1903, with the degree
of Mechanical Engineer.

Q. After the time you left Cornell University until the time you
Joined the firm of Stone & Webster, what were vour activities as an
engineer? A. I was at first assistant editor of an Engineering magazine
in New York City, one of the few large ones at the time. Subsequently
I was with the Delaverne Machine Company, New York City, manufac-
turing the first large gas engines for power purposes in this country and
also producers of oil engines; I was Chief Engineer of that department
when I left to go with the Carnegie Institute of Technology. I assisted
in the equipping of shops and laboratories, and remained there for six
years to teach. I had the title of Assistant Professor of Physies, and I
gave the lectures in Heat and Thermo Dynamies, and directed the labora-
tory work in connection with that. Subsequently I was employed by the
(teneral Motors Company in Detroit to assist in the equipping of labora-
tories for research and remained with them to do research work in auto-
motive problems, chiefly carburetion, and electric starting which was then
new. I also interviewed inventors and passed on their proposals. Later
I went with the National Light and Power Company which was a public
utility holding company with head offices in St. Louis; I was Vice-
President and Chief Engineer in charge of engineering and construction.
We did work not only for the companies we managed but also for other
companies. At that time I not only looked after the engineering in the
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office, but I directed the field work as well. In 1916 I left the National
Light and Power Company to go with Stone & Webster Engineering
Corporation.

Q. Then, Mr, Lowe, in addition to the railway experience which
you have mentioned, what other important assignments did you have from
Stone & Webster since vou have been with them? Do not detail them all,
but give us those you think are of sufficient importance to mention in
order to show your qualifications? A. In 1917 I was put in charge of the
design of what later became 122 steel ships of about 8000 tons dead weight
capacity, and about 400 feet length. I had the engineering staff under my
direction, numbering about 550 people. When this work was carried to
its completion I left and went to New York and was employed for a brief
interval by the Interborough Consolidated in connection with an his-
torical appraisal of the surface lines which they then owned. Subse-
quently I made an investigation of the future possibilities of the Missis-
sippi River Power Company, which was an enterprise of about $25,000,000
magnitude and having as property a dam spanning the Mississippi River
at Keokuk, Towa, and a power house of about 100,000 kilowatts capacity.
This was a thorough and complete economic investigation of the future
business of that company. It subsequently was sold by Stone & Webster
to the Union Electric Light and Power Company of St. Louis. Then I
made a similar, although an even more exhaustive, inquiry into the econ-
omical future and the construction course to be pursued by the Puget
Sound Power and Light Company, which serves a large territory in the
North-West. Then I was sent to Japan by the company to take charge
of the engineering in connection with a large hydraulic enterprise for the
Shogawa Hydro-Electric Company. The dam was over 200 feet from
rock to crest, and designed for fifteen feet of water over the crest, both
of which were records as of that time. T returned to the United States
and was subsequently sent to Japan to appraise the property of the large
electric companies there. The value of the property appraised, which I
appraised single handed, travelling on foot over a great deal of the terri-
toryv, amounted to approximately $300,000,000. This work was done for
bankers and loans were made and the securities distributed in Japan,
Frngland and the United States. I have just returned from Porto Rico,
where I went in February of last year and made an appraisal of the
property of the Ponce Electric Company. and gave testimony before the
United States District Court of Porto Rico—

Q. I take it it is from those experiences that you have drawn in
preparing your testimony to be given to this Board? A. I think that
even those experiences that are not railway experiences have contributed
somewhat,

* * * * *

Q. First, would you tell us, Mr. Lowe, what did you first do by way
of preparation to enable you to give the opinions that you are now about
to express? A. There are certain fundamental principles and concepts
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that apply to all of these estimates. They are rather simple, and I would
rather state them initially so that we may keep them well in mind while
I am talking about the individual items. First of all, the estimates are
based on the property of the railway company as it existed on August 31,
1932. Second, it is based on prices which prevailed at that time. Prices
include a number of things beyond mere dollars; terms of payment,
length of time of delivery of equipment, efficiency or produectivity of
labor, construction methods, engineering practices, procedures common to
organizers of property and business, and I suppose legal work would also
be included in that. Otherwise than in the respects I have mentioned we
must consider only the conditions which existed at the time the property
was built. Estimates of cost of construction, for example, would have to
relate to the conditions as they existed when the construction was being
done. If a special provision had to be made at a highway crossing to take
care of the traffic during the construction in 1892 and 1893 that clause
should be included in making the reproduction appraisal, but if such a
highway did not exist at that time, but did exist in 1932 one would not
include such cost. The same thing applies, for example, to pavements
where rails are laid; if the rails in 1893 were laid in pavement and the
pavement had to be cut, then in order to lay them the cost of cutting the
pavement as well as replacing it would have to be included in the cost of
reproduction ; but if that pavement did not exist at the time but did exist
in 1932 it would not be reasonable to include it. With respect to some of
the other matters such as financing, for example, I think that while we
have to consider the cost of distributing securities and the excellent fa-
cilities that exist as in 1932 for the distribution of securities, we have to
consider what the public attitude towards those securities was in 1892
instead of in 1932. That is, if in 1932, as may have been the case, there
was a strong public opinion running against public utility properties and
public utility investments, which would tend to increase the cost of dis-
tributing securities of that kind in 1932, that additional cost should not
be put on to the reproduction cost of this property when in 1892 such
a feeling did not exist, and, as a matter of fact, I have made allowances
for that in my estimate of cost of financing.

* #* * * *

MR. RoBERTSON: Q. And you say that in your opinion you did get
such information as would enable you to make fair estimates of the mat-
ters you did estimate? A. Yes, that is true; and the procedure in this
particular instance is no different than in many other instances in which
T have engaged where I have been called upon to make estimates of this
kind. Sometimes these estimates have been for appraisal purposes such
as this and sometimes for the purpose of determining the cost of engineer-
ing of some project which has not yet been built.

* *» * * *

WirNEss: I might add one further item and that is that I read some
of the reports of the Commissioners; but I think even without reading
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them, and after looking at the property, I felt I was reasonably well quali-
fied with my other general experience to make these estimates. It is true
that I read the Railway Aect and read the Companies Act for the purpose
of finding out whether their procedure in organizing companies and
establishing a railway business here was any different from the general
procedure of business men and engineers doing similar work elsewhere,
and while I find that certain formalities were somewhat different, and
public officials bore different titles, in general about the same human Tabor
had to be done as I was familiar with, and the costs of it were about the
same as the cost of the work that I was acquainted with.

Q. Did you read the agreement and the Act of incorporation? A.
Yes; and I have talked to officials of the company and others with whom
I have had contact about the ideas that people have here with regard to
compensation for their services. I take it, for example, that it might be
very likely in constructing this property new—not reconstructing it but
building a property such as this—that the organizers and incorporators
might turn to Stone & Webster Engineering Corporation and ask them
to do it; we have done work in Canada on a number of occasions, and
apparently the terms and conditions under which we do that work are
not materially different from those of Canadian companies; and so I do
not anticipate that my ideas with respect to compensation not only of
engineers but of the incorporators of the company and lawyers involved
in it are materially different than the figures I have been accustomed to
use. In any case, whether thev are or are not, or if they are not, I think
it would be 1ead1]y discernible by you gentlemen when vou see these
flgures or hear me give them to you, to know whether they are or are not
reasonable, with the possible e\ceptlon of the cost of engineering; and,
as I say, T believe that Stone & Webster Engineering Corporation would
be a fair competitor with anybody else in doing work of that kind in this
territory. 1 do not believe I have anything more to add about that other
than general experience.

* * * * *

Mg. RoBerTsoN: Q. Perhaps Mr. Lowe would make a distinction
between depreciation and obsolescence? Have you considered it? Ob-
solescence has to do with lifetime, of course. A. I do not know where
that obsolescence might apply in this particular instance, and that is why
I stop to think. Obsolescence is one of those things that does not accrue
by degrees; it occurs, and it occurs at the time the property has been re-
moved from service, because it is no longer suitable for its purposes be-
cause of obsolescence. And in the case of this particular railway I do
not just now recall any particular items which relate to the original
engineering of the work which did in fact become subject to the occur-
rence of obsolescence.

* * * * *

Mgr. RoBerTsox: If you had a bridge which, by reason of greatly
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increased weight of the rolling stock had to be replaced, that would be
a pure case of obsolescence? A. Inadequacy, I believe we would call that,
to use a technical differentiation.

* #* * * *
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Q. Now, will you answer my question as to whether or not on your H. Leland

scheme of reproduction cost which you are putting forward as an expert
you have based it upon prices of 1932 which some other gentlemen have
produced for you in Exhibit 7, and have based it on the assumption that

those other gentlemen had regard to conditions of forty years prior when-

the railway was built in reaching their quantities? A. No.

You have not? A. No.

Is that or is it not the correct basis for reaching the reproduc-
tion value of the road as of the time we took it over? A. That is the
basis that I took in preparing my own testimony given previously, and is
the basis that I adopted in testing the accuracy of the figures given in
Exhibit 20.

Q. What do you say as to whether that is or is not, as far as you
are concerned as an engineer, the proper basis for the Board to work
upon in reaching the reconstruction value that you are participating in
swearing to? A. It is a conception of value that I approve of; I think
it is sound.

* * * * *

Q. 1 invite you to say that there is no other sound basis than the
one vou have outlined that you know of, that would be properly applicable
to put before this Board in this matter?

Mg. RoBerTsoN: That is on reconstruction cost?

MR. SLAGHT: Yes.

Q. I am not putting to you a basis of serap valuation for instance?
A. T hardly know how to answer a question like that.

Q. Where is the difficulty? A. I think the difficulty is that one
adopts a certain state of mind or attitude towards his work because he
sees logic in it and attempts to follow it consistently; it is difficult for
me in a subject as involved as Valuation to just condemn out of hand
without knowing what other conceptions may be offered, and say they
are all wrong; I do not believe I want to be in the position of condemning
everybody else’s ideas as wrong. I am willing to say I approve of my own.

* * * * *

MR. SraGgHT: Q. Let me put it in a further way, because I want to
know before you leave the witness box where you stand on affirming or
derogating from Mr. McCarthy’s statement as to the proper basis for
this Board to use in reaching this valuation when we took the railway
over. I want to direct your attention to this statement by counsel at page
189, lines 12 to 17, of the record:

“MR, MeCarTHY: Mr. Chairman, this evidence is really directed

“to reconstruction; the project has not yet been built; we are build-
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‘“ing the project now in 1932 on the terms and conditions as they

‘‘existed in 1892, and that is the method of reconstruction value that

“I propose to adopt.”’
Referring to that statement, which was given while you were testifying
before, do you endorse that as the proper method of reconstruction value
in this case? A. It is the method——

MR. McCarTHY: ‘‘Reconstruction value’’ or ‘‘reconstruction cost’’$

WiTNEss: It is, with the proper interpretation of the terms wherein
that interpretation does not relate to prices or the effect of prices, includ-
ing terms of delivery and terms of payment, and things of that kind,
which are as of 1932. In making an appraisal of this property myself I
would be guided by the principles which I stated at that time, which were
to the effect that I would observe the conditions as they existed at the
time of construction and apply to them the prices as they existed in 1932;
that would be the method I would follow. If some one else has followed
some other method I think it would be proper for him to explain why he
has used some other method.

* * * * *

MR. MasoN: Supposing a farmer had eome along in 1920 and asked
for the construction of a culvert that had not theretofore existed, how
would you treat that in your reproduction cost? A. I would attempt
to follow the principle I have laid down, and consider the conditions at
the actual time of construction of that culvert.

Q. That is, you would not include the construction cost of that cul-
vert? A. I would include the construction cost of the culvert if it
existed in 1932 at prices as of 1932, and would give consideration to the
conditions under which it was actually built in 1920.

Q. I was trying to get at what was meant in connection with an
expense of that kind as of conditions in 18922 A. Almost all of this
property was constructed in 1892 or 1893, and we have for convenience
referred to the original construction as of that date; I have no doubt that
there are some parts of the property that we see today that were actually
built at some later time, but I believe they are in relatively small amounts,
so it is just a convenience of expression to refer to 1892.

* * * * *

Q. Then it is an item in your appraisal of the total? A. Just like
any other item; and valuation of property is considered to be a valuation
of the property which actually existed at a certain date, which in this case
is August 31, 1932, and it includes all of the property of the company
which did exist on that date irrespective of the time that it was originally
built.

* * * * *

MR. Mason: Q. May I put this specific question: Supposing a rail-
way is constructed in 1892, and half a mile of it is abandoned in 1920, how
would you treat that half mile in your reconstruction cost on the basis
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you have been giving as the proper method? A. I would throw it in a
category called ‘‘non-useful property.”’

MR. RoBERTSON: Q. In other words, if you were dealing with recon-
struction cost there is only one thing to do, and that is to reconstruect;
but if you were dealing with the broader question of how much should
be paid for it then perhaps you would not apply reconstruction to the
non-useful property? A. That is a Valuation which a tribunal attempts
to reach from evidence such as engineers can give. ‘

Q. That if it passes to the new taker he may be entitled to have it
not on a reconstruction basis at all, but on some lower basis?

MER. SLaGgHT: Is that what the witness says?

MR. RoBerTsON: Q. Might not that be so, if it were not useful any
longer to the railway? A. Oh, if it were not useful as a railway the en-
gineer would appraise it as ‘‘Other property’’ irrespective of the railway.

* * * * *

THE CHAIRMAN: Q. I do not know how you can say that. Suppos-
ing there are two conclusions, one including that abandoned part and the
other excluding it, the conclusion necessarily would be different on the
one supposition from what it would be on the other? A. The thing I
have attempted to do is to scrutinize certain costs marked ‘‘Other Strue-
tural Costs,”’ and determine whether they are reasonable for the amount
of property that appears to be here; and the conclusion I come to with
respect to that is that they are. There are certain articles of property
which are abandoned that are relatively small in amount as compared
with the total property, and I have reached my conclusion as to reason-
ableness irrespective of that consideration. I would not suggest to you
for one moment that I would appraise on reproduction cost new property
not used and useful in railway business; that is, if some of this abandoned
property has rails and ties on it, one would not be justified in appraising
that as useful property. The land, however, on which those rails and ties
rest, if they are still there, must have some kind of a value which a real
estate man could give.

* * * * #*

No. 3. Extract from Evidence of JOHN F. SCHMUNK, Accountant.
Called on behalf of INTERNATIONAL RAILWAY COMPANY.

JOHN F. SCHMUNK, Sworn. Examined by MR. McCARTHY :

Q. Mr. Schmunk, what do you do? A. I am a publie accountant.

Q. Where do you live? A. Philadelphia, Pa.

Q. And how long have you been engaged in vour profession as an
accountant? A. Since January, 1918,

Q. And before that time what were you engaged in? A. I have
been engaged in accounting work ever since I left school; in general
corporation aeeounting until 1913, when I was engaged by the Public
Service Commission of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as Senior
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Accountant of the Commission, and occupied that position until 1918
when I entered public practice.

Q. During the time you were the Senior Accountant for the Public
Service Commission, what accounting work did you do in that connec-
tion? A. My work consisted almost entirely of the investigation and
examination of public utilities, in valuation proceedings and rate
analyses, having had charge of the work in connection with the Pitts-
burgh Railways Company, the Wilkes-Barre and Hazelton Railway
Company, Lehigh Traction Company, the Erie Traction Company, the
Westmoreland Water Company, Philadelphia Suburban Water Com-
pany, and many smaller utilities.

. I believe you were also Consulting Accountant for the Valuation
Jommittee of the Philadelphia Rapid Transit Company? A. That was
after 1 entered public practice. 1 was consulting accountant for the
Valuation Committee of the Philadelphia Rapid Transit Company, and
the accountant member of the Valuation Committee of the International
Railway Company. From about 1921 or 1922 T was consulting accountant
for the Philadelphia Rapid Transit Company, and from that date up to
and including the present time have been Consulting Accountant of the
International Railway Company.

MR. SvAaGHT: Q. 1 did not get the year from which you have been
consulting accountant to this railway? A. Since about 1921 or 1922,

Mg. McCarTHY: Q. Your practice is not confined to railway com-
panies, but you do general accounting work? A. (ieneral accounting
practice, including mercantile establishments, manufacturing establish-
ments and banks.

. You were asked to compile a balance sheet of the Niagara Falls
Park and River Railway Company from the year ending December 31,
1893. until June 30, 1902, being the date when this company was taken
over by the International Railway Company? A. I was.

Q. Have you got that balance sheet before you? A. T have.

Q. Have you got copies that we can put in? A. Yes.

EXHIBIT No. 67: Balance sheet of Niagara Falls Park and River
Railway Co., from year ending December 31, 1893, to June 30, 1902, with
sheets attached entitled ‘‘International Railway Co. Park and River
Division, Cost of road and equipment’’ 1903 to 1929.

Q. And have you made an investigation for the purpose of deter-
mining the cost of the road and equipment covering that period? A. I
have.

. And what books or records did you have access to at that time?
A. The only books that I had access to were the minute books of the
company covering the period from the time of its incorporation and
running through till 1910. There were account books available but only
ledgers for the period from Mareh, 1899, until June 30, 1902. Subse-
quent to 1902 the accounts are part of the accounts of the International
Railway Company. There are no separate books for the Park and River
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Railway Company.

Q. Then have you set up the result of your examination in this
Exhibit 67 in tabular form?% A. T have.

. And this is a copy of the statement which you now produce.
Will you kindly explain it to the Board, Mr. Schmunk? (Fxhibit 67).

A. On the first sheet of Exhibit 67 the result of my investigations
are set up in balance sheet form. The first six items on the page are the
fixed capital accounts, or, as may be termed, the cost of its plant and
cquipment. The second line is a total showing the total at the end of
each vear, and amounting to $1,260,067.17 at June 30, 1902, at which
time the property and assets were purchased by the International Rail-
way Company.

Underneath that you have other assets which you have added,
bringing the total to $1,283,000 odd? A. That is the total assets. And
the lower half of the sheet shows the liabilities, and the total liabilities
amount to the same figure.

Q. I notice that among the assets you have the cost of road and
electrical equipment including franchise. Is there anything set up in the
hooks representing the cost of the franchise? A. There are no details
back of that item in the minute book, and it was an account caption used
by the accountant who certified to the first statement, but was not used
in succeeding years.

Q. You have just adopted it as you found it? A. I have just
adopted it as I found it in the minute books.

MRr. SLagHT: Q. Was used by the accountant in one year only, and
not adopted in future years? A. Yes, the word ‘‘franchise’’ appeared
ouly in the first year.

Q. This year of 1893% A. 1893.

MRr. McCarTHY: Q. Is there any other explanation you would like
to make in regard to this top sheet of Exhibit 672 A. 1 think not, Mr.
MeCarthy. It shows year by yvear the total assets and liabilities of the
colnpany.

Q. As appear in the books? A. As they appear from the state-
ments in the books.

Q. Then you have attached to this four sheets? A. Yes.

Which contain certain additions, and which T take to be the
equipment added to the railway, with certain other items which indicate
sales by the railway or realizations since the International Railway Com-
pany took it over? A. That is correct.

Q. And that takes us down to what date? A. To the last date that
there were any expenditures, which happened to be June, 1929.

Q. The information or the records from which this information
would be obtained would be the books of the International Railway
Company, would it? A. Yes, the reference to the source of original
entry is given right on each entry.

Q. What does ‘“A.F.E.” mean? A. ‘“AF.E.” is an abbreviation
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us used for an appropriation that the company designates ‘‘authority for
cxpenditure.”’

MR. SLagHT: Q. That is the column that is the source of original
entrv? A. Yes.

MRr. McCARTHY: Q. Are there any remarks that you would like to
make in regard to the sheets following the first balance sheet? A. Yes,
there are. If you will refer to page 2, there is an item designated
“A.F.E. 1272, semi-vestibuling 18-600 type open cars,”” and a list of num-
bers. I of course tabulated these first as they appeared in the books and
records, and did not wish to make any corrections or adjustments on the
original entry; but of the 18 car numbers listed on A.F.E. 1272, seven
of them, namely, 678, 679, 685, 686, 687, 682 and 684 are the only cars
remaining in the Province, and the only ones listed in the inventory—
that is, the only passenger cars listed in the inventory.

Q. What do you call the inventory ?

Mg. Mason: Exhibit 7.

Mg. SLagHT: Q. That would be seven cars? A. Yes. So I have
made an adjustment taking 11/18ths of that amount from the total
shown on Exhibit 7. On A.F.E. 1410, listing 25 cars, seven of those cars
of the same numbers just given are still on the Canadian Division: so
I have taken 18/25ths of the 375 and made a deduction.

Mg. SpagaT: Q. I did not catch how many cars are still on the
Canadian side? A. Seven.

MR. Mason: Seven of that type. A. They are all the same type.
There is I think three service cars that are not in any of these. That
credit will amount to $270.

MR. McCaRTHY: Q. The credit on those two? A. 1272 is $594.19;
1410 is $270. I will give a total of these at the end. On A.F.E. 1455
there is the changing of 18 600-type, 14 bench open cars from 2-57 motors
to 4-57 motors with the other necessary changes, and seven of those 18
cars are still on the Canadian Division, so that 11/18ths of the $10,116,
amounting to $6,182 is a credit to the original amount shown. And on
sheet 4 A.F.E. 2196, equipping open trailer cars No. 661-663-667-683 for
motor operation, none of those cars remained on the Canadian Division,
and the entire amount is deducted. The total of those four items is $21,-

020.53.
Q. Which one is that you say you take off altogether? A. AF.E.

2196.
And what is the total? A. Reduces my total to $1,402,151.58.
. After giving credit for the amount realized, that figure repre-

sents the total assets of the company purchased between 1893 and 1929¢
A. Yes.

Q. That is after deducting the ecredits, of course? A. Yes, that
is after making adjustments for items that no longer exist.

Q. That is, after deducting the credits we find on sheet 3¢ A. Yes,

sir, 3 and 4.
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Mg. RoBerTsox: There are some on two. These items in red, they
are deducted, are they?

Mg. McCarTHY: Yes.

WitnEss: The deductions I have made appear in items on sheets 2
and 4.

Mg. McCartHY: Q. 2, 3 and 4% A. No, the items shown in red
which are deductions, are deducted from the original total given.

Q. I am sorry, I do not follow you. Deducted from the original
total ¢

Mg. RoBertsox: That is $1,260,000.

Wirness: If vou look on sheet 2, A.F.E. 1272, there is a deduction
made on account of that of $594.

MR. McCarTHY: Q. Yes, I am speaking of the figures in red. A.
They are deducted in arriving at the original total of $1,423,000.

Q. That is what I say.

MR. Mason: Is that right, Mr. McCarthy, to 1929%

MR. McCarTHY: To 1929, ves, sir.

Mgr. SpacHT: That is the date that figure is of.

Mg. McCarTHY: Q. You have also prepared a profit and loss ac-
count? A. T have.

EXHIBIT No. 68: Profit and Loss Account of Niagara Falls Park
and River Division, December 31, 1893, to September 11, 1932.

Would you just explain this Exhibit 68% A. Exhibit 68 is a
tabulation of the income and expenses of the Park and River Railway
Company and the Park and River Division of the International Railway
Company. The first sheet is a rather condensed tabulation showing the
entire period on one sheet. The following sheets show in more detail
the income and expenses for the years as indicated at the top of each
column. For the period from December 31, 1893 to December 31, 1898,
the figures were taken from the minute books of the company.

That is the old company? A. Yes. For the years 1899, 1900
and 1901 they were taken from the ledgers of the Niagara Falls Park
and River Railway Company. From 1901 to September, 1932 they
were taken from copies of the reports made by the company to Canadian
authorities. For the period from 1902 to 1908 they were from the re-
ports to the Minister of Railways and Canals. And for the period from
1909 to 1932, to the Board of Railway Commissioners for Canada, and
the Dominion Bureau of Statistics at Ottawa.

Is the information which we find on this front page the in-
formation which is given to these different official bodies? A. It is.

Q. As required by their forms which are furnished I think? A
Yes.

Are you certifying to the correctness of this, or are you com-
piling it from these different sources? A. I have taken it from these
different sources, but for a portion of the period I have a responsibility
as to the correctness in the report.
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Q. What period? A. From 1920; subsequent to 1920.

Q. Since 1920. You have got an operating income and a non-
operating income. What is meant by the non-operating income? A.
Non-operating income includes the receipts in this instance from con-
cessions in the Park as set aside from the passenger revenue—anything
outside of passenger revenue and revenue directly from the operation
of street railway is classed as non-operating income.

. Does that mean the inclines? A. It would mean the inclines,
Clifton Incline, the Whirlpool. They had a building here, I think it
was called the Indian Stand.

Q. Concessions? A. Yes, concessions, for use of propertv owned.

MR. SLaGHT: Q. Do you mean freight was in the non-operating?
A. No, not freight. Any freight that was in there would not bhe in the
non-operating.

Q. I thought you said anything outside of passenger? A. T think
I did.

Mg. Masox: Q. This does not include the revenue from inelines?
A. It does in the non-operating. It was not separated prior to the
year 1908. Subsequent to 1908 non-operating is shown separately.

Q. And includes revenue from incline? A. Yes.

MR. McCarTHY: Q. That is what I was going to ask, why it began
at a certain date. Up to 1908 it was all included in what you call operat-
ing income? A. Yes.

Q. And then in that year you separated what you call the operating
from the non-operating, and operating is confined exclusively to the
operation of the ears, whether freight or passenger? A. That is cor-
rect.

We get the gross income, which we can understand, and then
‘““Rental paid Commissions”’. That is the commission to the PPark, is it?
A. That ‘““Commissions’ should be singular, should be *“Commission,”’
meaning the Park Commission.

Q. Then you have a rental paid to the Village of Chippawa which
did not commence till about 1923, and then you have the interest on your
funded debt. Then beginning about 1909 or 1910 I see a depreciation has
been set up. A. That begins in 1908, Mr. McCarthy.

Q. And how is that depreciation set up? A. There was no set
policy of the International Railway Company subsequent to 1920.

Q. Subsequent to that or prior? A. Prior to 1920. They had no
general practice or fixed practice that I could ever find, but as a result of
a proceeding before the Public Service Commission of the State of New
York, they found an annual depreciation rate to be used by the company ;
a portion of the company’s total depreciation, amounting to $1,016,000 a
year, is alloeated to the Park and River Division.

J- By whom? A. By the accounting department in making up
the reports. There is no division of it except in the reports.

Q. Who fixes the total amount of depreciation of the International
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Railway Company? A. That was fixed and determined by the Public
Service Commission of the State of New York.

. The amount that appears under the head of depreciation since
1920 is the amount which has been allocated to this division by— A. In-
ternational Railway Company.

MR. MasoN: Q. On what basis is that? A. That is I think three
per cent on depreciable property.

THE CHAIRMAN: Q. This depreciation, there was so much each
year apparently, and then the total is $633,629, and so on. Is that what
you mean there? A. Yes, sir,

That is the total depreciation in those years from 1908. A.
I would like to correct my percentage on that. 1 recall definitely now
that is four per cent on the depreciable property and not three per cent.

I was trying to get at the $1,016,000 a year. You say that is
allocated to this division? A. A portion of that is allocated to this
division.

Mr. McCarRTHY: Q. $1,016,000 is the total? A. Of which $42,000
is applicable to the Park and River Division.

MRr. SpagaT: Q. Do I understand that the total depreciation is
$1,016,000¢ A. Yes. That is for the total International Railway Sys-
tem, but there is only $42,000 allocated to the Park and River Division.

Mg. MasoN: Q. The allocation is done by the Railway Company it-
self? A. Yes.

Mg. RoBErTsox: Q. Why is it the same for a long period of years to
the very cent? A. Because there has been none, or very little change in
the depreciable assets.

Q. That is, if we look at the last item we do not see very much
added in those vears, or we do not get the years? A. There is a year, but
unfortunately it is bound in pretty elose and hard to see.

THE CHAIRMAN: Q. These red figures represent the loss, do they ¢
A. Yes, sir.

MR. SLAGHT: Q. The last columm, that $571,000; is that a total of
the red figures, or is it a total of the red figures less the purple figures?
A. That is a total of the red figures less the purple figures.

Mr. RoBertsoN: Q. How did they make so much money in 1901%
A. That was a very interesting question, Mr. Robertson. That was the
Pan-American year, and I think the first year of the operation of the
Gorge Route.

Mgr. SLagHT: Q. And vour big red figure in 1916, that was an
accident? A. Yes.

. A lot of claims? A. 1If you refer to a sheet that has a column
heading of 1916, it is very plainly set forth there that the injuries and
damages in that year was $152,000 plus.

MRr. McCAarTHY: Q. Turn to the second page, and we get the

profit and loss account in greater detail between the years 1893 and 1901%
A. Yes.
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Q. Giving the general office, legal and management, taxes and in-
surance, advertising and printing, transportation expenses, wages, con-
ductors and motormen, and so on, and we get the cost of power and
maintenance, commissions paid agents; then you get your total operating
expenses which correspond with the summary given us on the first page,
and the rental paid the Commission, interest on advances, and so on,
and that is carried on through. A. .Through each succeeding page.

. Now, is there anything you want to remark in regard to those,
Mr. Schmunk? They seem to be fairly plain? A. I tried to make
them as near self-explanatory on the face of them as I could. There is
one item that may cause a query. In comparing or making a ealculation
on surplus account in 1898, the calculator will find there is a ten-cent er-
ror there that I cannot locate. It was in the original statement.

Mgr. Sragut: We will never look for it.

MR. Mason: Q. The interest on the funded debt'I suppose is 5%
on the bonds of $600,000¢ A. The bonds were 5%. In the early days
I think there were some varying rates when they were borrowing money.
The interest is all in one column,

Q. I see it is uniform for a great many years. A. Yes, from 1903
on when all the bonds were actually issued it has been constant. Up
to I think 1899 or 1900 the bonds were not actually issued but were used
as collateral against loans, and for that reason the rate fluctuated some-
what in those preceding years.

Mg. SvagHT: Q. It becomes constant in 1903¢ A. I think you
might call it constant from 1899 on. You will notice there is $30,203. I
know there was a small note out at that time. It was $30,700 in 1900;
$31,600 in 1901, and the $15,900, the next period, is for a half year. That
is where the accounting period was changed from December to June.

MRg. MasoN: Q. Why is there such a terrific difference in the taxes
there? I notice that in one year, 1927, it is $26,000 odd ; in the year before
$13.000, and the following year $14,000. Is there any explanation of
that?

MR. McCarTHY: What vear was that?

Mgr. Masoxn: About 1927 or 1928, Just follow the taxes—$13,000,
$26,000, $14,000, $18,000, $12,000. There seems to be great variation.

WitNEss: I cannot answer that at this moment. I will try to get
the answer for you over night.

Mg. Masox: It is not very important anyway.

MR. McCarTHY: Q. You have tried to give the history of the road
in dollars and cents as far as you could? A.- As far as I could and to
the best of my ability to find out.

* * * * *

CROSS-EXAMINED by MR. SLAGHT.

EXHIBIT 74: Return by Niagara Falls Park & River Ry. to Minis-
ter of Railways and Canals, for year ended June 30, 1905, showing con-
ditions of capital and revenue account, ete.
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Mg. ScagHET: Q. How do you account, if you can account, for the
rather prosperous revenue from freight back in those earlier vears and
the disappearance of revenue from freight almost entirely in the later
years of this railway’s operation? A. I cannot—I do not know.

Q. That seems to be, though, the course of events that have hap-
pened here, does it not? A. The figures so indicate,

Q. The figures so indicate? A. I do not know the local history.

Q. Well, they say figures lie sometimes, but we won’t go into that.

Now, still on your Exhibit 68, looking at the first page, T will discuss !

this depreciation problem with you. We talked about it last evening
a little bit, and you recorded yourself that vou would not say one way
or the other as to the fairness or otherwise of the 4 per cent or the hase
figure of $1,050,000 odd which produced it. Looking at your depreci-
ation column on Exhibit 68, sheet A, I see it begins with the year 1908¢
A. That is correct.

Q. Actual depreciation began in the first year of the existence of
the venture, I take it? A. To the extent that there is depreciation, it
starts the first day of the property.

Q. Would you say it would or would not be improper to add to
this column from the first year, 1893, filling in the blanks each year
down to the end of 1907, a depreciation of $42,051.92 for each of those
sixteen years? A. I would consider it very improper.

THE CHAIRMAN: Q. You would consider it what? A. Very im-
proper.

MR. SuagHT: Q. Too high an amount? A. Yes; and it is very
evident from the statement itself that the amount set up as depreciation is
too high. If you will look at the last column on the page you will find
that after paying its obligations from its incomes and setting up $633,000
the company fell short of earning that $633,000 by $571,000.

Do you correlate earnings with depreciation, then, to that in-
timate extent? A. Absolutely. There is a certain order in which pay-
ments must be made, and to acerue depreciation to take care of your
stockholders before you take care of your creditors is the height of folly.
Even setting it up here is purely a methematical calculation, because
it has never been earned; it has no relation to the physical condition of
the property.

Q. There has heen a physical depreciation, of course, over a forty-
year period, certain depreciable assets, has there not? A. There is
bound to be some. As to the extent of that I would have to be advised by
an engineer.

* %* * * *

Q. That is the way you get at that. And then the taxes in the next
column, and then you bring out the red figures in the last column that I
have just added up with you. Now, this $30,000 a year on the bond issue,
why do you take that off in getting at the question of whether you are
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operating at a loss or a profit? A. Because it is a necessary expenditure.

Q. It comes in there, or does it come in, because it is a value on that
amount of money which is invested in there? A. Sure.

Q. The rate being 5 per cent.¢ A. 5 per cent.

Q. With your figure of $1,400,000 money invested in there, the bal-
ance went in by the promoters or the people who controlled the company
in some other form than as the fruits of a bond issue? A. That is
correct.

. So those behind the venture had invested in the venture not only
the $600,000 which was paid for the bonds and went in, but $800,000 more
in cash which went in by another route? A. That is correct.

Q. And I suppose tbe fair value of the $800,000 in money that went
in, either as common stock or in some other way, the same value would
attach to that money $800,000 as would attach to the $600,000 that went
in as a bond-issue fruit? A. May I have that question read?

Is it fair to say that the other money that went in, the $800,000
odd, would bear the same value as money as the $600,000 that went in as
the fruits of bonds sold? A. Yes, I think that is correet.

So if we add a 5 per cent. on the $800,000 that the people behind
the venture put in, that would give us $40,000 a year more for the value
of the money tied up in the enterprise? A. That is correct.

And I suppose in looking at an enterprise as a whole to see
whether it is making a return or not on the money tied up in it, or
whether it is an enterprise that is operable as a revenue-producing asset
so as to give a surplus over deficits, it is fair to include another $40,000
there for the use of that money which lay in there? A. That would be
very fair.

Now, I am going to do that; so that to the deficit of $971,805.87
for the last twelve years and nine months of that accounting period I can
add, can I not, 1234 times $40,000, which would be $510,000 more, as a
fair value on the cash that the promoters had tied up in the venture in
addition to the bond money? A. That is to provide a theoretical return
to the investors in the property. '

Q. Quite so. A. That is correct.

Q. And to give a bird’s-eye picture of the venture as a commercial
venture in determining whether or not it was one operable at a profit—
if that word “‘operable’’ is a good English word; I am not so sure ahout
it—one capable of operation at a profit—that is a fair item at which to
look, just as the cost of the money included in the bond issue must be
looked at, is it not? A. Yes.

Q. So if we carry that back through the page, or if T add a new
column on your profit or loss column, I would be justified, perhaps, for
the last twelve and three-quarter years, in adding $40,000 a year, as
we have indicated; T wondered why you had not put that in? A. I put
in only the costs and the aceruals.

* %* * * »*
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THE CHAIRMAN: I know all that. I am trying to make out how
it got in there, who put it in there. There was $600,000, apparently.

MR. SLaGHT:. We know how that got in.

THE CHAIRMAN: Where did the rest of it come from ¢

Mg. SLAGHT: Q. How did the rest of the cash get in there? A.
Well, there is $600,000 in capital stock, $600,000 from the bonds, then
there was $133,000 odd came into the company from the International
Traction Company.

Q. Let us get these. Start the other way., With the bonds, we
know, there was $600,000; now, $600,000 was paid in for capital stock—

THE CHAIRMAN: I see that. It was the bond issue for which I
was looking. I saw this $600,000, but that is capital stock ; now you have
got the bond issue.

MR. SLAGHT: Yes. If you look, sir, on page A of Exhibit 67, it
helps us with quite a lot of this problem as to how the money got in.

. What column do we take? A. The last column there.

Q. The last column is capital stock paid in, $600,000; the next is
sundry creditors. We are looking at the liability column; that is an
amount that the Railway Company owed for assets they had not yet
paid for? A. That is correct.

Q. But the International Railway Company, I assume, being not
bankrupt, that is an item of that kind, anyway—a credit in there, not
cash. Then we get the next cash item, $600,000, the bonds; we know
about that. You were going to tell me of some money the International
Traction put in; how much was that? A. It was either International
Traction or the Buffalo Traction paid originally $133,000 plus in excess
of the par value of the stock.

- Q. They put in cash? A. Yes,
And bought the stock at a premium, so to speak, above par? A.
Well, they paid a price above par, but it is rather evident that the cash
went into the coffers of the company and not the steckholders.

Q. Well, that is a good place for it to go; I mean, if they bought
treasury stock that is where it would have to go? A. I am talking of the
premium. Now, if you look at Exhibit 67 under the year 1898, there was
a deficit of $111,507.77.

. That is apparent; it is in the red, then, at that time. A. And
at the end of 1899 there was a surplus of $3,637.65—

Q. So the venture was—

MR. MceCarRTHY: Let him finish,

WirNess: Just wait a moment. But during 1899 there was an
operating loss of $8,088.50, and I have reconciled that, and it takes the
$133,000, really going in there as a donated surplus to wipe off the ac-
cumulated deficits.

Q. Well, I don’t care whether it was donated or whether stock
was taken out for it; some good angels who were interested in the ven-
ture put in in dollars 133,000 more dollars about that year? A. Yes.
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Q. To keep this thing afloat, because it was operating at a deficit the
year before? A. Yes.
And they had to have more money? A. Operated at a deficit
from the first year.

. Yes, from the first year. That gives us a total of $1,333,000 of
cash that we see how it got in. Now, how did the rest get in? A. The
rest of it has been additions to the property paid for by the Interna-
tional Railway Company since 1902.

Out of their other pocket or treasury, but paid for for the

—continued benefit of this Park and River Division? A. Yes.

MR. McOARTHY: Q. Since when? A. Since 1902.

MR. SLAGHT: Q. So I come back, do I, properly so, to my starting
figure of $1,402,000 cash put into this venture from time to time? A. Yes.

And that leaves me still my $800,000 item, which in this set-up
up to the present moment when you and I are discussing it, has not been
put forward as another item, being 5 per cent on the extra capital in,
and meaning $40,000 of a further carrying charge, unless the men were
to let their money lie for forty years without any return on it; so we
are agreed on that, are we not? A. Yes. Unfortunately, they did leave
it lay for forty years without any return, except one year.

Q. Well, let us have that year?

Mg. McCarTHY: Q. What do you say? A. Unfortunately, they
did leave it lay for forty years without any return on it, except one year.

Mg. SLAGHT: Q. Well, Mr. Osler got out at a pretty good time,
didn’t he? That banner year, when the World’s Fair or something was
on, was 1902, and the revenue was $157,000, wasn’t it? A. Yes.

" "And then he sold out, and the International Railway bought in
just after that big cash intake; and sold out the following year, didn’t he?
‘A. I don’t know anything about Mr. Osler.

Tae CHAIRMAN: The big vear was 1901, apparently.

MRg. SragHT: 1901, that is right.

WirNEss: Yes; the Pan-American year.

Mg. SULAGHT: The Pan-American year was 1901; that is the big
year that the then promoters had. Then the Board may remember that
in 1902 we find the agreement of sale where they sold out for $733,000
while the going was good, and assumed the bond issue of $600,000, so
there was sagacity on one end of that deal, apparently. ,

Mg, Mason: But I understand the witness to say of that $733,000
purchase price, in addition to the assumption of the bonds, apparently
$133,000 did not get into the hands of the original shareholders, but got
into the assets of the company in some way?

WitnEss: That is very evident.

Mg. Mason: Q. Well, how was that worked? A. The book shows
a deficit of $111,507.77 at December 31, 1899.

" Where does that appear? A. At the bottom of the column
headed 1898, on Exhibit 67.
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Q. Yes? A. The year headed December, 1898.

. Yes? A. And the red figure at the bottom opposite the line
“surplus’’ is $111,507.77. Now, the books of what is referred to as the
American interests were opened at March 29, 1899, and when those books
were opened the surplus account showed $12,136.08, or a change of $123,-
000 in the surplus account in the three months’ period, and the expenses
and revenues for that three months’ period were taken on to the new
book, so there was nothing accomplished through an operating profit.
But taking the figures from the balance sheet at December, 1898, and ad-
ding to it those balance-sheet figures, the $133,358.46, and deducting the
liabilities that changed at that period—if you will notice the second item
in the liability section, due for advances, there is $257,837.45 in 1898, and
it drops to $15,000 at December, 1899. At March, 1899, it was nothing.
So it took the ecombination of the $133,000, amounts from accounts re-
ceivable, and the cash balance, and the increase in the amount shown for
bonds in that year, and the paying in of the balance of the capital stock,
to liquidate that $257,857 of indebtedness and $11,575 of acerued interest,
to clear up the balance sheet as the American interests took it over. There
is only one place that could have come from, was from either the pur-
chaser advancing the money to clear it up or the sellers of the stock
giving part of the purchase price to clean it up; and it is an odd, ragged
amount, that is not a percentage of increase over the par value of the
stock, is not an even percentage increase.

This is a deduction from these figures. Apparently there is
nothing in Exhibit 2 to account for it, as far as you know? A. No—
any more than the International Railway Company took the property
over at $733,000, and at that time the International Traction Company
was the owner of the stock, either the International Traction Company
or the Buffalo Traction Company, it is not clear, bought this stock at
the beginning of 1899, and there is reference in the minute books of the
American interests taking the property over.

Mg. McCarTHY: Q. The Buffalo Company only paid par for the
bonds, didn’t they? A. No; there was this extra $133,358 paid.

MR. McCarTHY: Oh, yes, that is right.

MRg. RoBerTsON: They did not pay that to the holders of the stock.

Mg. McCarTHY: No.

WiTNEss: From the figures it is evident to me they did not. It
may have passed through the hands of the holders of the stock and come
back in to the company, but the amounts very evidently got back in to the
company to clean up the tail end of the early operation.

Mg. McCarTHY: Q. Was it stock or bonds? A. Stock.

MR. SLagHT: Q. Then, Mr. Schmunk, will you look at this situation
with me; Exhibit 68, as exhibited to the Board—before I go into that:
You told me that unfortunately the gentlemen who had their money in
this only made a profit one year out of the forty; is that correct? A. That
is the only record of dividend, one year out of forty.
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And did you give us what year that is? A. 1901.

Did they pay a dividend? A. Yes, sir.

Of how much? A. $120,000.

You have in Exhibit 68 shown a net loss of $571,400.76, after
allowmg interest on the bonds each year as a carrying charge? A. Yes.

Q. But with making no carrying charge for the other $800,000 or
such amount of other cash money as was in there? A. No, there was
no accrual for any return on the other money.

Q. Now, I want to see if this is a fair way to put it: At the
outset, looking at your exhibit 67, you do not start with as much money
invested in here as you wind up with in 1932—that is without regard to
depreciation, but just cash put in—you start that year with $1,260,000
odd, don’t you?

MR. McCarTHY: Which year?

MR. SLAGHT: 1892 or 1893,

Q. 1893, the figure that you start off with is how much? A. You
mean the investment in the property?

Q. Yes? A. $1,033,394.57.

Q. Then when does it get up to $1,260,000? That would be by 1902,
would it? A. June, 1902.

. Up to #$1,260,000. Take it from June, 1902, at $1,260,000, on
to June, 1932; that would be a thirty-year period if it had not increased
any more at all, if the money in had not inereased, would it not? A. Yes.

Q. Now I am going to take from the $1,260,000 the $600,000 of the
bond issue, because each year in your set-up on Exhibit 68 you have been
paving that and charging the railway with it as a cost of operation, so
to speak; that leaves a figure of $660,000 capital that has been lying in
there for the last thirty years, since 1902, doesn’t it? A. Yes, with
periodical increases between that and 1932.

Q. Well, 1 am going to give myself as a commuter the worst of it
in this sense, and ask you if this is within the proper bounds; if I take
that $660,000 extra capital in there at 5 per cent, that gives me $33,000
a vear, doesn’t it? A. Yes.

. And for thirty vears only, that would be $990,000 loss in the
sense that for thirty years the people behind the enterprise had that
much money lying there for which they got no return at all? A. Yes;
it was their contribution to keeping the road running.

Q. Their contribution to keepmg the road running; and at 5 per
cent that contribution for thirty vears is $990,000, or just short of another
million? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then if we take the ten-year period from 1893 down to 1902,
and take it on your basis of we will say for round figures a million dol-
lars only, there would be $400,000 at 5 per cent, which would be $20,000
a vear loss there, and for ten years that would be $200,000 more? A. Yes

Q. So that I have a grand total of $1,190,000 on that loose way of
going, and there was that much more money at least, and something on
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top of that, lost by the people who supported this venture as a whole,
if you eount it loss not to get any return on your money? A. That is
correct.

Q. And that large figure of— A. Beg pardon; that is correct,
except that during that period they .did get $120,000.

Q. Oh, yes, I must deduet that. So I have got $1,190,000, and for
one period they got $120,000, so I take that off, and that leaves me $1,-
070,000 of a dead loss, as far as no revenue on their money is concerned,
which, if that be a loss to be looked at in appraising the whole venture
by and large as a revenue producer or otherwise, would have to be added
to the $571,000 here? A. Appraising it as a revenue producer, that is
correct.

. How do you account for what I regard as the obsolescence of this
railroad in 19329 T mean, a collection of assets, we will say, carefully
assembled, prudently and economically operated, and we find them ab-
solutely incapable of producing a revenue at all, and the people who keep
on running it pouring money in every year by way of losses; how do you
account for that?

Mg. McCarTHY : How do you mean, pouring money in every year$

MR, SragHT: Losing money every year, at the clip of a hundred
thousand a year.

Q. How do you account for that as an aceountant? A. I cannot
answer that question.

Q. I am going to try to help you. Is it not the fact that interurban
electric railways have met with changed conditions which seriously affect
their revenue, and which are beyond their control of course? A. Yes.

Some of those conditions; and perhaps the primary one being
the advent and the increase in numbers of automobiles, which are a means
of transportation? A. The privately-owned automobile is bound to be
one of the factors. The economis conditions in the last four years have
been another contributing feature.

Q. I agree with you; I will come to that in a moment. A. How
much weight must be given to each I cannot say.

Q. So that we have at least two factors, the automobile as a com-
petitor—and in that I should like to include motor busses; they are very
serious competitors in transportation nowadays with the interurban elec-
trie roads, are they not? A. You would have to give me specific cases.
If T had knowledge of specific cases I could answer your question; I
cannot answer it generally.

Q. Well, I will give you the ninety busses that the International
Railway have installed on some of their interurban runs, or part of those
ninety$ A. I do not know what your information is, Mr. Slaght, but I
know of no ninety busses on interurban service.

Q. I said part. Most of the ninety busses are in Buffalo, but on the
interurban services Mr. Young told us that the International Railway
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are running busses now; as an accountant you would know that, wouldn’t
you? A. Yes. Do you want the answer?

Q. Yes? A. The International Railway is running one bus, one
trip a day, between Niagara Falls, New York, and Buffalo, New York.
That is the only interurban operation.

Q. The coming in of busses in competition with interurban rail-
ways, I suggest as a whole—leave this railway out for the moment—is
another factor in addition to the privately-owned automobile you men-
tioned, which I suggest has had to do with bringing obsolescence around
the shoulders of interurban electric railways as a general thing; what
do you say? A. Unfortunately your information must be wider than
mine. The only——

Q. Do you know anything about the—— A. Please let me finish.

Q. Certainly. A. The only instances I have knowledge of is where
the bus operation is supplemental to the street-car operation, and not
competitive with it.

Q. Your knowledge does not go outside of that? A. I have had
some fairly wide knowledge on it, but in every instance that I am con-
nected with, and have been connected with, and made surveys, it has been
a supplemental service, not a competitive service,

Q. That, I think, is a very fair answer, and I am not going to ask
you to pass upon competitive service, but I will ask you this: Do you
know the history or not of interurban railway operation in the Province
of Ontario in the last fifteen years? A. I do not.

Q. Then I won’t go into it.

* * * * *

THE CHAIRMAN: Q. Do you know anything about whether trucks
interfered with that or not? A. If your Honour please, I cannot answer
that right now, but I want an opportunity to go into it a little. I know
in a general way that there have been periodically high freight receipts
on this system, speaking of the Park and River, but my recollection is
that it has been during a building activity in connection with the power
development here, and the freight——

Mg. SLAGHT: I think the witness is right.

WirNess: Where the freight came in over the steam roads and was
switched on to the Park and River and delivered to the different power
companies along the line. It has not been a constant source of revenue,
but an irregular source of revenue during these periods. Now, if Mr.
Slaght

MR. SvagHT: I agree with the witness in that, and I think when we
lit on that year by a fluke and he gave me their $37,000 of freight, in all
probability if we take the trouble to analyze these years we will find
that was a very high yvear, almost a peak year, on freight.

MRg. McCarTHY: That was the year the Canadian Niagara and the
Electrical Development Company were building their plants over here,
using the railway.
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MR. SLagaT: Q. You would get a short haul off the steam roads of
freight that would not be normal? A. That would not be normal. If
you would graph the curve on it it would probably look like a jig-saw.

Q. Aside from that—the Chairman asked you this; you may or
may not be able to deal with it—aside from that year that we picked out
having been abnormal, I am suggesting that in the older periods before
trucks came on the scene, the steady or normal freight receipts from this
road were considerably in excess of what they have been the last ten
years; what do you say as to that? A. I have no picture in my mind of
the trend of those freight surveys.

* * * * *

Mr. SLagHT: Q. So, adopting what counsel for the railway sug-
gests—and I adopt it—it would be fair to suggest that the nice freight
revenue at least that we found there one year of $37,000 out of $157.000
has practically forever disappeared in this area, because of the water-
privilege conditions indicated by counsel, and that was an abnormal
revenue that could not be expected to repeat itself? A. I think that is
a fair statement.

* * * * *

No. 4. Counsel on behalf of INTERNATIONAL RAILWAY COM-
PANY reads extracts from Reports of NIJAGARA PARKS COMMIS-
SION to the Governor-in-Council.

Mgr. McCarTHY: Have you got the report of 19327

MRr. SracHT: There is the report for 1932 (producing). We have
given Mr. Runals a lot of our reports heretofore. I do not know whether
he has got that one or not.

Mg, McCarTHY: No, we have not got it here unfortunately.

I am putting in the Forty-seventh Annual Report of the Niagara
Parks Commission, of 1932. It is printed by order of the Legislative
Assembly of Ontario, and I wanted to call particular attention to a state-
ment appearing on page 6 in reference to the falling revenues: Perhaps
it really begins on page 5, and perhaps if I may just read a word or two
from it,—

Mgr. SLAGHT: A report of this kind I submit is not evidence for my
friend or against my clients. It is not evidence that it was communicated
to my friend, or there is no evidence as to just how it was compiled or
reached. One can well understand that matters of a report of this kind
are perhaps not an accurate statement of all the facts connected with
the subjects that the report may refer to. I do not know of any rule
that makes it evidence against my eclients. It may have been compiled
by some particular gentleman who in that year was an officer or a mem-
ber of the Board, or by the Board, but I submit it is not evidence in this
inquiry. :

I furnished it to my friend as a matter of courtesy to make it easy for
him to have access to it. I put it to him that I am not going to consent
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In the Matter t4 jtg being put in as an exhibit, and if he wants to prove it he will have

arvlration to take steps to prove it as evidence.
No. 4. MRg. McCarTHY: It is addressed to the Lieutenant Governor of

Extracts from Ontario, and it is printed pursuant to Section 17 of the Niagara Parks
§f§’;§:§ parks Act, which requires the Commission to publish a report of this kind every
Commission,  year, and I am submitting it as evidence as against the Commission, as a
February Ist,  Jegult of their operations.

Mr. RoBeErTsoN: That is the Act in the Revised Statutes?

MRr. McCarTHY: That is the Act in the Revised Statutes. I have it
here. I read it to the Board early in the proceedings. It is Section 17
of Chapter 31 of the Revised Statutes of Ontario for 1927. It provides,—

“The Commission shall make an annual report for the informa-

“tion of the Legislature, setting forth the receipts and expenditures

“of the year, and such other matters as may appear to them to be

‘““of public interest in relation to the Parks, or as the Lieutenant-

“(Fovernor may direct.”

Tt CHAIRMAN: We will deal with it as we did before. We will
take it subject to the objection,

MR. McCarTHY: I am reading from page 5,—

“When in 1885 it was decided by the Government of Ontario

“to examine into the establishment of a park at Niagara Falls, for

‘““the purpose of restoring scenic effects, and to preserve the same

“from further deterioration, a Commission, consisting of C. S.

¢Gzowski, Chairman, with J. W, Langmuir and J. G. Macdonald, was

“appointed to select land, and to report on the plan to be adopted

“for this improvement as well as the administration of the pro-

“perty. If the Commissioners concluded to so recommend, the

‘“‘Lieutenant-Governor-in-Council, after giving notice that proposals

“would be received from companies willing to undertake the creation

“and maintenance of the park under the Act, might transfer to any

“Trustee, or a Company to be incorporated under The Letters Pat-

‘““ent Aect, or otherwise, the right of acquiring the necessary lands,

‘““subjeet to the ratification of the transfer by resolution of the Leg-

‘‘islative Assembly. Reporting in September, 1885, the Commission-

‘‘ers advised that the possession of the property to be taken should

“be retained by the Province of Ontario, and that its management

‘‘as a free park should be under provinecial control, and not adminis-

‘““tered by private enterprise. For the financial requirements the

“hope was expressed that a scheme would be evolved to provide the

“necessary funds without entailing any permanent burden on the

“province. In a short time it was expected to become self-sustaining.

“To see points of special interest and beauty, requiring the services

“of guides and mechanical appliances, it was recommended that a

“moderate charge be made to reimburse the outlay, and for some

‘““years tolls were collected from foot passengers, and for carriages

“crossing to Cedar Island to view the Upper Rapids, in addition to
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‘‘charges for visitors going under the Horseshoe Falls. The pedes-
‘““trian charge remained until June, 1892, and the carriage charge
‘““until April, 1903, but the revenues from these sources were quite
‘‘disappointing, and at no time amounted to anything but a small
‘“‘proportion of the money necessary for the operation of the park.
‘““The receipts from the lift enabling visitors to go under the falling
‘“waters of the river, on the other hand, were of more importance
‘“‘and added to the revenues considerably. The total amounts re-
‘‘ceived from privileges, tolls and fees since the inception of the
‘“‘park have been as follows.”

And these are the figures that I am asking the Arbitrators to take a

‘note of. The figures begin in 1887 and continue till 1932. I am not

going to read them all. If I take them every ten years I think it will be
sufficient.

In 1887 the total amount received from privileges, tolls and fees
amounted to $1,716.

In 1893—1 think that was the first year the railway was operated—
they jumped to $18,511.

In 1903 they jumped to $20,986.

In 1913, to $30,296.

In 1923 they jumped to $53,197.

In 1928 they reached $180,504.

In 1929, $182,935.

In 1930 they dropped from $182935 to $120,503.

And in 1931 they dropped to $73,590.

And in 1932 they dropped to $21,888,

That is nearly $100,000 drop between 1930 and 1932. 1 would hate
to suggest the Park was obsolete.

MR. SLAGHT: You have not shown any net deficit yet?

MR. McCarTHY: No, I am coming to that.

Then on page 7 there is a statement in regard to this Railway Com-
pany which I would like to read to the Board.

Mg. SuagaT: May I ask—you are putting in, so to speak, or di-
recting attention to the report from page 5 where you started to read,
down to and through the schedule on page 6%

MRg. McCarTHY: I will not read it. It goes on to comment on the
figures. If my friend wants me to I will read the rest.

Mg. SLagHT: I do not want you to read anyv. I want to know what
I shall mark to comment on if necessary in my argument, as having been
brought to the attention of this Board.

MRr. McCarTHY: The article under the head of ¢‘Falling revenues.”’

MR. SLAGHT: Page 6%

MR. McCarTHY: And part of 7.

Then the article on the International Railway on page 7,—

““The International Railway Company, successor to and pur-

“‘chaser of the Niagara Falls Park and River Railway, under agree-
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““ment, dated July 1st, 1902, notified the Commission in July, 1931,

‘‘that a renewal of the operating agreement of December 4th, 1891,

““would not be sought at the expiration of the original 40-year term,

“and that in consequence the said operating agreement would

“terminate on August 31st, 1932, Because of the inconvenience to

““the travelling public to be without service over Labour Day, Mon-

““day, September 5th it was by mutual agreement arranged that the

“Company would continue the electric railway until midnight of

““Sunday, September 11th. The following day a last trip was taken

““over the line, from Chippawa to Queenston, and then the property

““was formally handed over to the Park Commission.

“Built during 1892-1893, the railway was opened for the car-

“riage of passengers on May 24th, 1893, as a single track line, fol-

“lowing the edge of the gorge and the Niagara River throughout

““its length. The rails were laid for the most part on lands belong-

“ing to the Commission. At once successful, arrangements were

“completed for double tracking and the construction completed in

“in 1894. In 1895 the Niagara Gorge Railroad from Niagara Falls,

“New York, to Lewiston was constructed, and by 1899 bridges suf-

“ficient for railway traffic were completed at Niagara Falls and

“Queenston. Thus a route was provided for a belt line service, over-

“looking the gorge and lower rapids, from the Canadian side, and

“running through the gorge, at river level, on the American side.

“This trip was inaugurated with the purchase of the Niagara Falls

“Park and River Railway by American interests and remained an

“attractive feature for tourists for thirty years. A steamboat con-

“nection at Queenston provided a water route to Toronto and for a

““time there was a similar means of communication between Chippawa

“and Buffalo, but the latter proved disappointing and was abandoned.

““Carrying from a million to nearly two millions of passengers, for

‘““a number of years, the traffic fell off rapidly from 1928 and finally

“‘the abandonment of the line was inevitable.”

Then it goes on. I do not know that the rest has to do with us. I
will just stop there.

Mg. SLagHT: You are not referring to anything beyond the word
‘““inevitable’’ there?

MR, McCArRTHY: ‘‘Inevitable’’ on page 7.

MR, SuagHT: I am not trying to restrict you.
I will have to deal with and read, that is all.

Mg. McCartHY: Then I pass to the financial statement as to Oper-
ating Account on page 14. It gives the gross receipts from the various
concessions; that is, the Table Rock House and lunch room, the gross re-
ceipts from the elevator, from souvenir sales, and also from the lunch
room; also the gross receipts from the dining room at the Refectory and
the lunch room there; and from the lunch room at the Glen Inn, and the
souvenir sales there.

I want to know what
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I should have really looked at page 13 first. That is the revenue
and expenditure for the year ending 30th November, 1932. The net
qperating revenue as per schedule 2:

From the Table Rock House was $16,488.34;

the loss from the Refectory was $12,708.02;

from Niagara Glen Inn, the loss was $2,131.40;

from the Queenston Restaurant the loss was $3,741.57;

and the revenue from Brock’s Monument was $2,665.00.

For my friend’s information, so he may know, I propose to refer to
the balance sheet and the revenue and expenditure in connection with
the Park for that year, and also to compare it with previous years which
I will refer to later.

That report I will ask to have marked as an exhibit.

MR. SLAGHT: Now you are on page 12¢

MRr. McCarTHY: The balance sheet begins on page 12, and really
goes over to page 17.

MR. SLAGHT: 1 want to make a further objection that this evidence
is not only inadmissible on the ground I have already put, but is irrele-
vant evidence, not part of the issue here, not the operation of any other
railroad, and confusing and inadmissible.

MRr. McCarTHY: The Board realizes my friend has tendered evidence
and developed evidence of the falling off in revenue and the carriage of
passengers not only on our railway, but also on railways in Buffalo, and
on the Gorge, and that has been accepted. I want to show that there was
a corresponding falling off of revenue in every industry in the Park, and
that it was not confined to the Railway, my friend’s suggestion being that
the railways were the only people who suffered as a result of the de-
pression. I want to show there was a far greater loss suffered by the
Park.

MR. SLaGHT: No, I have not said the Railway was the only industry
that suffered, nor did I introduce depression particularly in my evidence
in showing that for forty years the Railway operated at a loss. T did not
relv on depression at all. There may be candy stores that operated, mil-
linery shops and other industries, over the forty-year period, and as to
those my submission is evidence would not be receivable by the Board,
nor are the activities of the Park Commission relevant or admissible.
That is the additional point of objection. We could spread out and go
into feather factories and the automobile industry, and many others, but
they would not be relevant and it would not be admissible.

Mg, McCarrHY: I quite agree with my friend’s contention that if
he gets into the feather factory it might not be admissible, but 1T do sug-
gest that this railway from its very inception was so intimately con-
cerned with the operations of the Park, as indicated by the portions of
the reports which I read to you in my opening—indicating that the very
object of this railway was to carry passengers to the Park. My friend
is, I take it, from his line of cross-examination going to suggest that it
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was the motor traffic or something else that caused the falling off in the
railway revenue. I am going to suggest there was a similar falling off
in all of the Park enterprises; it was not confined to us—if the falling
off in the revenue is of any significance. For that purpose I was going
to ask the Board to allow me to put in without reading and just note to
my friend the points that I wanted to refer to, the reports from 1927
down to the one which I have just put in. If I may briefly give my
friend the pages I refer to—

MR. SLagHT: 1 want to take the same two objections to the reception
of this evidence.

THE CHAIRMAN: We will treat it as we did the other objections.

MR. SpagHT: So when the Board perhaps later come to consider
the relevancy, admissibility or weight of this matter, I add this to the
observations my friend and I have made about it: Unless and until you
minutely investigate the set-up of these other and different activities op-
erated by the Park over the period in question, you cannot reach a con-
clusion of the kind that I am asking the Board to reach as regards the
railway ; and to go into all those collateral considerations as to the capital
invested, the management, the matters that might affect the business—
all that would have to be gone into to permit of a comparison, and foy
that added reason I submit it is very unsafe, and would make for mistrial
if this Board gave in its consideration of our problem any consideration
whatever to the operation of these other activities by the Park, as a guide
in reaching the conclusion on the operation of the railway.

Mg. McCarTHY: I am only going to refer to gross receipts. So the
operation or the mismanagement or the good management really has no
part in it.

MR. SuagHT: That is one of the real reasons for my objection.

Mg. McCartHY: I am only referring to the gross receipts. I am
not taking the net.

EXHIBIT No. 80: Forty-Seventh Annual Report of the Niagara
Parks Commission for the year 1932,

MRr. McCarTHY: In the Report of 1927, which will be Exhibit 81—
I will put this in better form for the Board later on so it will not be neces-
sary to take down a lot of figures—the gross receipts for the Table Rock
House were $84,000 odd, and the gross receipts from the elevator were
$124,000 odd, the total being $209,000 odd.

In 1928 the total gross receipts from the same source were $200,000
odd.
In 1929 the gross receipts from the same source were $203,000 odd.
The gross receipts in 1930 from the same source dropped to $164,-
000 odd.

In 1931, the total receipts from the Table Rock House dropped to
$114,000 odd. And then according to the exhibit which I put in formerly,
No. 80, in 1932, they dropped to $58,000 odd.

I am not going through all these different things now, but what T
am going to ask leave to do, and I will give my friend a copy of it, is to
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make extracts from those six years showing the gross takings from the
different concessions and industries of the Park; that is, the Table Rock

House, the Refectory, Niagara Glenn Inn, Queenston Restaurant, and.

Brock’s Monument, showing the falling off in gross revenue from all
those sources. I will prepare it in the form of a draft or something of
that kind so it will be easily followed.

In the Maiter
of an
Arbditration
No. 4.
Extracts from

Reports
Niagara Parks
Commission,

EXHIBIT No. 81: Forty-Second Annual Report of the Niagara jg3;

Parks Commission for the year 1927.

EXHIBIT No. 82: Forty-Third Annual Report of the Niagara
Parks Commission for the year 1928.

EXHIBIT No. 83: Forty-Fourth Annual Report of the Niagara
Parks Commission for the year 1929,

EXHIBIT No. 84: Forty-Fifth Annual Report of the Niagara
Parks Commission for the year 1930.

EXHIBIT No. 85: Forty-Sixth Annual Report of the Niagara
Parks Commission for the year 1931.

Mgr. RoBeERTSON: We are not getting 1933¢

MR. McCarTHY: I have asked for 1933, but have not seen it yet.

MR. SLAGHT: It has not been ratified by the Legislature I am told,
whatever that has to do with it. I think the 1933 year is submitted in
1934. It has never been printed or submitted to the Legislature. It is
only in draft form and I do not think has been signed or completed.

. MR. McCarTHY: There is a signed copy in Toronto I know.

Mr. SLagHT; The position I am told is that it has been signed and
an original has been sent to Toronto but has not been submitted to the
Legislature.

MR. McCartHY: They are really addressed to the Lieutenant-
Governor and printed by direction of the Legislature.

Mg. SragHT: They have not been printed yet, Mr. McCarthy.

MR. McCarTHY: I will take the unprinted copy. That will do me.

MR. SLAGHT: This is the only one I have.

Mg. McCarTHY: I will not put it in, Mr. Slaght. T will take my

~extracts if I may.

MRr. SpagHT: I make it available to you subject to my objections
as to its admissibility, and I would like it back.

MR. McCarTHY: I will be very glad to give it back. I will give
extracts from this because my friend wants it back, and if T may perhaps
incorporate what I have to extract from it in the notes.

MR. StagHT: My further submission as to this is that it is subse-
quent to the date of the rights of the parties being determined, which
is August 31, 1932, and not admissible on that additional ground. On
that ground it does seem to me, with great respect, that it cannot be
admissible against me.

TaE CHAIRMAN: What date is this? :

Mg. McCarTHY: It is dated the 11th of June, 1934. It purports to
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be the report of the Commission for the year 1933, the fiscal year ending
in 1933.

THE CHAIRMAN: How would that be evidence as to our present in-
vestigation ?

MR. McCaArRTHY: On the same principle my friend tendered evidence
as to the amount of carriage on the railways during the year 1933, and
on our railway in that period. I am only bringing it up to the date of
our own road.

MR. SLAGHT: I do not recall tendering any evidence of the operation
of their railway after September, 1932, although you may be right. I do
not think you can direet us to any such.

Mg. McCarrHY: Exhibit 79 which 1 have here.

THE CHAIRMAN: I think we had better let it go in anyway subject
to objection.

Mg. McCartHy: The only part I proposed to put in really was
schedule 2 of the operating account for the year ending the 30th of
November, 1933, because that brings me up to the carriage of passengers
on the International Railway and the Gorge Route which my friend
put in as Exhibit 79. I will have to read this to you because my friend
wants this book back.

““The gross receipts from Table Rock House and lunch room

“were as follows: Gross receipts from elevator, $34,744.50; gross

“receipts from souvenir sales, $15,422.77; and gross receipts from

“lunch room were $5,770.84; making a total gross revenue from that

“source of $55,938.11.”

Then from the Refectory, the gross receipts from the dining room
were $9,137.95,

From the lunch room, $8,506.79,

Niagara Glen Inn: Gross receipts from rental were $300, and the
rest has nothing to do with it.

Queenston Restaurant: The gross receipts from rentals and sundry
sales, $819.50.

And Brock’s Monument: The gross receipts from tolls and pamphlet
sales was $2,743.55.

And the Clifton Incline, which that year was operated by the Park,
not by us: Gross receipts from Incline Railway, $1,532.50.

And the gross receipts from souvenir and refreshment sales was
$11,402.03.

MR. SLAGHT: In the Refectory you gave three items, did you carry
out the total of the three?

MR. McCarTHY: I gave only two, the dining room and the lunch
room. The total from the Refectory was $17,644.74, and the total from
the Incline Railway was $12,934.53.

THE CHAIRMAN: All this has been accepted subject to the objection
that none of it is admissible or relevant beyond what has relation to the
Railway. We are simply accepting it subject to that reservation in the
meantime.
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MR. McCarTHY: Then in connection with the statement put in by
our last witness, Mr. Schmunk, Exhibit 67, sheet No. 1—when I say
sheet No. 1, my friend and I called the outside sheet A; it is the second
page, but it is called sheet 1—in reference to the last four items; that
is, A.F.E. 309, 311, 312 and 313, those were extensions made to the head-
race, ete., about the power house, and in regard to which I have to fur-
nish my friend, if I can find them, with some documents which I think
will all be in order by Monday for him—I want to refer to one or two
extracts from the minutes of the Commissioners for Niagara Falls Park.
The first minutes I refer to are the minutes of the 1st of August, 1903,
at page 132 of the minute book. It is under the heading, ‘‘International
Railway Company—New Bridge.”” I do not want to put the book in as
a whole.

““The International Railway Company submitted a sketch plan
“of the carriage and pedestrian bridge proposed to be built over
‘‘their intake, and it was ordered that the plan be approved subject
“to the detail drawings being satisfactory.”

Then the next one is the minutes of September 26, 1903, which are
in the minute book at page 134. This is under the heading, ‘‘Electric
Railway Intake.”

“The Chairman further reported that on the 16th inst. the
‘International Railway Company had submitted a plan for perman-
“ently improving their head-race and that of the town water works
““so as to overcome the annual difficulty from floating ice.

““The plan provides for a joint open raceway extending from
‘the wide intake already constructed by the Canadian Niagara
“Power Company to the power house of the Railway and the gate-
“house of the town flume, with concrete walls similar to the intake
“from the river and a new steel bridge to carry the Railway over
““the enlarged raceway. The plan also provides for a new wheel
““with an extension of the wheelpit within the power house.

“The changes outlined being a decided improvement on the exist-
“ing works, and having the approval of Commissioners Wilkes and
“Campbell, the Superintendent had been instructed to allow the
““works to proceed, and the Chairman’s action was confirmed by the
““Board.”

The next minute T would like to refer to is the minute of the 15th
October, 1903, at page 137. It is under the heading, ‘‘International Rail-
way Double Tracking.”

“The International Railway Company submitted plans for
““double tracking their Railway at two of the points where there is
“‘now only room for a single track, viz: at the end of the Upper
“‘Steel Arch Bridge.

“Ordered that the plans for double track opposite the present
“Dufferin Cafe be approved, provided the Railway Company con-
‘“‘struct suitable concrete platforms for the convenience of the public
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‘“using the trolley lines, the design and construction to be to the
“approval of the Park Superintendent. The consideration of the
¢“plans for double tracking near the Upper Arch Bridge to be re-
¢‘served until the road at that point has been widened.”

I should have read at the same meeting, on the 15th of October,
1903, on the same page 137, ‘‘International Railway Bridge Over Intake.”
I should have read this before I did the one just now. It reads as follows:

«The International Railway Company submitted three plans

“for a carriage bridge over the joint intake of the Railway Com-

“pany and the town.

““Upon consideration it was ordered that plan ‘C’ which provides

“for a steel bridge truss entirely encased with concrete, and with

“an armored conecrete floor be approved, subject to the report on

¢details by the Park Superintendent.”

M=r. Mason: Is that what vou call the highway bridge?

Mg. McCartHY: The highway bridge, yes.

That is all I want to refer to just at the moment, There are others,
but T think perhaps I can save time by looking them over.

Mg, SLAGHT: There are two items there that are relevant to what
my friend has read, that he has not read, and that I want to have in.

Mg. McCarTHY: I have only just got the minute book. T did not
Have a chance to look through it all.

TrE CHAIRMAN: Will vou have these extracts copied?

Mgr. McCarTHY: We will have the extracts copied.

Mr. SpagHT: I am going to read a couple of additional extracts
relevant to these matters that ought to be before the Board with the ones
my friend has put in. I suppose the one document will copy them all.
These various minutes have numbers opposite each, and T want to read
now from page 137 the minute which is No. 120. It reads as follows:
The sub-marginal note is, ‘‘International Ry. Conduit.”

¢«The International Railway Company submitted plans for the
t¢gonstruction of a conduit from their power house in the park to
¢“the Upper Stecel Arch Bridge to protect their wires from ice and

‘“‘frozen spray, and to convey electricity through the park and over

‘‘the bridge for working their railway system on the American side,

“in whole or in part.

“Upon consideration it was decided to refer the application and

“plan to Mr. Irving for his opinion as to what rights the Interna-

¢tional Railway Company possesses under the original charter and

¢‘the amended act of 1 Edward VII, Chap. 86.”

That item you will see refers to the projected ambition to export
power to the American side.

M. McCARTHY: My friend is interpreting that. It was nothing of
the kind. It was equalization.

Mgr. SLacHT: I made a statement the other day to that effect and
you said it had never been considered.

MR. McCartrY: I still say so.
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Mg. SLaGHT: To complete the reference to this minute book, on April
19, 1902, page 29, item 31; the marginal note is, ““C.N.P. Co.’s plans.”

““The Canadian Niagara Power Company submitted an appli-
‘““cation for approval to its plans,

‘(1) Filling out into the River.

‘““(2) Bridge over intake.

“(3) Railway & Town Do.”

The ditto is under the word ‘‘intake”’, so T take it that means ‘“Rail-
way and Town Intake.”’

‘““Ordered that the filling on the shore by the Canadian Niagara
‘“Power Company may he extended about 50 feet beyond the line
““already approved.

“(2) That provision may be made in the shore filling for an
‘‘intake opening to the Town and Railway power houses not exceed-
““ing 125 feet, on the express condition, however, that the parties
‘‘requiring such enlarged intake shall construct the bridge over the
‘“‘same at their own cost and to the approval of the Commissioners.

“(3) That the plans submitted for the bridge construction to
‘“carry the electric railway and the highway across the mouth of
‘“‘the forebay, showing a steel and arch concrete structure faced with
“rock-faced masonrv are approved.”’

* * * * *

No. 5. Extract from Evidence of F. S. BEATTIE, Car-builder.
Called on behalf of INTERNATIONAIL RAILWAY COMPANY.

Q. What is your business? A. I am Superintendent of the Car

Department of the Ottawa Car Manufacturing Company.
You were asked for the reconstruction cost of certain cars be-
longing to the International Railway Company? A. Correct. '
. Did you make any inspection of the cars? A. Yes.

Q. When did you first inspect the cars? A. Two weeks ago last

Saturday.
Where were the cars standing at the time? A.

outside Niagara Falls.

Q. In the open? A. VYes.

Q. What was the nature of your inspection? A. A general in-
spection to size them up, to figure on reproduection.

Q. As of what date were you figuring the reproduction cost?
1932.

Q. Have you prepared a statement showing how vou arrived at
the reproduction cost of those cars? A. Yes, I have.

Q. How long have you been with the Car Department of the Ottawa
Car Manufacturing Company? A. 25 years.

Q. How many cars do the company turn out per year in normal
times? A. In the last twelve years we have turned out about 160 ears.
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Q. How long have you been the Superintendent of the Car Depart-
ment? A. Since 1919.

A % You say you have prepared these statements. May I see them?
. Yes.

MR. McCarTHY: I will file this statement headed: ‘‘Valuation Esti-
mate by Ottawa Car Mfg. Co., Ltd., Ottawa, Ont. For International Rail-
way Co., Buffalo, N.Y.,”” as Exhibit No. 94.

EXHIBIT NO. 94: Valuation estimate by Ottawa Car Manufae-
turing Company, Limited, Ottawa, Ont., for Claimant (9 sheets); pro-
duced by Mr. F. S. Beattie.

* * * * *

CROSS-EXAMINED by MR. SLAGHT.

. You told my friend that in the last twelve years your company
had turned out about 160 cars? A. About that, Mr. Slaght.

Q. In the last five years what have they turned out? A. 22 cars.

.Q. 22 cars in the last five years? A. Yes.

MR. SLaguT: He says they have sold 160 cars in the last twelve years
and 22 in the last five years.

Q. Would they all be sold to the Ottawa Street Railway? A. Yes,
city cars.

Q. Do you do a national business? Do you quote and sell in other
provinces as well as Ontario? A. Yes; right from Vanecouver to Hali-
fax.

So in twelve years you have turned out and sold 160 cars, but
in the last five of those vears you turned out only 22 cars, which would
Jeave us 138 cars in the seven years preceding that time and 22 cars in
the last five vears, and our year of 1932 comes in the centre of the last
five vears? A. Yes.

The entire output of your plant for five years was an order that
the City of Ottawa gave you, which you filled, for 22 cars which were
used on the streets of Ottawa? A. Yes, on the city streets.

Q. And aside from those you have not sold a street car? A. Not
at all.

Q. Not at all in the five years’ time? A. Correct.

Q. I suppose your company have not retrenched particularly? They
were ready for business? A. Yes.

Q. And may T take it that the purchasing power for electrie rail-
way cars has very materially fallen off, when we come down to the year
19322 A. I might explain the reason they bought those was on account
of them changing over.

Tur, CHAIRMAN: Speak louder, please.

Mg. SLAGHT: Q. The reason the City of Ottawa bought those 22
cars was because they were changing over? A. Yes, from a two-man
operation to a one-man operation.

Q. So that accounts for the Ottawa order? A. Yes.

Q. But looking at the purchasing power or market that your firm
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would hope to have for cars, may I take it that the electric car business
by 1932 had tremendously fallen off as against carlier years? A. I
would say ‘“Yes,”” around 1932 it fell off very suddenly.

Q. And for five years you have never had an order for a single
street car other than the 22 cars the City of Ottawa bought because they
were changing their operation from the {wo-man car to the one-man
car? A. Yes, that is the position.

And I gather that your firm did not go out of business but were
ready and looking for business during the five year period? A. Yes,
right. '

. In other words, the manufacture of electric cars has become
awfully tough? A. Yes.

Q. Have your people gone in for manufacturing motor busses?
A. Yes.

Q. When did you start in the manufacture of motor busses? A.
First in 1922, and then that dropped off ; and we started again three years
ago.

Q. You have an English agency for motor busses perhaps? A. Yes.
Q. What firm of motor busses do you represent? A. The As-
sociated Equipment Company.

Q. An English company? A.Yes; we also build bodies for chasses.

Q. For other makes of motor bus? A. Yes.

Q. Would it be fair to say that as far as your experience in the
business is concerned the motor bus is gradually supplanting the electric
railway car? A. No; I would not say that; it all depends on the con-
dition in the railway; the motor bus will never replace mass transporta-
tion; it may be all right for a feeder. That is my personal opinion
about it.

I had not asked you for that, but you are volunteering the
opinion that motor busses will never replace mass transportation? A.
Yes.

How many miles of track for interurban travel, that is barring
city railways, have been built in the Provinee of Ontario in the last five
years? A. I would not like to answer that question.

Do you know of a single mile of track for interurban electric
railway travel that has been constructed in the Province of Ontario
in the last five years—new or extended trackage? A. No.

But you do know of a great many busses purchased and bus
lines established and set up in our province in the last five years?
A. Yes.

Q. Is the bus business good with you? A. It looks very good.

Q. That is around the corner, but has the bus business been fair?
A. TFair.

Whereas the electric car business has been as dead as a door

nail with the exception of the one order you have mentioned? A. Yes.
* * * * *
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No. 6. Extract from Evidence of H. E. RIEXINGER. Engineer.

Called on behalf of INTERNATIONAL RAILWAY COMPANY.
EXAMINED by MR. McCARTHY.

Q. Speaking generally how was the line located with reference to
the river, to the edge of the bank? A. The line was constructed very
close to the edge of the bank. The purpose of the line of course was best
served by having it as close to the bank as possible.

. You as the engineer in that capacity would have a knowledge of
the line? A. Yes.

* * * * *

No. 7. Extract from Evidence of N. D. WILSON, Engineer. Called

on behalf of NJAGARA PARKS COMMISSION.
EXAMINED by MR. SLAGHT.
NORMAN DOUGLAS WILSON, Recalled: Examined by MR.
SLAGHT:

Q. Mr. Wilson, you are a member of the firm of Wilson and Bun-
nell, Consulting Engineers? A. Yes, sir.

Q. I understand you specialize in transit and traffic problems, city
planning and municipal economics? A. That is right.

Q. Your present firm was founded in 1923¢ A. 1In 1923 I entered
partnership with Mr. Bunnell.

Q. You are a graduate of Toronto University in Civil Engineering ¢
A. Yes, sir, B.A.Se. in 1904 and C.E. in 1923.

Q. Then you are a member of the Fngineering Institute of Canada?
A. Yes.

Q. Of the Town Planning Institute of Canada? A. Yes.
Q.

The Institute of Traffic Engineers, New York? A. Yes.

10
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Q. And you are registered as a Professional Engineer in the Prov- -

ince of Ontario? A. Yes, that is correect.

Q. Then I believe you obtained your commission from the Dominion
Government as a Dominion Land Survevor in 19082 A. That is correct.

Q. And of Ontario Land Surveyor in 1909? A. Yes.

Q. Prior to your graduation were you in the office of the Dominion
Bridge Company at Lachine? A. I was for a summer.

Q. After your graduation, with the Toronto and Niagara Power
Company? A. Yes. I was with Mr. W. T. Jennings for a season with
the Toronto and Niagara Power Company.

He was Chief Engineer of that company? A. He was then
Civil Engineer of the Toronto and Niagara Power Company, which was
the transmission line from the Electrical Development Company to To-
ronto.

Q. That is the same Mr. Jennings whose name we find on some of
the earlier plans in this matter? A. That is right.

Your work was in connection with what? A. On refinements
of location, and in preparing plans for the purchase of right of way.
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Q. On the transmission line from Niagara Falls to Toronto? A.
On the transmission line from Niagara Falls to Toronto.

Q. In 1905 you were with the Canadian Pacific Railway on con-
struction of their Toronto and James Bay line? A. For a short while.

Q. Then you went with the Grand Trunk Pacific as instrument man
in Manitoba? A. That is right. I was a year with that company as
instrument man on construction, and draftsman on location. I left them
after a year, and went with the C.P.R., and was a resident engineer on
the C.P.R. construction east of Saskatoon. I had twenty-seven miles of
residency there. Then in the winter of 1907 1 went into the Dominion
Land Surveys in Saskatoon and Alberta. And in the fall of 1909 I
came east. I had an opportunity to get back again to the east, and came
and formed a partnership as municipal engineers in Niagara Falls,
Ontario, and was here for about a year and a half, and then transferred
to Toronto and opened up as a land surveyor in Toronto in 1910. In
1911 I was back in the Falls, making a survey of the crest of Niagara
Falls for International Waterways Commission, the Canadian branch.

In 1912 T left private practice and went with the Toronto Harbour
Commissioners in charge of surveys, and was with them until 1923; in
fact, till the time I went into partnership with Mr. Bunnell. I had
charge of all surveys, land surveys, hydrographic engineering surveys,
in charge of the drafting rooms, in charge of all dredging and reclama-
tion; had charge of all development for the use of the land, and had
charge of the property, and all agrecments for property, and all applica-
tions to the Railway Board.

. That is enough detail along that particular path. Then in
1915¢ A. In 1915 the Harbour Commission went in with the City of
Toronto on the Civie Transportation Committee, on a report for ecivie
transportation for Toronto, and I was assigned to that work, and had
charge of traffic counts and traffic analysis.

In 1920 when the Transportation Commission was coming into being
my services were asked for, and I went to the Transportation Commis-
sion on a part-time arrangement with the Harbour Commission, and
was engaged on the preliminary investigation as to the form of trans-
portation desirable in Toronto.

Q. You were with the T.T.C.? A. With the T.T.C.

. As engineer of traffic study? A. I stayed with them when
they started to operate, September 1, 1921—I continued with them as
engineer of traffic study, organizing that department which had charge
of all traffic counts, and all traffic studies, and was virtually an internal
audit department of the class of service rendered the publie.

Q. TIn 1928 you were appointed Director of the Advisory City Plan-
ning Commission of Toronto? A. Yes. I stayed with the T.T.C.
until I was appointed Director of the Town Planning scheme of 1928.

Q. In 1924 I understand you were retained by the Mexico Tram-
ways Company, and went to Mexico City, and made a report on their

In the Matter
of an
Arbitration
Respondent’s
Evidence.
No. 7.

Norman
Douglas
Wilson,
Examined,
February 6th,
1935.



In the Matter
o] an
Arbitration
Respondent’s
Evidence.
No. 7.
Norman
Douglas
Wilson,
LExamined,
February 6th,
1935.

104

transportation system in Mexico City; is that right? A. That is cor-
rect. I was in Mexico City about four months at the time.

Q. Was there any special problem involved in that? A. It was
a question of combating the jitneys. There were about 2,000 jitneys
combatting the electric railway in Mexico City.

Q. That was the problem involved in that task? A. That and the
question of concessions.

Q. You spent four months in Mexico that year, went back for the
same company in 1926, 1929 and 1930% A. That is right.

Q. And made a report to the joint commission authorized by the
President of the Republic of Mexico on the reorganization of the transit
services of Mexico City? A. That is right. The service T was con-
nected with ended in a general report to the President of the Republic.

Q. In 1925 you were retained by the Brazilian Traction Company
I understand to advise on transit and traffic problems in Brazil? A.
That is right. I am still their traffic advisor. I am still under retainer,
have been for the last ten vears,

Q. How many times have you been to Brazil in that interval? A.
I have been to Brazil eight times in the interval, anywhere from three
to six months at a time. The problem in Brazil is in the two ecities of
Rio de Janeiro and Sao Paulo. There are two concessions operating in
Rio de Janeiro and one in Sao Paulo. The problem there is the modern-
ization of the system to combat the increasing automobile traffic and
modern ideas of transportation.

Q. Rio de Janeiro is a city of a million and a half population, and
Sao Paulo something over a million? A. Yes. I also reported on the
transportation possibilities of Bello Horizonte and of Santos. Bello Hori-
zonte is the capital of Minas Geraes.

Q. And then did you investigate the interurban line at Guarating-
ata? A. Yes.

That is an interurban line? A. It is a small interurban line
that runs out from Guaratingata to a shrine.

Mgz. SLAGHT: I may say in parenthesis, I would not trouble the Board
with this but for some special evidence on interurban traffic conditions T
am going to ask Mr. Wilson to give later. Therefore I want his experience
in this problem to he known.

Your work with the Brazilian Traction included an inspection
of the major Latin-American cities. What for? A. I was asked to
view all the major Latin-American cities on the continent, to see the
public relationships, the type of service they were giving, and the general
traffic conditions in the various cities.

- Q. Did you visit Buenos Aires, Valparaiso, Chile; Santiago, Chile;
I.ima, Peru; Havana, Cuba; and did you go to Portugal, and go to
Paris, France, and London, as well as many of the larger cities in the
United States? A. That is right. I was in Paris and London to look
into the transportation service.
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Q. I see you reported for the City of Kingston? A. Yes, I made
a report for the City of Kingston in Ontario some years ago. Most of
that work has been done by Mr. Bunnell in my absence. I also reported
on the Sandwich-Windsor and Amherstburg Railway. In the last three
months I reported for the Hydro-Electric Power Commission on the City |
of Hamilton transportation.

Q. The Hydro own it now under their Dominion Power transmis-
sion service, the assets they bought there. What about this Latin-Ameri-
can transit experience as in any way applicable to Canadian conditions?
A. The traffic difficulties are the same everywhere at the present time. It
is the entire change in the trend of transportation from the electric rail-
way to the motor, free-wheeling traffic—free-wheeling vehicle on the
streets. There is one thing that foreign experience has given me. Where-
as the motor vehicle arose in North America around 1905 to 1910, and
the change-over has been slow and gradual in the last twenty vears, the
motor car reached both Mexico and South America as a finished product,
and the whole cycle of competition, and the destruction of the monopoly
of the electric railway was lived through in a very short cycle of even five

ears.
g Q. In the Latin-American countries? A. Yes. I have seen a city
in Mexico which had only at the most five motor vehicles in it. The con-
ditions of transportation were exactly as they were thirty years ago.
So I have seen the cycle.

Q. Do you know something especially about the Niagara Falls Park
and River Railway? A. Since my earliest childhood I have seen this
Railway. The whole family always were across the lake pretty nearly
every Saturday afternoon.

. You have ridden on it in your youth? A. T believe I rode on
it the 24th of May it started; if not, the 1st of July.

* * * * *

MR. SLAGHT: Q. Reading from page 29 of the Parks Commission
minute book, item 37 as numbered in the margin; you had better read
that? A. ‘“The Canadian Niagara Power Company submitted an appli-

‘““cation for approval to its plans

“(1) Filling out into the River.

“(2) Bridge over intake.

“(3) Railway & town Do.”

Q. 'The ditto is under the word “‘intake.” A. “Ordered that the

“filling on the shore by the Canadian Niagara Power Co. may be

‘‘extended about 50 feet beyond the line already approved.

¢(2) That provision may be made in the shore filling for an

“intake opening to the Town and Railway power houses not ex-

‘“‘ceeding 125 feet, on the express condition, however, that the parties

“‘requiring such enlarged intake shall construct the Bridge over the

“same at their own cost and to the approval of the Comsrs.”’

* * * * *
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Mg. RoBERTSON: Q. Before leaving the City of Niagara Falls—in
1892 can you give any information as to what sort of place it was, how
big it was? A village, I think; it is called a village in some of the—
A. There was a Town of Niagara Falls clustered around the Grand
Trunk Station at Suspension Bridge, which had its business heart on
Bridge Street. There was also a Village of Niagara Falls up at Lundy’s
Lane, up on the hill behind the Refectory. Now, those two, in the
process of time those two towns and villages grew together, and they
amalgamated in the City of Niagara Falls, I think sometime after 1900.

Q. Well, it was the population about which I was thinking. Have
you any idea 'what the population was in 1892% Very small, wasn’t it?%
A. Obh, very small. I don’t think it would be more than six or seven
thousand all told.

MR. McCarRTHY: Q. Are you speaking of Niagara Falls? A. Niagara
Falls and the Village of Niagara Falls. I will get that figure for you, sir.

MR. RoBErTsON: Well, it may be of some moment, as to whether
anvbody ever thought this would be a railway that was for local purposes.
That may have some bearing on it.

Wirness: It was. The villages were small, and there was at no time
very much local traffic, though there was a traffic, due to the small size
of that town, there was a consistent shoppers’ traffic and such like across
the river, because there were no facilities either for shopping or for
recreation on the Canadian side for the local residents. The town was
too small for that. Now the town has grown sufficiently that those facil-
ities are available on their own side, therefore what little traffic there
was of that nature has simply dwindled away.

MR. McCartHY: Q. Could you get across the river before 1902 %
A. Not before 1902, sir, no.

THE CHAIRMAN: Q. I beg your pardon? A. Not with the railway
before 1902.

Q. What other mode of crossing was there before 1902¢ A. You
could walk across on the Suspension Bridge or take a carriage across.

Q. I beg your pardon? A. You could take a carriage across or
walk across.

The Suspension Bridge? A. The Suspension Bridge at Falls
View, sir; but there were no street cars across the bridge till the Inter-
national took over the Niagara Falls Park & River Railway and instituted
the belt-line service, or instituted the local service to Niagara Falls, New
York.

Mg. SpLagHT: Q. From the Falls View Bridge in Niagara Falls,
having regard to traffic territory on the west side up to Chippawa, what
have you to say? A. It traverses the Park.

Q. Is there any population in the Park? No residential popula-
tion? A. No residential population in the Park whatever. There may
be a few power house employees, there may be Park employees. The
Park is limited by the escarpment and again by the Michigan Central
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Railway at the top of the escarpment, with no means of access. When
you get above the Dufferin Islands, why, you traverse what is now one
single residential estate, and there is absolutely no traffic until you get
to the Village of (‘hlppawa The Village of Chippawa is a v1llage of
about twelve hundred people; it is a suburb of Niagara Falls, and there
is possibly some local traffic between Niagara Falls and Chlppawa

Then what do you say with regard to tourist traffic as affecting
this railway? It, we are told, connected—I am speaking now of 1932
August—with boats from Toronto at Queenston, did it not?
19329

. Yes? A. Oh, yes.

Q. At the time it was abandoned. We have heard that there was
at one time a traffic, either expected or real, I am not sure which, from
the City of Buffalo to come by boat to the Village of Chippawa and then
enjoy the privileges of this railway. Do you know personally whether
that ever materialized in any appreciable way, whether there was ever a—
A. Yes, sir, I do. For some reason, I believe the reason being that
the passengers were afraid to come down the Niagara River as far as
Chippawa, the Railway Company extended their line on some tentative
arrangement with the Park Commissioners as far as Slater’s point, which
is about another mile and a half or two miles further up the river, and
a boat service was instituted between that point and Buffalo to make a
through trip from Toronto to Buffalo. That service was going during
the Pan American Exhibition to my knowledge. I think, if my memory
serves me, the Columbian was the boat that made the trip in question.
How long it lasted after the Pan American year I do not know, but the
traffic apparently was not adequate to support the service, and that boat
service was abandoned and the rails from Slater’s Point to Chippawa
torn up and the terminus left at Chippawa; so that the through traffic
from Toronto to Buffalo or from Buffalo to Toronto via boat to Chippawa
apparently was not satisfactory.

Well, it has been abandoned for several years? A. Oh, it has
been abandoned—

Q. Prior to 193272 A. About twenty-five years.

Q. The only other thing which occurs to me is the Peace Bridge,
which has come into existence; it has been referred to by a real-estate
man. Let us know what factor that might or might not be. When did
it become completed for traffic? A few years ago, some six or seven years
ago, I understand. What, if any, traffic to this road, which has had its
terminus at Chippawa since the Peace Bridge has been built, might this
road expect to enjoy from the Peace Bridge? A. Oh, the Peace Bridge,
of course, would tend undoubtedly to take traffic from this road, in that
the Peace Bridge in an indication of the growth of the motor-car traffic
and the development of highways, and if anybody once got started on
a motor vehicle, either his own or some through bus, I do not see that
he would make any transfer connection to this railway.
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. Then in your opinion would the Peace Bridge as a factor be
likely to bring traffic from Buffalo, people who would have to come by
car to Chippawa and then leave their cars and embark upon this rail-
way? A. I do not think the Peace Bridge in itself will have tremend-
ous influence upon the downward trend in traffic on this road, not in
itself, but it is an indication of the factors that did detract from the
traffic on this road.

The Peace Bridge Canadian terminus is at Fort Erie, and from
there what is the main artery provided for Buffalo traffic coming across
the Peace Bridge to Canada that might be headed for Hamilton or
Toronto? Is there a highway link which connects with the Canadian
end of the Peace Bridge? A. Oh, yes, there are several,

What about the chief highway link? A. 'The chief highway
link would be to sidetrack Niagara Falls entirely and go through Port
Colborne, down to Welland, and on to Hamilton and Toronto.

Q. Is that using the Fonthill-Smithville road? A. That would
he using the Fonthill-Smithville road. That is much the quicker, much
the shorter.

THE CHAIRMAN: I suppose a through route of that kind would elim-
inate the Falls? A. It would, sir.

MR. SLagHT: Unless a man was interested to detour by a longer
route.

TaE CHAIRMAN: In order to see the Falls.

MRg. SpagHT: To see the Falls; and then I don’t know that he would
get out and ride on the electric railway—I don’t know whether he would
or not.

But the through route you indicate for American traffic coming
from Buffalo into Canada, across the Peace Bridge, would have a shorter
mileage and a more direct route by not coming past this railway? A. It
would, sir.

Q. Going as you have indicated, Welland, Fonthill, Smithville?
A. The only purpose of coming this way would be to see the Falls or
to traverse the Boulevard.

* * * * *

MR. SLAGHT: Then I put in this schedule of Canadian Division pas-
sengers and passenger revenue from 1928 to 1931 inclusive as Kxhibit 122.

EXHIBIT 122: Schedule, Canadian Division, passengers and pas-
senger revenue, 1928-29-30-31.

Mg. SLagHT: Q. I won’t spend much time on this, but just interpret
it for us in a word, will you? A. There is shown under each of the said
years the traffic derived from the Belt Line, from the boat traffie, from
other interline traffic and from local traffic. It shows the revenue pas-
sengers and the percentage of revenue passengers derived from those
four sources. It shows also the passenger revenue and the percentage
derived from those four sources for each year, and it shows the average
fare obtained from each of those four sources, and it also shows an aver-
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age obtained from those statistics for the four years 1928 to 1931
inclusive.

Q. Looking at revenue passengers, take the first year, 1928; the
total of revenue passengers that year was 930,000 odd? A. Yes.

Q. And the Belt Line initiated 182,000¢ A. Or 19.6 per cent. of
the total, sir.

Q. 19.6 per cent. of the number of passengers? A. Yes.

Q. This schedule will explain a question that Mr. Robertson raised
some days ago; he called our attention to the fact that in some years in
Mr. Schmunk’s schedule you apparently carried fewer passengers but
had more passenger revenue, and this chart will in part explain that, I
think, will it not? A. It will, sir, yes.

Q. Take 1928; out of 930,000 passengers the Belt Line as a source
of revenue passengers produced in passengers 19.6 per cent. of the total
of the 1009 A. That is right, sir.

. But the passenger revenue from the Belt Line initiated traffic
was $97,000 odd? A. That is right, sir; 60.3 per cent. of all the pas-
senger revenue.

Q. So that was 60.3 per cent. of the total passenger revenue that
year, which in dollars was $161,000¢? A. That is right, sir.

And then the average fare you have indicated in the last column,
from Belt Line passengers was 53.3 per cent., and from local passengers
was 6.5 cents? A. That is right, sir.

Q. So that in that same year, while the railway carried 673,000 local
passengers, the local passengers furnished only 6.5 per cent. of the total
average fares and the Belt Line furnished more than half? A. The local
passengers represented 72.4 per cent. of the traffic and 6.5 per cent. of
the revenue. The marvellous thing of this statistic is to show the absolute
uniformity over those four years.

Mgr. MasoN: Q. Pardon me; you didn’t mean 6.5 of the revenue;
it is 27.17 A. 27.1 per cent—I stand corrected, sir; 27.1 per cent. of the
revenue. The percentage drawn from out of those four sources is very
uniform throughout the years. The average for four years shows that
there is 73.1 per cent. of the passengers carried are local passengers,
representing 29.7 per cent. of the revenue, or, deducting the Belt Line,
there is 80.4 per cent. of all the traffic is what might be called Canadian
traffic.

MRr. SLAGHT: Q. In numerical numbers of passengers, you mean?
A. No, sir—80.4 per cent. of the numerical number of passengers, and
they represent only 41.1 per cent. of the revenue obtained.

Looking at the percentage covering the four years, if you take
away the Belt Line you take away 58.5 per cent. of the revenue? A. You
do, sir.

Q. Then we heard that the Belt Line connection was torn up in
Niagara Falls, New York, in the year 1932¢%
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Mgr. McCarTHY: My friend has made that statement; that is not
true.

MR, SragHT: Discontinued, then. .

MR. McCartHY: That, of course, is not true either.

Mr. RoBerTsoN: That might not follow, of course. That is, people
might still ride on the railway for the very same purpose that they take
the Belt Line trip, but they might not have the convenient access and
the right to ride on both sides on the one fare, and things of that kind.

MR. SuaGHT: We heard, sir, that Belt Line tickets are sold by steam
railways as part of their initiation of traffic. I was wanting to look at
it from the point of view of initiation of traffic and the effect on the
road.

MR. RoBerTsonN: But, Mr. Slaght, of course you have got to under-
stand, all this is very useful, but you have got to read it with some judg-
ment. Mr. Wilson is not attempting at all to tell us that 27.1 per cent.
of the people who got on the line are local people; they may come from
anywhere. .

MRg. SLagHT: Oh, that is true,

MR. RoBERTSON: They board the cars here,

Mgr. SragHT: That is all that means.

Mr. RoBertsoN: That is all the Belt Line traffic means, that people
came that way.

WirNess: It is local traffie, sir.

MR. SLaGHT: Q. Well, what do you mean by loecal traffic? A. I
mean local pick-up fares, either travelling on local tickets sold in the
town or just incidental pick-ups that ride a short distance, but not taking
the Belt Line trip, which is a sightseeing trip, or not being through
passengers from Toronto via boat to Niagara Falls, or by other connect-
ing railways such as the Canadian National or the New York Central
or such like, who might have a ticket sold over this railway to some point
in the Park or to Queenston.

Q. Leaving aside what are the real facts regarding the cutting off
of the previous service from the City of Niagara Falls to the American
edge of the Falls View Bridge, which a witness told us was a distance
of 1,260 feet from the point in the City of Niagara Falls where those
tracks had been taken up to the American end of the Falls View Bridge,
but assuming for the moment that that service was necessarily cut off
from the Park & River Division, what do you say as to whether or not
that would have a material effect on the revenue of the Park & River
Division? A. You would lose 58.5 per cent. of your revenue imme-
diately.

. Mr. Riexinger gave us the facts on the distance from the Niagara
Falls cut-off to the edge of the bridge. Now, regarding this railway as
a means of transit for the purpose for which it was built, what do you
say as to the railway as a whole when it was turned over in August, 1932,

‘as to whether or not it was obsolete?
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MRg. McCarTHY: I object to that question.
* *

* * *

MR. StagHT: Q. What do you say was the condition of this railway
when it was turned over to us in 1932, having regard to it being used as
a transportation system? A. As a railway, as an electric railway, in that
particular site and position and in that particular year and for some
years previously and continuing after, the railway has outlived its use-
fulness and is obsolete.

* * * * *

THE CHAIRMAN: The witness defines what he thinks constitutes a
thing being obsolete; that is his idea of it, at all events.

Mg. SLagHET: Q. What do you mean by that, Mr. Wilson? Elabor-
ate that. A. I believe a thing is obsolete when the service it renders is
no longer desired, when it is passed by in favour of something else which
can take its place.

THE CHAIRMAN: Q. Desired by whom? A. By the user or pro-
spective user. In other words, when a railway cannot get sufficient traffic
to support itself, then if some other facility can take its place and pro-
vide an equivalent service at a lesser cost, or which is more favoured by
the riding publie, then the railway is of no further use or demand, and
is obsolete.

MR. RoBerTSON: Q. Do you mean, Mr. Wilson, by that, that if the
cost of running a railway increased, although there were just as many
people rode on it, if the cost of running increased it would become ob-
solete? A. If there was no service to take its place, sir, it would not be
obsolete, and if there was any possibility of getting a revenue to support
that railway, it would not be obsolete.

Q. Then the mere fact that it does not pay does not make it ob-
solete? A. Not essentially, sir, not entirely.

TaE CHAIRMAN: If you call it obsolete for that reason, I suppose it
was obsolete from the start; it never paid.

MR. SLaGHT: They had some bright years, made a profit sometimes.

TaE CHAIRMAN: When it started it was obsolete, because it did not
pay at the beginning.

MR. McCARTHY : Every railway in Canada and the United States must
be obsolete, according to this man.

WitNEss: That does not follow, sir.

MR. RoBERTSON: Q. Are you able to state any percentage that the
use made of it must fall off before it becomes obsolete? A. No, sir. T
recommend the complete abandonment and the secrapping of this railway,
because it is obsolete in my judgment.

You are not getting my question; that is not what I mean. You
have a railway that is carrying a million passengers, and it doesn’t pay;
assume it doesn’t pay, but there are a million people want to ride on it;
you perhaps would say, well, that railroad was not obsolete, there were
a million people wanted to use it? A. If there was some other facility
could take its place at a less cost, then that railway would be obsolete.
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Q. I am putting to you the case where for a certain part of the
population there is something takes its place, but there is still perhaps
a majority of the people, or a very large number of people, who have
nothing else, and if they haven’t that railway they simply can’t go; I
wondered if you were able to say by proportion or per cent. or anything
else how much the requirements for public use must fall off before it
becomes obsolete ; how does one reach the opinion? A. If there is another
service which can provide that facility at a lesser cost, then there is no
occasion to continue the other service in question, losing money.

Q. But if there is no other thing that provides it for—— A. If
there may be then a social demand, that requires a subsidy, if you eannot
Jack up the fares sufficiently to earry that.

. Well, on this railway there were in the last year that it operated
—that is, in 1931—nearly half a million people riding on it; I mean half
a million revenue passengers? A. That is true, sir, but that is not

Q. That is not enough people? A. Not enough within five times
to even supporting the operating expenses.

Q. Then you are getting back, not to a matter of the demand for it,
but to the amount of money they make. I wonder, Mr. Wilson, if when
you use the word ‘‘obsolete’’ you have not got to be a little careful ; surely
a thing does not become obsolete simply because it does not pay? A. No,
sir, it does not, it may not. A thing may be obsolete in one part of the
world and a first-class thing in another part of the world. What I am
saying is that in this location, in this decade, and as far as we can see into
the future, this railway has served its purpose as a railway, and is done.

Q. Although there were half a million revenue passengers? A. Al-
though there were half a million people willing to ride on it, there were
not sufficient willing to ride on it to make it even

. And perhaps had no other means of getting to and fro unless
they walked? A. I did not say they did not have other means, or that
other means could not be provided for them.

* * * * *

THE CHAIRMAN: He means that it is a road that will no longer pay
its way by earnings.

MR. SLAGHT: Yes, sir.

WirNess: It has no hope of earning its way, and it has no hope, in
my opinion, of attracting traffic. The traffic that formerly went to that
road is now diverted forever to the motor vehicle.

* * * * *

Mg. RoBERTSON: Q. It was carrying more passengers in 1931 than
in 1898 or 18999 A. Yes; but in the meantime the operating expenses of
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MR. SLAGHT: I wish you would explain in further detail, Mr. Wilson,
what you mean by another form of transportation taking the place of
this? A. The fundamental form of transportation now used by the great
majority of the tourists who come to Niagara Falls and vieinity, for
which I believe this railway was designed to serve, now come in their own
automobiles.

Q. Besides those who have their own automobiles or come in the
motor cars of others, what other factor affects this railway as a railway?

MR. RoBERTSON: You are speaking of 1932¢

Mr. SLaGHT: Yes.

WiTNEss: The small amount of travellers left who want to use a
common carrier transportation can be more cheaply and efficiently served
with a bus service.

Mg. SvagHT: Q. Has there been a bus service? A. Yes, since
the railway was abandoned.

MR. McCarTHY: Q. When was the railway abandoned? A. Sep-
tember 11, 1932,

MRr. McCarTHY: Where does that appear in the minutes?

MR. SvagHT: It is a physical fact.

Mgr. McCarTHY: Not vet.

WirNEss: The operation was abandoned.

MRg. Mason: If we say ‘‘ceased to be operative’’ we will get away
from all trouble.

Mgr. SvagaT: What about the changing conditions, if any, since the
early days of the railroad in so far as roads are conecerned? Is that or not
a factor? A. With the growth and increase in the number of automo-
biles, hand in hand, there has been a tremendous increase in the number
of good roads, until almost every side road now is a well developed high-
way for motor traffic.

Q. Was that condition existent to the same extent in the early years
after the railway first started? A. No; there were no roads at all;
until about the War there was not a road in this eountry fit to travel on
in the winter months or the early spring, particularly in the County of
Welland, which was notorious for clay.

Q. What, if any, bearing has the gradual diminution of traffic on
this railway on the answers you have been giving? A. It is due entirely
to the increasing use of the motor vehicle; they have run just parallel.
I have a graph here which shows how the railway falls off as the use of
automobiles goes up.

Q. What does that graph indicate? A. This is plotted from the
passengers carried by the Park and River Division of the International
Railway Company. It also shows the growth of passenger automobile
licenses in the Province of Ontario, and in the States of New York,
Pennsylvania, Ohio, and Michigan, within 300 miles of this railroad.

Mg. McCarTHY: I object; that is not a proper comparison.

MR. SLacHT: Q. What do you say as to whether the decrease in
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traffic has a relationship to the increase in the use of the motor car and
motor busses, and the making of better roads? A. I beg your pardon?

What do you say as to whether or not the decrease of traffic on
the International Railway has not borne a relationship to the increase
in the use of motor cars and motor busses? A. The decline of traffic
on the railway has borne a direct relationship to the increased use of
the motor vehicle.

Q. Have you taken steps to ascertain the ratio of increase of use
of the motor vehicle? A. The increased use of motor vehicles is in direct
proportion to the number of licenses granted year by vear.

Q. Have you secured the figures as to the granting of Licenses ¢
A. Yes.

M=, RoBERTSON: You are not making that as a statement of fact,
surely, Mr. Wilson? A. The ratio?

Q. That the use of motor vehicles is in direct proportion to the
number of licenses granted? A. (No answer).

THE CHAIRMAN : Your relationship, if it exists, must be in reference
to the traffic on this particular railway as compared with traffic in the
same distriet. I do not think you can get beyond that.

* * % * #*

Q. We have already had from Mr. Schmunk Exhibit No. 101, where
the number of passengers carried has been analyzed. What do you say,
if anything, as to the data disclosed on Exhibit 101 as having a bearing
upon the obsolescence or otherwise of the railway turned over to us in
1932 %

MR. McCarTHY : I object to the use of the word ‘‘obsolescence.”

WiTnNEss: The last column, showing the passengers carried, shows a
peak in the year 1923, which was about the beginning of the increased
use of motor cars, and about the commencement of the good roads pro-
gramme. From that point, even during the increasing prosperity of the
country, the traffic fell consistently and continuously until 1929 or 1930,
when it began to take an extra slump due to the depression. So that the
fact is that while the prosperity of the country was climbing to a peak
and the good roads were extending, motor cars were increasing in num-
ber, as the result of which the railways were steadily falling into disuse.

Exhibit No. 79 indicates the passengers carried for the years
1920 to 1930 inclusive, both Fare Passengers and Transfer Passengers,
by the International Railway Company. What do you say as to whether
or not the information disclosed in this Exhibit has any bearing on the
view you have expressed as to the obsolescence of this road you are
valuing? A. These statistics show the same thing, which is the normal
point of electric railways—that they reach their peak around 1923 and
1924 ; and even in the face of the increasing prosperity of the country
they steadily declined, which is entirely in alignment with the increased
use of motor vehicles.

* * * * *
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Mz. RoBertsON: Before Mr. Wilson gets too far away from that,
Exhibit No. 101 is interesting from many points of view. He made a
statement about the year 1923, and said it reached its peak. That is one
way of putting it, but perhaps not the whole story. If you look at Pas-
senger Train Miles in 1925, it is distinctly higher than the passenger train
miles in 1923, and the revenue is distinetly higher, which would indicate
that while perhaps there were more revenue passengers in 1923 they were
spending more money and travelling longer distances by car.

WirNess: No, sir; it indicates that they were using more train mile-
age to gather fare passengers.

Mgr. RoBERTSON: Q. And getting a great deal more money? A.
They had to jack up their fares to do it.

Q. I do not know that? A. They would have to, with the increased
train mileage.

Why could not passengers ride longer distances instead of
shorter distances? A. The passengers carried are fairly consistent; the
sources of traffic are and have been fairly consistent and uniform; every
phase of revenue and every source of revenue has declined.

. Between 1923 and 1925 the passenger revenue went up over
$30,000¢ A. That is right; but your car miles went up, which means
greater expenditure.

Q. I am not talking about expenditure, but about revenue. You
are saying that the peak of use by the people was in 19232 A. Yes.

Q. And I say that there were more people paid fares and they did
not pay more money? A. No, sir; more people paid fares in 1923.

Q. That is what I say. They did not pay more money? A. The
number of passengers carried shows the amount of service rendered.

Q. Surely the distance they are carried has a lot to do with it?
A. 1t has.

Q. Well, your passenger revenue is higher in 1925 and your car
miles are greater. I think you are wrongly generalizing. You get hold
of one item and build your peak on that? A. It is the peak of pas-
sengers carried.

Q. And that does not mean very much? A. (No answer).

Mg. RoBerTsoN : I think you must look more broadly at Exhibit 101
in order to ascertain the real meaning of it.

MR. SLAGHT: Let me develop that, sir.

Q. As Mr. Robertson points out, the year 1925 shows a larger
revenue, and you have said that the peak of passengers carried, that is
the number of people comprising the public who were served, was
reached in 1923? A. Yes.

Q. But, as Mr. Robertson points out, in 1925 the railway got in more
revenue? A. Yes.

Q. In 1925, on the revenue side, does that or not appear to be the
peak? A. That is the peak for revenue.

Q. And with perhaps a year or so varying one way or the other,
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is there a general gradual downhill run from 1925, so far as revenue is
concerned ?

MR. McCarTHY: That is suggestive, I submit.

MER. RoBERTSON: The revenue in 1927 was much higher than in 1923.

MR. SLAGHT: We are speaking of a downhill run from 1925 now, sir.

Mg, RoBERTSON : I know ; but the revenue in 1927 is much higher than
in 1923.

WiTnEss: In general there is a decline from the peak of revenue in
1925 to 1929.

Mrk. RoBerTsoN: It does not appear to me that Exhibit 101 very
definitely and closely reflects the interference of the motor car, and that
there is something else operating here besides the motor traffic.

Mg. SLAGHT: What is it, sir? If we can discuss that now, I would
be glad.

Mrk. RoBerTsoN: Q. Hard times? A. No, sir; that was the very
peak of conditions, when money was very, Very fluid and there was lots
of it.

Mr. McCARTHY: Are you an expert on that too?

A. That is my experience, sir.

Mg, SLAGHT: If there is another element there I would be glad to
discuss it now.

Mg. RoserTsoN: I do not think this Exhibit is to be explained, as
the witness says, by the increased motor traffic.

ME. McCarTHY: I have objected to the witness expressing any
opinion.

Mg. SLAGHT: The Railway Company may have some gentlemen who
will suggest a different reason for it, and then we will have all the reasons.

Q. Looking still at Exhibit No. 79, the Niagara (orge Railroad
Company’s figures are set forth on the second page? A. Yes.

. "What do they refeect so far as this problem is concerned? Where
is the Niagara Gorge Railroad operated? A. Niagara Falls, New York,
to Lewiston.

. That is along the American side of the river? A. Yes, and is
the other leg of the Belt Line service. )

_ What does that series of figures under ‘‘Niagara Gorge Railroad
Company’’ on Exhibit 79 indicate as affecting the problem with which
you are dealing? A. It shows that the peak was reached in 1927, and
from that point on the traffic fell.

Mg, McCarTHY: Did the motor traffic affect that traffic also? A. It
has affected a number of people who have come to Niagara Falls; it
has affected the manner in which they have spent their time when they
came here.

Mg, SLAGHT: Yes. A. When people had to come by railway train
to Niagara Falls they were dumped here and had the day to spend
here. They travelled around the Belt Line and visited the various sights,
and made a day of it.
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MRg. McCARTHY: Are you giving evidence on this? A. Yes; that
is my experience. When they come by motor car they are free to come
and go as they like, and they do not visit points covered by the Belt
Line; they feel free to come again very shortly and are much more
casual. The motor car civilization, sir, is a very peculiar psychology.
If you can explain it to me you can explain a lot; I have been trying
for twenty years to find out the psychology of it.

And that is the best you can do? A. Yes, sir; it is the basis
of all this railway problem; the whole trend of civilization has changed.

MR. SuagHT: What do vou say as to the nature of the traffic on
the Park and River Division that we are valuing here, as to whether
or not it was seasonal? A. It was very seasonal, altogether seasonal.

Q. What do you say as to whether or not there were startling daily
variations or isolated daily variations in traffic? A. The traffic varied
tremendously from day to day, such as the first of July or the fourth
of July or Labour Day, when it jumped out of all proportion to what
it was the day before and the day following.

Is that or not typical of a road that handles tourist traffic? A.
Tt is typical of a road that handles tourist traffic, and particularly typical
of a summer interurban service anywhere. Here is a statement drawn
from the passenger revenue, showing the month by month percentages
obtained on the road.

Q. What does this indicate? A. That is the percentage of pas-
senger revenue obtained month by month for the four years from 1928
to 1931 inclusive.

Q. And the last column shows an average for those four years?
A. Yes.

Q. Without going into detail I see the statement shows that April
is 1.8 per cent. of the whole; May rises to 4.4 per cent.; June, 12.3 per
cent.; July 24.5 per cent.; August 30.0 per cent.; and September drops
down to 14.8 per cent., October to 3.6 per cent. and November to 1.5 per
cent? A. Yes.

EXHIBIT NO. 123: Respondent’s Schedule showing per cent. of
passenger revenue earned monthly on Park and River Division of
(Olaimant’s Railway; produced by Mr. N. D. Wilson.

MR. McCARTHY: Q. What is the source of that information? A.
That, sir, is derived from statistics furnished by the International Rail-
way Company.

Mg. RoBertsoN: Q. Have you compared it with Exhibit No. 105,
which is Mr. Schmunk’s graph? A. I would presume that it was about
the same thing.

I wondered whether you had actually compared it? A. Basie-
ally it is the same.
Mgr. SLagHT: Q. Have you checked it with the graph? A. No, sir.

. Mr. Schmunk’s graph Exhibit No. 105, purports to show by the
month or by the year certain figures. You have not made an analytical
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comparison of the two? A. Noj; this shows passengers carried by
months, and Exhibit No. 123 shows passenger revenue by months.

Mr. RoBertsON: Q. Your Exhibit is as to revenue? A. Yes.

Q. And Mr. Schmunk’s is the number of passengers? A. Yes.

Q. Taking one particular year I notice there are variations$ A.
Yes. '

Mgr. SLaGHT: In the main is there a variation which is substantial
and which we ought to discuss? If one or other is inaccurate, it might
be well to determine it now.

WiTNEss: You will notice that in general the revenue will be much
less in the winter months because in the winter months, except for one or
two trips by the Belt Line carrying a few passengers the traffic is entirely
local traffic.

* * * * *

Q. We will say March, 1932. And, Mr. Wilson, in your enquiries
is it fair for me to say that you received every possible assistance from
the officers of the International Railway Company in furnishing all the
information asked? A. They supplied us with everything we asked for.

Q. Then may I go further and ask you, did you as a result of your
preliminary enquiries, if I may call them such, make any enquiry as to
whether it would be possible in the event of the Commission taking over
the railway to retain the connection with the Gorge Route on the
American side? A. I may say that our understanding was that such
would be possible,

* * * * *

And is it not necessary, in your opinion, for the Park to have a
feeder of some kind to maintain its different institutions such as the Re-
fectory, and so on? A. I think it is desirable that there should be some
common transport.

Q. Apparently the Commissioners thought so, but what is your
view? A. As of 1892¢

. As of any time, as to the desirability of having a feeder through
the Park? A. T think it is desirable at any time to provide a feeder
through the Park, provided you furnish a modern feeder.

Q. Have you made any count in Niagara Falls, Ontario, as to the
amount of traffic here? A. No, sir; I have not.

Q. Have you made any count of the number of automobiles coming
and going in a season here, or crossing the bridges? A. Yes; we have
made that count. I have made inquiries over the bridges. 1 have made
no count of our own; simply inspection sufficient to satisfy.

Q. Have you or not made traffiec counts? A. T have not made a
traffic count.

Have you found out what the taxi services in Niagara Falls,
Ontario? A. T have some statistics of traffic and taxi service.

Q. When did you obtain that? A. . The Parks Commission keep a
record of the amount that is brought to their several concessions by taxis.
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Q. Again you are going to the Parks Commission for your infor-
mation? A. Yes.
Q. You have made one yourself? A. No, sir.

. Do you know what the taxi service charges are¥ A. T do not
think there is any charge for sight-seeing service (sic); I know there is
a charge for taxi service to specific points in the towns and to points in
the Park amounting to 25 cents.

Q. Do you know whether the taxis pay? A. I do not know; I do
not assume they do.

Do you know what efforts were made to establish a feeder for
the Park after the railway discontinued operating? A. Yes; sir; there
was a service provided ; what service the traffic could stand was provided.

Q. Do you know that as a fact? A. I know as a fact that a bus
service was provided through the Park.

Q. Do you know what the service is? A. I do not know the ab-
solute service rendered.

. You do not know where they ran to or where they ran from,
or with what frequency they ran? A. The frequency, of course, is a
matter of seasonal traffic.

Do you know? A. No, I ao not know at the present moment
the absolute frequency of the busses.

. Do you know what the charges are from Queenston to Niagara
Falls, and from Niagara Falls to Chippawa? A. No, I could not say I
do absolutely.

* * * * *

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. McCARTHY:

Mgr. McCarTHY: May we have the question read?

Mg. Mason: The general effect of it was, “To what extent would
the concessions depend on a feeder system?’’

Wirness: There would be, I think, effect upon the concessions as
the result of a feeder system. The amount I could not rightly estimate.
One thing is certain, that there would be no difference to the concessions
by replacement of the Railway by other equivalent facility, which in
turn could be operated materially cheaper.

MRg. McCarTHY: You could not help getting that in.

MR. SLAGHT: You asked him what effect would the feeder system
have, and the comment is unwarranted. The witness- is quite justified
in giving his opinion.

Mg. McCarTHY: He said so.

MR. StacgHT: Your comment was a little sharp I thought. I am
sure it was not so meant.

Mg. McCarTHY: Q. Then in that connection did you consider the
feeder system—when 1 speak of the feeder system, I am speaking of
the means of transportation which you support; that is, automobiles and
the bus system, whatever it was—we do not know what it was—from the
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Queenston Terminal during the year 19332 A. I know this fact, sir,
that from the records there was no diminution of picnie business in
Queenston Heights Park in 1933; in other words the traffic up from the
Queenston Dock was handled Just as effectively by what accommodation
was given,

Q. I thought you told me you did not know what it was.

MR. SragHT: He is telling you now.

MRr. McCarTHY: I hear. Please do not quote your own witness. He
is capable of looking after himself.

Q. I thought you told me you did not know what the system was?
A. Which system ¢

Q. The bus system. A. I know there are busses operating, yes. I
know where they are going and what they are doing. I do not know their
absolute schedule and headway.

Or what they charge? A. Or I do not know what they charge
absolutely, but I know the fares are not materially different. .

Q. Do you know? Have you studied the situation? I would like to
know if you have made a count of the busses or people in the busses.
You have not done that? A. No, sir.

Q. You have not made a count of automobiles? A. No, sir.

Q. Do you think it is possible to form an opinion without making
a traffic count of some kind? A. I certainly do.

Q. Have you ever attempted to do so without having a traffic count
in any of your operations before? A. I generally make traffic counts
if there is any question in my mind as to the need of them.

. Do you know how many people were handled by the busses in
1933% A. I don’t know that figure absolutely, no, sir.

. Do you know how many people were brought here by motor
cars? A. I do not. :

Q. Or how many people the taxis handled? A. No.

MR. RoBERTSON: Do you know how many the busses could handle
within an hour on a rush occasion?

MR. McCarTHY: Q. Do you know how many people the busses could
handle, say within an hour, on rush occasions? A. It depends entirely
on the number of busses thrown in, sir,

Q. Do you know how many busses are available for this service?
A. T know, not from having seen them, but from—call it hearsay.

Q. I do not think you onght to tell us hearsav? A. T know the
fact is—

Q. Is this hearsay? A. No, that is having seen the statistics of
the picnic business at Queenston Heights Park.

Q. Furnished by whom? A. The Parks Commission.

Q. What year? A. 1933.

Q. Are they in their returns? A. I have them.

Q. Are they in their returns? A. For 1933¢

Q. Are they in their report? A. The report is not—I don’t know
whether they are or not, sir,
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Q. If they are, I would like to see them.

MR. RoBerTsON: This is the Queenston Heights Park he is talking
of. They do not need any bus for that, do they?

Mg. MasoN: Yes, they have to get up from the dock.

Mg. McCarTHY: Q. How far is Queenston Heights from the dock,
the picnic grounds? A. About a mile.

Q. As far as that? A. I think so.

Mg. SvagHT: It is an up-hill-pull.

MR. McCarraY: Q. You have seen figures somewhere of picnic
parties. How did they reach the Queenston picnic grounds? By boat,
or train, or how? A. I don’t know, sir.

Q. You don’t know whether they came over by boat, or went down
by busses, or walked? A. I don’t know, sir.

Q. Or whether they came from the other side? A. I don’t know.

* * * * *

MR. SvagHT: Q. Mr. Wilson, will you tell us? A. Obsolescence is
the condition or state of becoming obsolete. It is the increasing inability
of anything to provide acceptable service.

* * * * *

No. 8. Extract from Evidence of A. SEDGWICK, Engineer. Called
on behalf of NTIAGARA PARKS COMMISSION.

EXAMINED by MR. SLAGHT.

Q. Then, Mr. Sedgwick, on the question about which you were asked
yesterday, but we did not finish the subject, you were asked as to modern
bridge building—I think you said you went back twenty-five years on
it—as to what you would say as to whether concrete is used or usable
instead of the stone abutments in the sub-structures? A. Yes.

. What can you tell us as to bridge building, on that subject?
A. Well, to the best of my knowledge concrete is used entirely.

Q. How many years back are you safe to speak of there? A. Well,
I am sure of twenty-five years of my own knowledge, and I believe still
farther back; about since 1905.

Q. Is there a difference in cost or expense in using concrete instead
of the solid stone abutments? A. Oh, yes, very much.

. And is there a difference in durability as between the two?
What would be the differences? A. Well, when they first started out,
of course, it was a new material, and the results were not all that they
should be, but the technique has been improved so in the last ten years,
I would say that you can obtain results——

THE CHAIRMAN: Q. You are stopping your speech with your fingers
now. A. 1 beg your pardon, sir. I would say that in the last ten years
the technique of concrete construction has been so improved that the
results are equal to the best stonework.

Mg. SLaGHT: Q. In bridge construction where the dependable life
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of bridges of which you have spoken has been seventy-five years in some
instances and a hundred years in other instances, having regard to that
life you have given to superstructure, what would you say as to whether
concrete substructure for those periods is or is not by 1932 as dependable
a substructure as the rock would be, the stonework? A. Concrete, you
are speaking of ¢

Q. Yes? A. I would estimate concrete substructures would have
a life of seventy-five to a hundred years.

Q. As to being a satisfactory substructure or not, as compared to
the rock masonry, what do you say? A. Entirely satisfactory.

MR. SvagHT: That is all T have, Mr. McCarthy.

THE CHAIRMAN: Q. Just as a matter of curiosity—don’t take this
down—1I notice that the locks, not on the Welland Canal, because I do
now know about it, but on the previous canal, were all built of the large
block stones; has concrete been substituted for that? A. To the best
of my knowledge, entirely, sir.

Q. The new Welland, is that concrete? A. Yes, sir.

THE CHAIRMAN: It shows quite a change nowadays.

Mr. SvacHT: I wonder, sir, if it might be proper to embody that in-
formation in our official data here?

THE CHAIRMAN: What T have said?

MR. SLAGHT: Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN : If you wish. I thought perhaps I was only straying.
I was interested to know whether that is a general practice.

Mg. SragHT: If I may be permitted to have that made a matter of
record, it might be helpful, or it might not; it has a bearing.

* * * * *

No. 9. Extract from Evidence of H. P. FRID, Contractor. Called
on behalf of NTAGARA PARKS COMMISSION.

EXAMINED by MR. SLAGHT.

Mg. Mason: Q. That on the basis of his statement, the concrete
should be substituted for masonry in a structure that would be built in
1932, you put forward these figures. What is your view as to the fact
as to whether masonry would be substituted for by concrete in building in
19329 A. In our experience with all bridges and foundations of buildings
and structures in the last—since we have been in business, the only rea-
son rather, I might say, we have never ran against masonry below
ground at all; it has been always a concrete superstructure.

MR. McCarTHY: Q. .Superstructure? A. I mean substructure. I do
not know of any job that we have built in twenty years that we have put
in a stone foundation, We have built stone above the ground, but that
is built for architectural effect mainly.

* * * * *
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No. 10. Extract from Evidence of J. L. McDOUGALL, Professor.
Called on behalf of INTERNATIONAL RAILWAY COMPANY.

EXAMINED by MR. McCARTHY.

Q. Mr. McDougall, you are the Assistant Professor of Economics
at Queen’s University, Kingston? A. Yes.

Q. And have been since when? A. 1934.

Q. Kindly state what your qualifications are, Mr. MecDougall ¢

A. TIf I may start from the time of my graduation from the University !

of Toronto in 1921, I was given the Alexander Mackenzie Research Fel-
lowship in Economics and took the M.A. degree in 1923, my thesis being
the History of the Welland Canal.

In 1924 I was an occasional student in the London School of
Economics, London, England.

In 1924 and 1925 I graduated in Arts and Science at Harvard Uni-
versity.

The following year I was Instructor in Economics at the University
of Austin, Texas.

In the year after that I was a Lecturer in Economies at the Univer-
sity of Toronto.

From 1927 to the end of 1931 I was Chief Statistician of the Can-
adian General Securities, Limited.

From the beginning of 1932 I have been connected with Queen’s
University, first as Instructor and latterly as Assistant Professor.

I have also done certain special work, notably the preparation of
the brief of the Canadian Primary Cotton Industry in 1932 for the
Ottawa Imperial Conference.

I have also done work for the Eaton and Simpson organizations in
Toronto, making a survey of the furniture industry in the spring of 1934.

In the summer of last year I did a report on wages and prices for
the two railway companies, the Canadian National Railways and the
Canadian Pacific Railway, acting jointly.

Last month I completed a special study for the Price Spreads Com-
mission.

Q. T take it that for the last several years you have made a study
of price trends? A. Yes, that is the business of an economist.

Q. What is a price trend? A. A price trend is an attempt to express in
one single figure the course of a number of prices of related commodities.

Q. What is a price index? A. The index is the series of figures
which are given for successive periods of time.

Q. Did you trend the prices of labour and materials used in the
construction of the Niagara Falls Park and River Railway from the
years of original construction to August, 1932¢% A. Yes, sir; with par-
ticular reference to the terminal years.

Q. Tell us what you did? A. I might first say that none of the
official series which are available in the Government publications would

In the Matter
of an
Arbitration
Claimant’s
Evidence.

No. 10.

J. L.
McDougall,

F,xamined,
February 19th,
935.



In the Matler
of an
Arbditration
Claimant’s
Evidence.
No. 10.

J. L.
McDougall,
Examined,
February 19th,
1935.

—continued

124

be of significant value for this inquiry; they are all of them indices of
wholesale prices only, and they are made for general use and not for
any particular purpose. Secondly, being indices of wholesale prices they
do not in any way bring in the factor of labour which came into this
property. Certain prices of labour are available from the Department
of Labour, but they are only from 1901 when the Department was first
founded; and therefore I was forced to go outside the range of the of-
ficial series to which resort is usually had, although I was able to supple-
ment my work from those official series.

I took each of the property groups in turn and attempted to build
up what was happening in that particular group. For example, in the
matter of grading I took Exhibit 99 of the witness Ullmann and from it
found out what was done. I then found unit prices which I applied
against the particular operation. For example, for common labour I
relied upon the evidence of the witness Harriman, and for foremen and
stone masons I relied on his evidence and that of the witness Usher, and
built up eomparative figures showing the cost which would be taken in
relation to those activities. The prices of common labour at that date
were $1.50 per day; that figure incidentally, I may add, checks back
against another local price that I was able to get out of the records of
the Welland Canal. In Sessional Papers No. 1 of 1894, 1895, and 1896
there is given a very detailed record of wages paid, and that price of
$1.50 checks against that. And so I worked down in each case. Where
teams were involved I used the figure of $3.50 per ten hour day, which is
again from the testimony of the witness Usher and which again checks
out against the Welland Canal figures.

In track work I was able to determine prices on ballast, on rails, on
ties, and on rail fastenings, from the records of the company, and in
certain cases I was able to check those against outside sources. For ex-
ample, in relation to rails, there were some 2438 tons. On 1300 tons I
had a record of the price delivered in Niagara Falls from the records
of the company. There was also an unstated amount which was pur-
chased at $22.50 per ton delivered. I took a weighted average of these
three prices, assuming that that purchase of an unstated quantity for
the balance of the tonnage involved was made in 1894 when the double
tracking took place, and that gave me a weighted average cost per ton
of $23.62, which compares against a similar price laid down at 1932
but excluding Sales Tax of $53.10 per ton.

For labour I had my common labour rates as shown, and similarly
for foremen.

For bridge ties I was forced to go outside of those records, but I
found that there had been a purchase by the Government of some 7759
feet of oak at $30 per M. for use in the building of a new bridge on the
Welland Canal either in the year ending June 30, 1893, or 1894.

MR. SpagHT: Since this answer is disclosing further data I want to
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take objection to this evidence or to supplement the objection I took in
a preliminary way, that it is entirely irrelevant and not receivable.

THE CHAIRMAN: We are taking this evidence subject to objection.
Your objeetion is noted.

WirnEess: In relation to bridges I took the Exhibits of the witness |

Mantell and the wiiness Robertson and the witness Pratley, and also
certain adjusting Exhibits, and from those Exhibits finding quantities I
applied thereto prices which I was able to get from the enlargement of
the Cornwall Canal.

MR. SLAGHT: Q. From what source? A. The Sessional Paper No.
1, 1894 and 1895.

THE CHAIRMAN: Q. You are speaking of the enlargement of the
Cornwall Canal back in the nineties? A. Yes, 1892, 1893 and 189%4.

Q. These are prices of what? A. Prices of stone masonry, con-
crete work, rock excavation, earth excavation, and so on.

MR, McCARTHY: Q. And the reference was in the Sessional Papers?
A. Yes, the Report of the Auditor General.

Mg. SragHT: Have you those with you? A. Yes. I was able to apply
prices so found to the quantities as shown in those Exhibits.

For the structural steel itself I had the evidence of the witness Man-
tell, which covered better than 95 per cent. of all the structural steel
involved.

For the distribution system I had the testimony of the witness
Baskin and the Exhibits filed by him, and I was able to get a price on
copper from the report of the Board of Inquiry into the Cost of Living,
at Ottawa, supplied by the King’s Printer at Ottawa, 1915—a price on
solid bare copper wire. That price I applied to such wire as was in the
property and I took the differentials away from that price which applied
to other types of cable as in 1932 and applied them to such types as at
the original cost dates. I felt I was justified in that course by the fact
that T had a continnous record of priees of copper in ingot form and solid
bare copper wire from 1890 through to 1933, and the spread between
those two prices was remarkably constant; and since I knew what
entered into the covering and that those prices were also substantially
unchanged it was a defensible technique to use to extend my price series.

MR. SLAGHT: I beg your pardon? A. In the covered cable you have
copper plus covering, and the prices for the material entering into the
covering were about the same in the 1890’s as they were in 1932.

In buildings and structures I have the Exhibits of the witnesses
Robertson and Kunz and their testimony, and from those, getting quan-
tities again I applied prices as mentioned.

For earth work I had a weighted average of 25 separate payments
made upon the Cornwall Canal and applied that weighted average of 36.9,
I think, to earth work,

I had nearly as many prices on rock excavation, and for stone mas-
onry some 14 to 16 prices, a remarkable unanimity also in concrete of $7
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per cubic yard. Applying then the mason’s rates of labour of 30 cents
per hour and common labour 15 cents per hour, I was able to find the
costs of these things in place.

In Power Plant Equipment I had the testimony and Exhibit of the
witness Baskin, and the original authority for expenditure No. 311, which
is Exhibit No. 76. That showed, when compared with the same property,
that I had something more than half of all the power plant equipment.
Now, that authority for expenditure included more than was taken into
the figure of the witness Baskin. I therefore felt that I was entitled to
apply that percentage of change as between the two terminal periods to
the whole of the power plant equipment. I had in those six groups better
than 70 per cent. of all the physical property of the company, but I found
that the relationship between the reproduction cost and the original cost
was as 147.3 per cent. is to 100 per cent.

THE CHAIRMAN: Q. That was the ratio of reproduction cost to
original cost? A. Yes.

Q. 147.3 per cent. to 100 per cent.? A. Yes. I think we might strike
off the 3.

MR. SLaGHT: What did you say about 70 per cent.?# A. I had 70
per cent. of all the property in those six groups, and having determined
comparable totals I thought that as went such a fraction of that par-
ticular group so went the whole.

Q. You assumed the whole? A. Yes.

Mg. McCARTHY: Q. Assuming a weighted trend of prices of 70 per
cent. of labour and materials entering into the construction of the
Niagara Falls Park and River Railway, from the years of original eon-
struction to 1932 be as 100 is to 147.3, and the original cost of the physical
property be $1,421,151.58. (sic) as shown on sheet No. 4 of Exhibit No.
67, state whether or not the fair and reasonable cost of reproduction of
the entire property can be estimated with any reasonable degree of ac-
curacy? A. Yes, I think so.

MR. StaGHT: I object to that question because my friend included
in it the assumption that the original cost of the property was as shown
on Exhibit 67. Exhibit 67 does not purport to show the original cost
of the property ; it purports to show all money put into the property, both
originally and year by year in various amounts over a forty-year period.

Mg, MeCartHY: No, not over a forty-year period.

MR. SLaGgHT: Down to 19329

MR. McCarTHY: No.

MR. SLAGHT: That is my submission. That is what Mr. Schmunk’s
Exhibit 67 purports to show.

MR. McCarrHY: That is not so.

MRg. MasoN: 1902 to 1929.

Mg. SLAGHT: Yes, he did not carry down to 1932. The question put
by counsel to this witness presumes it was all original expenditure, and
I object to any answer being received because the facts in Exhibit 67
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do not warrant the statement contained in the question framed, and the
answer would be entirely misleading.

Mg, MceCartHY: It is assumed that they were as in Exhibit 67.
Assuming that is the original cost, is my question. My friend can take
advantage of that if he likes. It is important to my case.

MR. SLaGgHT: That is not the proper basis, I submit, on which to
accept or reject evidence, because my friend’s own evidence is that this
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balance sheet which includes expenditures at different periods in differ-
ent years in varying amounts, and to assume something which has been
sworn by his own witness not to be true, is I submit, not a proper as-
sumption that you can take for any fanciful purpose, and that that as-
sumption cannot go into the record because it is erroneous.

Mg. McCarrHY: I was going to ask it both ways, and T will ask:
Taking that as the original cost and leading down to 1929—

Mgr. SLagHT: I ask for a ruling on the question, Mr. Chairman?

MRg. McCarTHY: If the original cost has been added to from time
to time up to the time of handing over that is the original cost as far as
1932 is concerned.

MR. SvagHT: That was not your question.

MR. McCarTHY: It was my question. I said if from the years of
original construction to 1932 be as 100 per cent is to 147.3 per cent and
the original cost be the amount I named, $1,421,151.58, as shown on sheet
No. 4 of Exhibit 67, state whether or not the fair and reasonable cost
of the reproduction of the entire property can be estimated with any
reasonable degree of accuracy, and he said it could.

MR. SLagHT: My objection goes farther than that. This witness
not having the information as to the various dates and periods, and the
varving amounts when this money was expended over a forty-year period,
I submit he is not in a position to take his 147.3 per cent, which is a
definite date, and his 100 per cent. which is another definite date, and
answer that question. I think the witness would tell us himself if he
were asked.

Mg. McCarTHY: I do not know what my friend means.

Mgr. MasoN: 1 take it to mean this: Assuming for the purpose of
the question that the cost was $1,402,000. odd, the witness has said that
a unit that would cost $100 in 1892 would cost $147.3 in 1932. The
question rather puts it upon the witness to relate in this proportion of
147.3 per cent and 100 per cent the amount of $1,402,000 odd as of 1893,
while, as a matter of fact in 1893 there was only $1,000,000 and the other
$400,000 was built up at successive periods to which your ratio might
not apply.

Mg. McCartHY: Q. Perhaps you can tell me what vears you con-
sidered in regard to the original cost of the Power Plant? A. That, sir,
was based on that authority for expenditure No. 311, as shown in Exhibit
No. 76.

—continued
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MR. SLAGHT: Do not tell him. Let him answer.

MR. McCARTHY: He has answered.

MR. SvaguT: He has not told you the year.

WirNEss: The year was 1904.

MR. SLAGHT: Practically every item has had some additional ex-
penditure at varying dates.

MRg. McCARTHY : Q. You are speaking of a weighted average? A. Yes.

Q. In getting at your weighted average you take the years of
original construction to 1932. What years did you take as your years of
original construction? A. For practically all the property the period
1894 ; for power plant and equipment, that year to the year 1903 or 1904,
and for 1932 I made use of Baskin’s figures.

Q. Which figure do you mean? A. It was built up from his
Exhibit; the corresponding amounts that 1 took to place against that
$69,528. were first the 2000 h.p. turbine and the 1500 k.w. generator and
the 15 ton crane.

Q. That was in 1903? A. Yes; the A.F.E. covers those.

MR. SLaGHT: You say 1903; the witness says 1903 or 1904.

Mg. McCarTHY: Q. I do not know that I follow you. Let us go back
to the question again. You are dealing with the weighted trend of prices
between the years of original construction. What years had you in mind
when you fixed the years of original construction? A. For practically
all of the property 1892 to 1894 except that part of the equipment as to
which it is not possible to get dependable prices on particular units, I
would say that those things are made to order; they are not commonly
manufactured and sold. Therefore I take the authority for the expendi-
ture on those particular units and compare it with the reproduction cost
of Mr. Baskin, and it has its proportionate effect in the total percentage.

Q. If that was your idea of the years of original construetion, the
original cost was not $1,421,000 odd, but a lesser amount. My friend
was quite correct in his observation. The $1,400,000 odd takes us up to
1931, but your years of original construction stop in 1903 or 1904.

MR. SLAGHT: Does it go to 1931 or to 1929?

MR. McCarTHY: To 1931, I think.

MR. SpagHT: I think it goes to 1929.

MRg. Maso~N: The last blue figure is 1929,

MR. McCarTHY: So it is. The red figure is 1931.

M=r. RoBerTSON: It does not make such a tremendous difference.
The end of 1894 shows $1,207,000.

MR. McCARrTHY: And the end of 1904 shows $1,547,000.

MRr. RoBERTSON: Where do you get that?

Mg. McCarTHY: Adding up sheet 1. You get the cost of the road.
Sheet 1 carries forward the first page of Exhibit 67: $1,260,067.17, and
then the additions up to 1904.

MR. Mason: It is only about $200,000.

MR. RoBERTSON: Yes, your net is only about $200,000 after the end
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of 1894, and you get nearly that amount on sheet No. 1 in 1903 and 1904.
MR. McCaRTHY: Yes; sheets Nos. 3, 4 and 5 are very small; a good
many of them are deductions, of course I think perhaps it would be
fairer if we took it to the end of sheet 1.
Mg. RoBerTsoN: If you add to his power plant equipment in 1904
the construction work also in connection with the power plant in the same
year, that is about $130,000, and then the work at Bowman’s Ravine a
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whole of it. It is not very complicated.

MR. McCarTHY: No, it is not. In asking the question I should have
omitted the figure and said: Assuming the weighted trend of prices of
70 per cent. and of labour and materials entering into the construction
of the Park and River Railway from the years of original construction
to 1932 to be as 100 per cent.. is to 147.3 per cent., can he estimate with a
reasonable degree of certainty what the fair and reasonable cost of repro-
duction is?

WirNEess: Yes.

MR. McCarrHY: How do you do that? A. By applying that per-
centage of trend, the 147 per cent.

Q. To what? A. To the figure of original cost.

* * * * *

THE CHAIRMAN: I want to understand these figures. You get
your 147.3 per cent by basing it on Mr. Ullmann and Mr. Robertson’s
estimates and prices, and you accepted those as a basis for your estimate?
A. Yes.

Q. Herc we have very contradictory evidence as to what these
estimates should be, that is, Robertson’s and Ullmann’s, as against the
other witness; these are very different; you have accepted as conclusive
the estimates of Ullmann and Robertson and based your 147.3 per cent
on those as if they were established?. A. I have taken those figures
as the reproduction cost, yes; I have taken the labour and material items.

Q. You have taken the evidence of these two witnesses as being
conclusive, and you have based your 147.3 per cent on their evidence,
which has been contradicted? A. T took them primarily, sir, for quan-
tities. ’

Q. Not only that, but you took those as final for the cost of re-
production ¢

MR. McCarTtHY: May I sav this is part of my case, and it is based
on the evidence of my own witnesses. At the time these calculations
were made the other gentleman had not given evidence.

Mg. SvagHT: Mr. Maurice Hyvnes has given evidence and the tran-
seript thereof has been in my friend’s hands for some days.

THE CHAIRMAN: Mr. McCarthy is taking that as an assumption—

Mg, McCarTHY: May I suggest that I would not take my opponent’s
evidence for the purposes of my own case. The work this gentleman
has done has taken three weeks.

—continued
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Mg. ROBERTSON: Let me see if I understand the matter aright: First
of all, I understand that you went to some independent sources to get
original costs away back in 1892 and 1893, or about that period? A. Yes.

. For the purpose of seeing whether the original cost as given
in Exhibit 67 was in line with the prevailing costs at that time for sim-
ilar work? A. No, sir; Exhibit 67 does not give quantities, and so I
had no means of—

Q. Then you did not do that? A. No, sir.

Q. You are not able to tell us from any investigation you made
whether $1,200,000 is or is not the fair cost of the work done at that time?
A. Except as you apply my percentage hackward. You can divide your
reproduction cost by that and see where you start—

Q. I want to see where you start?

MER. SLAGHT: It is the case of the hen and the egg again.

MR. McCarTHY: The original cost is more than $1,400,000.

MR. ROBERTSON: Whatever it was, [ want to see what he did. I
thought if we got from him some assistance as to original costs forty
years ago.

Q. You do not tell us anything about that? A. I take as a base
something beyond which I am not competent to go, namely, the quan-
tities and materials in the properties such as rails, ties, ballast, and so
on, and then I determine from these sources and various other places—

_ Let me state this: Away back in 1893 and 1894 when the railway
was being built, I thought you said to Mr. McCarthy that you had access
to sources of information which told you what rails cost and what labour
cost? A. Yes.

Q. So that knowing how much rail had been laid and what grading
had been done, you were able to say something as to whether the original
cost as given for these various things was approximately right. I do
not mean that you find split up in various items in Exhibit 67 the item
of $1,000,000 odd, but that vou were able in some way to check up the
original cost of these things? A. I was able to determine unit prices
such as $23.62 per ton for rails laid down.

Q. Did you make any computation as to how much this railway
cost originally, or any part of it? A. That is the kind of thing I could
not do without an inventory of the property as at those dates. '

Mg. SLagHT: Certainly.

Wirness: 1 take your reproduction cost items as being in effect a
representation of the property you had there.

MR, RoBerTson: What did you apply to that?

Mgz, StagaT: That is all wrong; they did not have Bowman’s Ravine
then.

Mg. McCarTHY: Please do not interrupt.

Mg. RoBerTsox: Q. What did you apply,—the unit costs of 30
or 40 years ago?. A. Yes; that is exactly what I did.
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. Q. So that in that way you did get a cheek on the original cost? A.
es.

Q. An independent and outside check apart from the books of this
company? A. Yes.

Q. You had certain quantities and you got your unit prices from
an independent source? A. Yes.

. And if you apply that to what we have here you get an inde-
pendent check? A. Yes.

Q. Between that period forty years ago and 1932 did you have
anything to guide you? A. T was forced to concentrate, because of
limited time, on terminal years; I could not do the same thing for each
individual year, although it is relatively a matter of mechanical routine
to establish prices at five year intervals.

Q. I noticed you used some such expression as this in chief: There
was a fairly constant trend during the period? A. T think what I said
was that there was a relationship as betwecen related prices. In the
case of copper wire I said there was a constant spread between the cop-
per in the ingot form and the price of the solid bare copper wire.

Q. What I want to know is this—it is a very simple matter and
does not require an expert to add up the reproduction costs in Exhibit 7
and find out what percentage they bear to the original cost as given in
Exhibit 67. If that gives you 147.3 per cent I do not know that that
helps anybody very much, because that is purely arithmetic? A. What
I did bad no relation to Exhibit 67 except with respect to power plant
equipment. I was taking my physical quantities—

Q. Take Mr. Ullmann’s evidence. In your evidence in chief T did
not observe that you said anything about taking prices from Mr. Ull-
mann’s evidence. You did say you took quantities, and the same as to
the evidence of other witnesses, and I was surprised to hear you say a
little while ago that you took prices? A. Then I have to apologize.
What happened was this: he gave me in a particular item, for example,
the surfacing of the grade before the laying of the ballast, one foreman
and 15 labourers, and those men worked a good number of days. That
is an operation that has not changed in any way between those two
periods. I have found his price for foremen and his price for labourers
and multiplied by the number of days of labour and got a total for
those labourers as at 1932. I took the same foremen and the same
number of days and similar labourers and applied the labour rates of
$3 and $1.50. '

Q. Where did you get that? A. That was out of the testimony
of the witness Harriman and the witness Usher.

Q. We have heard that evidence too and we will have to make u
our minds as to how much weight we are going to attach to it, but did
vou have any independent figure? A. Yes, I had the Welland Canal
figures. There you get rates on common labour of $1.25 and $1.50 per
ten hour day.
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In the Mattcr Q. When? A. 1892, 1893, 1894 and 1895.

! a
Arbitration Q. What have you got that will help us as to the reproduction
Claimants €nd? A, T took that as basic data and did not go behind it; I have
Evidence. 1m0 knowledge as to whether those were or not proper figures as of today.

J. L.No' 10 Mgr. Mason: Q. You took your figures as to reproduction cost from

McDougall,  the figures supplied by Ullman and other witnesses? A. Yes.

ngabsruary 19th, TaE CHAIRMAN: And you made up your 147.3 per cent. upon the
: basis of what Ullmann and Robertson said? A. Yes, and the other
—continued witnesses.

MR. Masox: Nobody is blaming you, but we want to get at your
basis? A. Yes.

Mgr. RoBerTsoN: Q. In your investigation in the period between
you referred to something in 1915 I think? A. No; between 1892 and
1894; and 1903 and 1904 as to power plant equipment; but I have an
independent check against the testimony of Harriman and Usher here.

. What is that? A. The reports on the Welland Canal.

Q. Which Welland Canal, the recent one? A. The reports of
the operating costs in construction; for construction I had to use the
Cornwall Canal prices, but they had their lock keepers and labourers
doing repairs, and certain repairs on bridges; I had rates from there.

Did not you apply any knowledge or information you got that
you were able to go over as to prices since original construction? A. 1
am sorry, sir; my time would not permit it.

MR. SpagHT: He swallowed the railway witnesses’ prices whole.

THE CHAIRMAN: All this amounts to mere calculation.

MRg. SLAGHT: That is all. It is nice to listen to, of course.

TaE CHAIRMAN: I suppose we could figure from Robertson’s and
Ullman’s figures what the percentage over original cost was. If we
accept his original cost and figure what he arrives at from his evidence
we can make the percentage ourselves.

Mg. SLAGHT: I assume that the Board will not overlook Mr. Hynes’
evidence, whose prices are about one half of what theirs are.

Mg. McCarTHY: That is hardly a fair statement. If I had thought
the Board could make the caleulation—I could not do it—I would not
have called this witness.

. Mr. MeDougall, you took your figures as of 1932 from Exhibit
No. 7 as amended? A. Yes.

What is a weighted average? A. A weighted average, sir, is
an attempt to show the movement of various prices weighted in propor-
tion to their importance. It is the old story of the man who was selling
the rabbit sausage which he said was half horse and half rabbit, but
upon being pressed he said it was one horse to one rabbit, and if you
weighed it it was 99 per cent. horse and 1 per cent. rabbit. My result
is from weighting each of the units at a price in proportion to its im-
portance in the property.
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THE CHAIRMAN: My difficulty is that all this result may show that
you had two rabbits instead of one.

MRr. SragHT: Besides, this is not war time.

MRr. McCarTHY: My difficulty is that T am conducting only my own
case.

THE CHAIRMAN: You assume that your witnesses’s figures are cor-
rect, and you are asking for a computation on that assumption?

MR. McCarTHY: Yes; I cannot do anything else.

THE CHAIRMAN: The difficulty is that if the assumption is wrong
the result is wrong.

Mg. McCarTHY: That may be. I am showing how the assumption is
applied. o

THE CHAIRMAN: And that resolves itself into a mere calculation.

Mg. McCarTHY: You say it is a mere calculation. I do not know
how to do it. You may know how.

THE CHAIRMAN: I say this witness is giving his own method of
calculation on assumptions.

MRr. McCarTHY: It is bound to be. You did not expect me to go
to the expense of having this witness work out my friend’s prices?

THE CHAIRMAN: Oh, no.

Wirness: May I speak?

THE CHAIRMAN: Yes.

WirNEss: There may be difficulty as between the two sides as to
the prices to be applied at 1932. As I understand it there is very much
less difficulty in agreement as to the physical quantities, and since my
work and my results used those quantities and prices which I determined
independently, and on which I think I ean stand on each individual
one, then so far as that portion of the property is concerned the figure
which I produce is, I think, a dependable figure.

Mgr. MasoN: Q. On the original prices? A. Yes.

Mr. SpagHT: Q. You did not determine any independent prices
for 19322 A. (No answer).

MR. MasoN: Q. Did you take all the buildings into your calcula-
tion? A. I took only the power house and the Clifton Incline.

MRr. SrLagHT: Q. Why? A. A matter of time; I wanted to do
others and had not the time.

Mg. Mason: Q. As a matter of fact, you were able to get at certain
well recognized costs as of 1893 and 1894 which you could check, such
as rails and ties? A. And masonry and earth excavation.

Q. But you recognized the fact that in the construction of a
diversity of materials used in this railway there would be a number
that vou could not check? A. KExactly, and those were set aside.

Mg. Mason: I think this witness has added something in addition
to computation. He has pointed to some confirmatory records of orig-
inal cost, so far as they are available.

THE CHAIRMAN: Yes; he has given his own evidence as to that,
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and as to a good deal of the balance he bases it on the evidence of other
witnesses.

MR, MasonN: He must, yes.

MR. RoBERTSON: Q. Quite apart from your special investigation
into this matter, have you, as the result of your other work and other
experience, a knowledge of price trend as applied to labour and building
materials? A. Yes.

* * * * *

Wirness: No. I took the prices for these particular materials and
labour from these Exhibits. I did not attempt to go behind them and
find whether the 1932 price as put in was a proper price. I confined
myself entirely to setting unit prices at 1892 which 1 felt I was com-
pletely secure in acecepting.

THE CHAIRMAN: Q. From the Exhibits? A. No; for the 1892
prices from the records of the company or from the Sessional Papers.

Mg. SragHT: Q. But in 1932 onlv from the Exhibits? A. Yes.

Q.. You have not checked them with the Blue Books at all? A. No.

MR. MasoN: Q. When did the Bureau of Statistics commence? A.
In 1919. It really breaks off from a sub-department of the Department
of Labour. The report of the Board of Inquiry into the Cost of Living,
to which I referred, was prepared in effect by Mr. Coates, who later
became the head of the Dominion Bureau of Statisties.

THE CHAIRMAN: The witness is giving evidence as to prices in 1932
from these Exhibits.

MR. SLAGHT: Yes, that is his evidence.

Q. Is not that correct? A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN: In that case, if his evidence is given from those
Exhibits, the Exhibits themselves are available.

Wirness: May 1 speak, sir?

THE CHAIRMAN: Yes.

WirNess: May I go a shade farther? T feel that what I have done
will stand by itself subject only to any correction as to quantities. I
have given the prices of producing this labour as at 1892 to 1894.

THE CHAIRMAN: I am talking of 1932, You have not given us any
evidence about that, but you are quoting statistics? A. No: for 1932
I am taking Exhibit No. 7, sir.

MRgr. MasoN: And Mr. Ullmann’s and Mr. Robertson’s evidence.

THE CHAIRMAN: Mr. Ullmann’s evidence as to 1932 is his own evi-
dence, and there is no use repeating what some other witness has given.

WirNess: The figures I have developed as original cost—

Tar CHAIRMAN: Q. I am not talking of that. You are undertak-
ing to give evidence as to the price of labour in 1932 on your own oath,

~ MR. McCarTHY: No.

WirnEess: No, sir.

TrE CHAIRMAN: Q. It it is not of your own knowledge, you are
simply quoting statisties on that point?
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MRr. McCartHY: No, no.

Tue CHAIRMAN: Q. I understood you to say that so far as prices
of labour in 1932 on this job are concerned you are quoting statistics?

MR. MasoN: Quoting the evidence.

THE CHAIRMAN: If he is quoting evidence, that is of no consequence.

MR. SLagHT: That is what he is doing, quoting Mr. Ullmann and
Mr. Robertson.

MR. Mason: The witness, I think, says that as to original costs,
whether in 1892 to 1894 or 1903 to 1904, he has obtained independent
information. As to the 1932 costs he is relying upon the evidence of Mr.
McCarthy’s various witnesses. Then he says he takes those two results
and obtains his ratio of 147.3 per cent. to 100 per cent.

* * * * *

TuE CHAIRMAN: So far as he bases his calculations upon certain
assumptions, that is only a computation.

MR. McCaRrTHY: Yes.

Tue CHAIRMAN: I would not pay much attention to that.

Mr. MceCarTHY: Why not?

TuE CHAIRMAN: I say that while his ealculations may be given, his
assumption may be entirely wrong. I do not object to his giving a
computation upon an assumption.

Mg. McCartHY: That is all we are discussing, surely.

Mg. SLagaT: Q. I want to get from you as an expert, on your own
statement, that for 1932 prices you have relied on nothing whatever
except the testimony of certain witnesses in this case, and I want the
names of those witnesses upon whose testimony you have relied¥ A.
Ullmann, Miller, Harriman, Usher, Mantell, Robertson, Pratleyv, Baskin,
Kunz and Schmunk.

Q. In the result you have reached, 147.3 per cent., you have assumed
that the prices stated by each of those gentlemen who did state prices
were absolutely accurate and correct? A. I assumed that they had
prices to be used as reproduction prices, yes.

Answer the question: In reaching 1473, a decimal figure, I
suggest to you that you have assumed that each price given by those
witnesses you have named, where they did give prices, was accurate and
absolutely correct? A. Yes.

TuE CHAIRMAN: Mr. McCarthy said that he has based it all on that

assumption.

* * * * *

No. 11. Extract from Evidence of S. C. MacKENZIE, Contractor.
Oalled on behalf of NTAGARA PARKS COMMISSION.
EXAMINED by MR. SLAGHT.
Before we leave the grading matter, would there be any salvage
value in the grading on this road? I mean if the railway were going to

abandon the road as far as the grading is concerned would there be any '°
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market value for it, or could it be sold to anybody? A. That is the ma-
terial the railway is built of ¢

Q. Yes? A. No, I would not think so.

Q. I do not think there is any dispute about that.

THE CHAIRMAN: No salvage value in the material ?

MR. SraGHT: I am speaking of the grading, sir.

THE CHAIRMAN: Oh, in the material of the grading?

MR. SLaAGHT: Yes. I do not think anybody has been asked about that
before. I do not think it will be controversial. That is the view of Mr.
MacKenzie.

* * * * *

No. 12. Extract from Evidence of G. E. WALLER, Engineer.

Called on behalf of NTAGARA PARKS COMMISSION.
EXAMINED by MR. SLAGHT.

Q. What is your occupation? A. Manager of the Hamilton Street
Railway.

Q. That is the present Hamilton City Street Railway? A. Yes.

Q. I want to run back with you over some of your experience and
qualifications with regard to electric railway matters. From 1889 to
1902 I believe you were agent and despatcher for the Hamilton, Grimsby
and Beamsville Electric Railway? A. Yes.

And from 1902 to 1908 in what capacity were you with that
railway? A. I was General Manager and Secretary.

Q. Of the Hamilton, Grimshy and Beamsville Railway? A. Yes.

Q. And from 1908 to 1912 you were what? A. General Freight
and Passenger Agent of the Hamilton, Grimsby and Beamsville Electric
Railway, the Brantford and Hamilton Flectric Railway, the Hamilton
and Dundas Electric Railway, the Hamilton Radial Electric Railway;
and of the Hamilton Street Railway. During that period I also made
traffic surveys.

Q. All those railways then or afterwards came in under the Do-
minion Power and Transmission Company? A. Yes, from 1908 to
1912 and subsequently they were all controlled by the Dominion Power
and Transmission Company.

Q. Were you an officer of the company? A. Until 1912 I was en-
gaged as I have explained. From 1912 to 1924 or 1925 I was the General
Superintendent of these various railways for the Dominion Power and
Transmission Company, and from 1925 to 1930 I was Vice-President of
the Dominion Power and Transmission Company in charge of railways.

Q. From 1912 to 1924 you were General Superintendent of those
five electric railways, and from 1924 to 1930 you became Vice-President
of the Dominion Power and Transmission Company, Limited, and re-
mained still the Manager of these railways? A, Yes.

Q. And from 1930 to the present time you have been Manager of
the Hamilton Street Railway? A. Yes.

* * * * *
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Q. I want to ask you to tell me something of your experience as
a railway man. Where has these roads run of which you were Manager ¢
The Hamilton, Grimsby and Beamsville Electric Railway ran from
where? A. From Hmilton originally to Grimsby, and subsequently
it was extended to Beamsville, and subsequently again from Beamsville
to Vineland, a distance all told of about 27 miles.

Q. Isthat a double track or single track railway? A. Single track.

Q. I do not know that we need to get the population of those cities.
Hamilton today is about what size? A. 152,000; Grimsby is about
1,500, and Beamsville about 1,100.

. How long did that railway remain under your general superin-
tendence? A. TUntil 1932.

Q. What happened to it then? A. It was taken up and sold.

Q. Taken up and sold? A. Yes, scrapped.

Q. Scrapped in 19329 A. Yes.

. Do you know about the details of it having been scrapped? A.
Yes; I had all to do with it,

Q. You had all to do with that task of tearing it up and dismantling
it? A. Yes.

Q. Generally speaking, what is done with scrap? Where does the
scrap go? Perhaps I need not ask that now, because I am going to ask
you about this railway if you had to scrap it. You had the experience
of running that railway as a going concern for a number of years as
General Superintendent, and then the experience of dismantling it and
selling the secrap? A. Yes.

And you were for years in charge of the Brantford and Ham-
ilton Electric Railway while it was an operating and going concern? A.
Yes.

Q. What happened to that railway? A. I commenced operation
in April, 1907.

Q. That goes pretty well back? A. And it was discontinued in
1931 and scrapped in 1932.

. Were you in at the death of that one? A. T ran the first car
over it and the last car back; I ran the first car over in 1907 and the
last car back before it was scrapped in 1932,

. You were almost a godfather to that railroad. The Hamilton
Radial Electric Railway runs where? A. It was scrapped in 1929. Tt
ran from Hamilton through Burlington to the summer resort and Bur-
lington Village, and ten miles easterly to Oakville, a distance of 2214
miles.

Is that single track or double track? A. Double from Ham-
ilton to Burlington Canal, and single track across Burlington—double
track across the Beach, and single track from the Beach to Oakville.

. A word about the Burlington Beach line. You had charge of
that for years before it was scrapped? A. I had charge of that line
from 1908.
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Q. And you scrapped it? A. Yes.

Q. What type of traffic did you carry there having regard to this
International Railway which is said to be a holiday or sight-seeing rail-
way in part? What type of business did you cater to on the Burlington
road, as I call it, its real name being the Hamilton Radial Electric Rail-
way? A. We had the excursion business to the beach in the summer
months, and also the local traffic from Oakville to Hamilton.

Q. Did you increase your equipment and run in the summer
months for the excursion business? A. Yes; we had to carry the
maximum amount of equipment for the summer months in order to take
care of the rush traffic.

Q. How did your winter business compare with your summer busi-
ness? A. We had a fair local business, The summer business on
certain days was very heavy. We figured that we carried the equipment
for about 90 days in the summer; or as many days as we had sunshine
we had traffic, and as many days as were dull and rainy we had no traffie,
or very light traffic.

Q. And your winter traffic was lighter because of the character
of the business? A. Yes.

Q. Just picnic days or big show days, or any special feature days?
A. Yes. I take it that is the common lot of all summer resorts. We
had very heavy days such as the 21st June, the 1st July, Labour Day,
picnic days, carrying probably as many as ten thousand in one day to
Burlington Beach.

The Hamilton and Dundas Street Railway ran where? A. The
line was about seven miles in length and ran between the Town of Dun-
das with a population of probably 5,500 to the City of Hamilton.

Q. And the Hamilton Street Railway you have told us is a local
city line? A. Yes, a local city line.

Q. We will leave that out of consideration for the moment. Let
me ask you generally whether or not you have familiarized yourself
with other electric railways in Ontario? A. Yes. I do not think there
is an electric railway in Ontario or in Canada that I am not acquainted
with through the Association. I have been a member of the Canadian
Transit Association for many years, and at the present time I am Presi-
dent of the Association, and in that way I get information.

Q. You have been a member of the Canadian Transit Association?
A. Yes,

. Is that an Association of electric railways, or steam railways,
or both? A. Tt comprises entirely electric railways.

Q. And do different electric railways belong as members to that
association? A. Yes.

Q. Have you had to do with bus lines as well? A. Yes, various
companies run bus lines. My experience with bus lines was unfortunate;
I had to co-ordinate all the bus lines out of Hamilton.

And T think you told me you had been honoured by being elected
President of the Canadian Transit Association? A. Yes.
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Q. For how long? A. Just a year; I was Vice-President for
two years,

Q. Exclude any data or information that might have been told
to you as President of your Association, or in any other way, and con-
fine your answers to what you can speak of from your own knowledge
and experience, and if there are any questions you cannot answer from
your own knowledge, say so, so that we may confine your evidence within
the rules. From the experience you tell us you have had with interurban
street railways—you have been General Manager of four of them, and
you say you are familiar with conditions—what can you tell me as to
the general present situation or the situation in 1932 as compared to
the general situation in that line of business for the 15 years preceding
1932¢

Mg. McCarTHY: I suggest that that is not evidence against me in
this case.

Mg. SragHT: I think we had that problem in connection with an-
other witness, and while the Board indicated that we could not go into
the operations of any specific line I was permitted, in that instance at
all events, to ask the witness first if he was familiar with the inter-
urban electric railway business in the province, and then to ask him
what was the history of that business from his experience during a period
of vears. I seek to adduce evidence along those lines.

" TaE CHAIRMAN: We had evidence of general conditions, affecting
the business of electric street railways in general in this province.

MR. SLaGgHT: Yes.

Q. Have you from your experience found that there are or are
not, general conditions in traffic matters which have affected the business
of electrie street railways in the province during the last 15 years?

MR. RoBerTsON: Electric Railways?

MR. SragHT: Yes, electric interurban railways.

Q. Have there been some conditions which have had an influence
and effect upon that business? A. Yes, from experience I do know that
the competition combined with good roads has had a very serious effect
on interurban lines.

Q. 'T'o what kind of competition do you refer? A. T refer to the
private automobile, so far as competition is concerned. As a matter of
fact from 1921 I think the good highways had as much to do with it, in
combination with the private automobiles, as anything could have, be-
cause from 1921 while there were periods that fluctuated up and down,
the good roads were more or less prevalent in 1921 to 1928, that is the
trunk lines, and in addition to the trunk lines there has been a good
roads programme movement throughout the municipalities which has
made good roads possible for automobiles. Prior to 1921, while the auto-
mobile was a factor, the people living off the trunk lines would have to
come to the clectric lines; but in later years there is hardly a road
within the province or within three or four hundred miles probably, that
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is not so improved that the automobile can get out most any time of the
year,

Mg. SLagHET: Q. In what way has that factor affected the business
of interurban street railways generally? A. It bas affected it in this
way, that prior to the good roads and the automobile it was compulsory
for people living in the suburbs to make use of interurban railways. In
a survey on the Grimsby line made in 1922——

MRg. McCarTHY: I do not think we ought to go into the individual
lines.

MRr. SuagHT: I will not ask that.

Q. Your experience has had to do with traffic surveys? A. Yes.

Q. Speaking generally, and basing your evidence on experience,
you told me of the private motor car. Is there any other factor which
has affected the interurban electric railways in a general way in the
province besides private motor cars? A. Motor cars, trucks and busses.

Q. Trucks, of course, would affect railways which carried freight?
A. Yes.

The freight traffic on this road never amounted to much. In
dealing with busses, what can you tell us about the advent of the bus
as to its effect in a general way on interurban electric railways? A. 1
would say that the bus has affected the electric roads to the extent that
people became rubber-minded.

MRr. McCarTHY: Q. What does that mean? A. They want to ride
on rubber instead of steel.

THE CHAIRMAN: I must add that one to my dictionary.

Mg. SpacHT: It has not much to do with elasticity of mind. He says
the people wanted to ride on rubber instead of on steel.

Q. In which way has the advent of the bus and the use of the bus
affected electric railways, either helping them or hurting them? A. It
has contributed to the downfall of electric railways.

So you have given me the improvement in the roads the private
motor car and the bus competition, and you have had experience with
bus lines under your general superintendence? A. Yes; I operated a
bus line out of Hamilton to Port Dover to the south, Brantford to the
west, and Niagara Falls to the east, and to Buffalo, and to Burlington
and to Dundas.

Q. Then vou have been cruel enough to contribute to the downfall
of electric railways in the operation of a bus line? A. Yes.

Q. Have you ridden on this road when it was a going concern? A.
Yes, three or four trips.

Q. When you were a guest? A. Yes.

Q. You were not inspecting it previously as an electric road? A.
No.

Let me ask you what you say in regard to the future of inter-
urban electrie railway business in the province? You have told me of the
downfall in a sense. Being affected adversely, what is your opinion as
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to the future propect of recovering or increasing its business as against
what you find to-day? A. My candid opinion is that the interurban
lines are done.

Q. What do you say as to the future of this railway as from 1932
on had some one desired to attempt to operate it? A. I cannot imagine
any person wanting to operate it.

Q. What do you say as to whether you look forward to an increase
in business from 1932 down to the present time and on into the future?

MR. McCarTHY: 1 object.

Mg. SpagHT: Q. You have had an opportunity of going over the
figures in Mr. Schmunk’s Exhibit 68, which has given us a bird’s-eye
view of forty years of operation of the International Railway, in figures?
A. Yes.

This is the profit and loss account put in by Mr. Schmunk
through my friend Mr. McCarthy as an Exhibit on behalf of the Railway
Company. Looking at this Exhibit it is apparent that from the year
1920 on this division called the Park and River Division of the Inter-
national Railway Company was operated in the red or at a loss from
1920 to September 1932% A. Yes, that is what it indicates.

Q. And that over the entire forty years of operation, showing a
loss some years and a profit other years, the losses have exceeded the
profits by $571,000 odd? A. Yes.

. And that the last twelve years and nine months from 1920 down
to September 1, 1932, have shown a loss of $970,000., although that does
not appear on the Exhibit. What do you say as to whether or not those
figures are in general accord with what we call the downfall of the inter-
urban railways? A. The losses are in common on all suburban lines.

* * * * *

. And you have been here during part of this hearing and you
know about the Power House and the two incline railways, and the line
itself which you have inspected from Chippawa to Queenston and the
various cut-outs and so on. How would you get at, for us, the fair market
value of that railroad and its physical assets as they existed in August
1932 aside from the franchise? What method of valuation would you say
could be safely adopted in reaching its market value or fair value as of
that date? In the first place, has it or not in your opinion, a saleable pos-
sibility as a going concern, as a railroad ¢

MR. MceCarrHY: Is not that a question the Board will have to de-
termine? 1 do not think the witness can determine what is the fair value.

MRr. StagHT: Q. Have you sold railroads of the interurban type?
A. T have scrapped them, sir.

With regard to the railroads you have scrapped was there any
market for them? A. No; we advertised them, but had no offers at all
as a going concern.

MR. McCarTHY: What would you expect?

Mg. SLAGHT: I merely want to get at the evidence.
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Q. What, in your opinion, would be the expectation or possibility
of finding a purchaser for this railway as a going concern, or a railway
to be operated by the purchaser in August, 1932¢ Was there any market
for it as a going concern, a person buying it for the purpose of operating
it or being obliged to operate it? A. There is no market; and if there
was, the revenue received would not warrant the expense of the railroad.

Q. As of 19322 A. Yes.

. A person who acquired this railway in September, 1932, as a
gift or otherwise, could put it to what use? A. If you did not operate
it you could get what value you could get from scrap or sell it as salvage.

Q. What various items as may have a salvage value could be sold,
I suppose? A. Yes.

Q. We will deal with that in some detail later. In expressing your
opinion on that point have you regard to your railway experience and
your knowledge of the operation of railways and the down grade progress
which railroads have made, which you have described in detail? A.
From experience I would say I could speak along those lines.

* * * %* *

No. 13. Extract from Evidence of D. M. CAMPBELL, Engineer.
Called on behalf of NTIAGARA PARKS COMMISSION.

EXAMINED by MR. SLAGHT.
DONALD M. CAMPBELL, Sworn. EXAMINED by MR. SLAGHT.

Q. Mr. Campbell, I want to start and run over your experience in
railway matters. You started as an apprentice in the Old Country? A.
Yes, sir.

Q. In Scotland? A. Yes.

Q. That would be in what year? A. 1876.

Q. I understand you were an apprentice to a firm of construction
engineers over there? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And what sort of work had you experience with in those days
as an apprentice? A. Building. We were builders and contractors.
We built everything—piers for docks for steamships, to go into big
churches, court houses, school houses and that sort of work.

Q. Then in 1882 you were out here, and I believe you started to
work on the Canada Atlantic Railway construction from Ottawa to
Rouse’s Point? A. Yes.

Q. What job or jobs had you on that construction? A. I went
into the equipment shops first, where they built cars, steam railway cars.

Working at the bench? A. Working at the bench, worked on
the trucks and so on. But I did not stay very long there. They sent
me out on the road, travelling from Ottawa to Lacolle, Rouse’s Point,
inspecting the station buildings, freight houses and platforms, and tracks
and switches, and general reporting.

Q. Sort of an inspector? A. Anything I could do myself, I did
it, but usually I reported.
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Q. In 1883 you went to Winnipeg? A. To work for the Canadian
Pacific Railway.

. What sort of work out there? A. I started in the same way
as I started for the Canada Atlantic, but Sir Donald A. Smith, he was
the President then of the Canadian Pacific Ry., and he asked for a man.

MR. McCaRTHY: Do not tell us what Sir Donald Smith said.
MgR. SragHT: That is Lord Strathcona.
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They picked you for some work. What did they pick you for? 1935

What did you do after you were elevated that way? A. KEverything.
I was a confidential agent for him. I used to buy and report on town-
sites, and possibility of railway approach to town-sites. This was private
for the directors.

Q. In 1893 did you begin to take notice of electric railways? A.
Yes.

Q. For the last 24 years— A. 1892 I really commenced electrie
railways,

Q. And then I believe for ten years you were the General Foreman
and Superintendent for the Ottawa Car Company? A. Yes.

Q. Did they build cars? A. Yes.

Q. Is that the company that Mr. Beattie belongs to, the gentleman
who was up here? A. Yes. I was there before him.

Q. For two years you were Chief Engincer for the Nyals Car Com-
pany? A. In Nyals, Ohio.

. What years were thosc? A. 1901 and 1902.

Q. And then for three years you were Chief Engineer for the Brill
Company? A. Yes.

Q. The Cleveland plant? A. Yes.

Q. They are the company, we have heard, that built some of these
venerable cars you have seen out here? A. Yes.

You were ten vears Manager of the Preston Car Company,
until there was a fire over there? A Yes.

Q. Since 1917 I understand you have acted as consultant and
valuator and appraiser for Canadian railroad companies and others inter-
ested? A. Largely, yes.

Q. Have you acted as consultant for the Ontario Railway and
Municipal Board at times? A. I have several times.

And as valuator for the City of Toronto? A. Yes.

Q. Brantford? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Kitchener? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And Kingston? A. Among others, too.

THE CHAIRMAN: Valuator of what?

Mg. SLagaT: What sort of valuations did you make for those cities?
A. Rolling stock and buildings.

Q. Connected with electric railways? A. Yes.

Q. Have you had to do with selling and dismantling of electric
railways? A. Yes, for the last seventeen years. I always gave them a
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value on anything they wanted to dismantle just as I did for this road.
Then they asked me to buy it, and it was a case of noblesse oblige. I
wanted their work, and I did buy it then.

Mg, McCarTHY: Q. What are you talking about? What did you
buy? A. The whole railway.

. What railway? A. The Welland Streetrailway, for instance;
and the St. Thomas Streetrailway, and the Toronto Suburban; Chatham,
Wallaceburg and Lake Erie; Thames Valley and Ingersoll. I forget them
all.

Mg. SLagHT: Q. Did you operate these railroads? A. No, sir.

Q.- You bought the assets? A. I bought the whole thing, and sold
the scrap to the dealers—ascertained the prices from the steel plants
first, and re-rolling prices, and re-laying prices, but I didn’t sell to them.
I always sold to the dealers. Then I salvaged things that were saleable,
and on those I made my profit—sometimes,

Q. A Scotchman does not miss very often? A. Not if he can
help it.

. You have been closely allied apparently with the breaking up
of derelict railroads. What, if anything, has had to do, if you can tell
me, with the necessity for scrapping these railroads that you have been
concerned with in a general way? A. I don’t just understand what you
are aiming at.

Q. You have had to tear apart and scrap a great many electric
railroads, as you have said? A. Yes, I have.

Q. In your opinion are there any conditions—changing times and
changing conditions—which have or have not contributed to the necessity
for the owners scrapping those railroads? A. Yes.

Q. What are some of the conditions? Or what in your view brings
about the necessity for scrapping these interurban railroads? A. Trucks
are really the largest factor.

Q. Anything else? A. No, not much else. Well, during the last
five vears, yes. During the last five years it was economic conditions.

Q. Then trucks? A. But trucks were a large contributing factor
in precipitating the decadence of suburban railways.

. Any other factor besides trucks prior to the last five years?
Take the roads that carry passengers? A. Yes. Another thing was
that the cost of operation increased to such an alarming extent that they
could not pay operating expenses.

Q. Trucks would interfere with electric roads carrying freight,
of ecourse. Has there been any factor or condition that you know of,
that interfered with the carrying of passengers by electric roads during
the past several years? A. No, just the automobile, is the only factor—
and busses to some extent. But when seven years ago 90%, to talk in
percentages—I am not an engineer, at least, I don’t call myself one; I
let other people do that—90% of the busses were operated by private
companies, and about 10% of them by transportation companies; to-day
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90% of them are operated by transportation companies, and about 10%
by private companies. They didn’t wake up soon enough.

Q. Has the passenger carry on’ these interurban railroads been
increasing or decreasing during the past ten or twelve years? A. De-
creasing. The automobile, of course, is the cause of it, the private auto-
mobile.

* * * * *

MR. McCarTHY: I object to that, what he would do.

Mgr. SLagHT: Then we will put it in another way:

Q. Would this road be saleable as a railroad in August, 1932, in
your opinion for the purpose of carrying it on as a going concern and
operating it as a railroad? Would it have a market value of that kind$
A. It was operative at that time, in my estimation.

* * * * *

Q. This Chapman Signal System—you do not give that any value
as scrap? A. No, not as scrap.

Q. Did you consider selling that to another electric railroad? A.
No, it is not suitable for a city system, and there are no interurban sys-
tems now bothering with that. That particular type of installation is
not suitable for block system. In a ecity it is no use.

Q. What were you saying about no interurbans? A. They will
soon be like the ‘“Dodo.”

Q. What is the dodo? A. An extinet bird.

Q. You do not give any value to the Chapman system? A. It has
no scrap value.

* * * * *

. You were in the Preston plant? A. Yes, and in Ottawa, and
with the Brill Company, and with the Nyals Company, and then I was
in steam railways before that. 1 was always a car-builder.

Q. Did you examine these cars down here? A. Yes.

Q. Seven open, two closed, the line car, the snow plow— A. And
the flat car. '

Q. That is the lay-out? A. Yes.

Q. What do you tell us about them, their type and kind? You
cannot run down a Brill car, because you worked there. A. I guess I
built some of those.

Q. Having regard to the modern car they are turning out today
new, what do you say about this as a type of car? A. Oh, it is a
good enough open car—good enough type for the purpose for which it
was used. It was most suitable for the purpose.

. Suitable for the purpose of this line?¥ A. Yes. Nothing wrong
with it in that respect.

* * * * *

Q. Does the power house equipment contain a crane? A. Yes.
Q. Is that included in your figure here? A. Yes.

In the Matter
of an
Arbditration
Respondent’s
Evidence.
No. 13.

Donald M.

Campbell,
Examined,
February 22,
193S.

—continued



In the Matter
of an
Arbitration
Respondent’s
Evidence.
No. 13.
Donald M.

Campbell,
Examined,
February 22,
1935.

—continued

Respondent’s
Evidence.
No. 14,

H. G. Acres,

I'xamined,
March 11th,
1935.

146

Q. What about that crane? Why not sell it? A. Tt is a good
crane.
. Why not sell that to somebody instead of scrapping it? A.
The Hon. Hugh Sutherland built a house in Manitoba, and he put a
faney stair in it. They could not get the stair into the house, so he was
advised to put up the stair first and build the house around it. It would
be the same with this erane. You would have to put up the crane first
and build a house around it to suit the crane. Tt would be one chance
in a thousand that you could get a building that would be adapted to
put the crane in. Otherwise, it is a perfectly good crane. But what is
the use?

* * * ¥* *

Q. Before you leave the stone; is that good ballast? A. TFairly.
It is common stone—not crushed stone, some big and some small. They
got it in some gravel pit I think, by the looks of it, but it is fairly good
ballast. It is not first class.

. Then coming along you told us of the pavement in the city?
A. That is good.

Q. And getting down towards Brock’s Monument— A. After
you leave the Lower Arch Bridge, from ¢260”’—from then on down to
Brock’s Monument, as you call it, that track was laid on the grade when
it was laid.

Q. What does that mean as to ballast? A. When the earth
embankment on which the track is laid first—before it is lined up, the
surrounding soil is gathered up and dumped there; the ties are laid
across and the rails put on, They are lifted some space; possibly a

- stone put underneath them.

Q. Is that good railway construction ballast? A. No, but in that
soil it is fairly good construction because it is so well drained—so close
to the river bank that the drainage was always good, and it was gravelly
soil, not loamy—just gravelly, the same as an ordinary farmer would
have on his farm.

Q. Tt was not a crushed stone ballast? A. No, but after it was
laid it was not a bad idea either; there is a lot of shale, rocky stones,
all along the river bank there, and they just gathered it. We took a
sample of it there. It might have been a foot wide, or two feet wide,
and they threw it in between the ties, as years went by.

* * * * *

No. 14. Extract from Evidence of H. G. ACRES, Engineer. Called

on behalf of NJAGARA PARKS COMMISSION.
EXAMINED by MR. SLAGHT.

HENRY G. ACRES, Sworn. EXAMINED by MR. SLAGHT.

Q. First let me get some of your experience and qualifications. I
believe you were born in Ontario, and graduated in Applied Seience from
the University of Toronto in 1903, with the degree of Mechanical and
Electrical Engineer, taken later in 1916¢ A, Yes.
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Q. Your graduation in 1903 was in Arts perhaps? A. No, in
Science.

Q. In 1916— A. That was a University degree that corresponds
to Master of Arts.

Q. You took a further degree of Doctor of Science from the Uni-
versity in 1924¢? A. Yes.

Q. What was the character of that? Is that an honourary degree?
A. Yes.

Q. They conferred an honourary degree upon you in 1924 of Doctor
of Science. You are a member of the Engineering Institute of Canada$
A. Yes.

. A past vice-president T believe of that Institute. And a mem-
ber of the Institution of Civil Engineers of Great Britain? A. Yes.

Q. Is that correct? Do they call it Institution of Civil Engineers?
A. Yes.

Q. A member of the Amerlcan Society of Civil Engineers? A. Yes.

Q. Of the American Institute of Electrical Engineers? A. Yes.

Q. Of the Association of Professional Engineers of Ontario? A.
Yes.

Q. Of the Association of Professional Engineers of Alberta? A.
Yes.

Q. A member of the Engineers’ Club of Toronto? A. Yes.

Q. And of the Engineers’ Club of New York City? A. Yes.

Q. Have you specialized in hydraulic and hydro electric engineer-

ing? A. Yes.

Q. And I believe previous to 1924 you were Chief Hydraulic
Engineer of the Hydro Electric Power Commission of Ontario? A. Yes.

Q. Prior to 19247 A. Yes.

Q. On some occasions have you acted as technical adviser of general
counsel in references before the International Joint Commission with
regard to International Waterways? A. Yes, several times.

Q. As technical adviser to the Canadian General Counsel, T take it?
A. Yes.

Q. You have directed the design and construction of certain works.
Will vou give me some figures on transmission line, for instance?. A. 370
miles of high tension 110,000 volt line.

Q. Storage dams des1gned and built, have vou had experience with
those? A. Yes.

. How many? A. I have built twenty.

Q. Plants designed and built? A. That is power plants, twenty-
8iX.

Q. Can you give us an idea of the total installation of electrical
horse power which has been constructed under your supervision? A.
Something in excess of a million horse power.

Q. Roughly speaking, a capital investment, or money spent under
vour supervision, running into approximately what ¢ A. $140,000,000.
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Q. In the type of work we have been describing? A. Yes.

Q. I believe you now have in hand some projects in which the
estimated cost of this type of work is being considered for clients? A.
Yes, about $27,000,000 worth. They are, of course, not as imminent as
they were.

Q. But they have been under consideration for eclients to that

extent? A. Yes.

Q. Taking some of the positions you have occupied; 1903 to 1905
you were Assistant Mechanical Engineer of the Canadian Niagara
Power Company of Niagara Falls, Ontario, when they placed in oper-
ation the first 10,000 horse power turhines ever built here I believe? A.
Yes, I turned over the first 10,000 horse power turbine that was ever
constructed on New Year’s Day of 1905.

Q. That was on the Niagara River here for the Canadian Niagara
Power Company? A. Yes,

In 1905 were you Assistant Engineer to the Arizona Copper
Company, of Arizona, on tunnel, railway and mill construction? A. Yes.

Q. In 1906 and 1907 were vou Engineer in charge of general water
power survey of Ontario for the Hydro Blectric Power Commission?
A. Yes.

And in 1908 Engineer in charge of surveys and location of
110,000 volt lines for the Niagara Transmission System of the Hydro?
A. Yes. :

Q. In 1909 and 1910 were you Fngineer in charge of construction
of a mileage of 110,000 volt steel tower transmission line for the Hydro
Flectric Power Commission? A. Yes, about 253 miles.

_ Then from 1911 to 1924, I think perhaps I asked you, you were
Chief Hydraulic Engineer of the Hydro, and did you have supervision
over surveys, design and construction of their hydraulic and hydro-
electric development? A. Yes, at that time.

What did that include in 19242 T am not sure whether or not
that was the Chippawa Canal construction amongst others? A. It was
amongst others. That was more or less of a special piece of work, he-
cause it was undertaken during the War, and we bhad to build it as well
as do the engineering. None of the work was contracting.

Q. What did that run into approximately in expenditure? A. The
completed expenditure was about $80,000,000.

Q. And in connection with that work was there or not necessity,
and was there or not used from time to time an electric railway instal-
lation? A. Yes, quite an extensive one.

. To what mileage? I understand the Canal only has a mileage
of what? A. Altogether about twelve and a quarter miles.

Q. What mileage of electric railway was installed and then dis-
membered in connection with that work? A. There was upwards of

80 miles. ‘
Q. Of electric railway? A. Single track miles.
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Q. Those units being installed as an economical accessory to the
construction of the Canal, hauling material, etc.? A. Yes, there were
immense quantities to be handled, and they had to be handled very
quickly.

. In that electric railway mileage of some 80 odd miles that you
had to do with then, was that from time to time taken down? A. Por-
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tions of it were, yes. There was a considerable mileage of trunk line jg3s

mileage, double track, that we used continuously throughout the whole
course of the work. We had some of the busiest tracks in America
there at one time. We used to have upwards of between 400 and 500
train movements a day.

MR. Mason: Q. Did this track as completed, or as you used it,
compare with an ordinary radial track? A. Yes.

. Or was it of a more or less temporary nature? A. No, it was
a very solid track, Mr. Mason—had to be for the traffic that was put over
it. If I remember, it was on 80 pound rails, all rock-ballasted.

MR. SpagHT: Q. You would carry perhaps tonnages of freight
over that chiefly? A. Yes, immense quantities of freight, heavy earth
and rock. We handled 30 vard cars of excavated earth and rock, at the
rate at times of up to 200,000 cubic yards a month.

Q. That is down to 1924. Then from 1924 to date 1 understand
you have been practising as a Consulting Engineer? A. Yes.

Q. You left the Hydro as Chief Hydraulic Engineer in 1924, and
since consulting or advising as a Consulting Engineer with some of the
following clients: Hydro Electric Power Commission of Ontario? A.
Yes.

New Brunswick Electric Power Commission? A. Yes.
Reid Newfoundland Company? A. Yes.
Niagara Falls Suspension Bridge Company? A. Yes.
International Paper Company? A. Yes.
Provinee of Alberta? A. Yes.
City of Calgary? A. Yes.
. Sir William Arrol, Limited and Vickers, Limited, Iondon,
nd? A. Yes.
Saskatchewan Power Commission? A. Yes.
Ontario Paper Company? A. Yes.
City of Toronto? A. Yes. -
City of Niagara Falls, Ontario? A. Yes.
Dominion Construction Company? A. Yes.
Montreal Light, Heat and Power Consolidated? A. Yes.
. I understand you have been engaged in appraisals and valua-
tions of plant in connection with certain arbitrations and litigation. Is
that correct? A. Yes.
Valuation for taxation purposes of the plant of Dominion
Power & Transmission Company? A. Yes.

LOOOOOO
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Q. A limited portion of that perhaps for the Township of Gran-
tham? A. Yes.

Q. That would be a portion only of their works? A. Yes.

Q. Then a valuation for power contract purposes of the plant and
distribution system of the Simcoe Railwayv and Power Company? A.
That was up on the Severn River, serves Midland, Penetang and the
Georgian Bay municipalities.

Q. Valuation—yvou were engaged on one for sale purposes of the
plant and distribution system of the Lindsay Light, Heat and Power
Company? A. Yes.

Q. Had they a railway as part of their assets? A. No, that was
purely hydro-electric activity.

Q. 1 believe you were Arbitrator in the Calabogie Power Company
arbitration, between them and the Seaman Kent Company? A. Yes,

Q. Were you Technical Associate of Counsel in the Keewatin
Power Company vs. Lake of the Woods Milling Company appraisal of
the status and value of water rights there? A. Yes.

Q. That was a High Court matter? A. Yes.

Q. Were you Technical Associate of Counsel in the New Bruns-
wick Electric Power Commission vs. Inglewood Estates matter? A. Yes.

Q. That would be a High Court matter in New Brunswick? A.
Yes.

Then I believe in connection with a dispute between the Hvdro-
Electric Power Commission of Ontario and one B, K. Groat? A. Yes.

Q. That was a High Court matter in Ontario? A. Yes.

Q. And then in connection with alleged infringement of patents
in a matter between the I. P. Morris Company and S. Morgan Smith
Company? A. Yes.

. That was in the United States Circuit Court of Pennsylvania,
was it not? A. Yes.

Q. And in a matter between the Gatineau Power Company and
Cross, in connection with the value of undeveloped water power, and
the Public Service Commission of Quebec? A. Yes.

And in connection with the matter between W, I. Bishop Com-
pany and the Maclaren Power Company, in connection with eompensa-
tion for construction contract—that would be before the Superior Court
of Quebec? A. Yes.

Q. What most important piece of work, if you can distinguish,
have you had to do with in your experience in the last few years? A.
The Queenston-Chippawa development was the largest.

Q. For the Hydro Electric? A. Yes.

And that was brought into operation in 19229 A. Yes.

Q. What relative bearing had that as far as turbines and capacity
was concerned, having regard to world development of that type? A.
They were the largest turbines at that time that had ever been constructed.
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Insofar as I know, the Queenston plant is still the largest plant in the
world from the operating output standpoint.

Q. Those are some of your qualifications. 1 want to know whether
you have or not directed yourself to problems of design and building of
engineering structures, and their cost and operating economics? A. Yes,
I have not been concerned with anything else for the last thirty years.

Q. First let me get your local knowledge, if there is some, and
then your special investigation having to do with the Park and River
Division of the Railway that we are appraising here. You reside now
at Niagara-on-the-Lake, I believe? A. My real home is in Niagara
Falls, of course.

Q. Your real home is in Niagara Falls City, and you have a sum-
mer home at Niagara-on-the-Lake? A. Yes.

Q. Which you go to in the summer time? A. Yes.

Q. How long have you lived over here alongside of the International
Railway? A. I lived in Niagara Falls and used the International
Railway daily from August of 1903 until midsummer of 1905, when I
went to Arizona, during the time I was Assistant Mechanical Engineer
of the Canadian Niagara Power Company.

That would be from 1903 to 1905 you lived in Niagara Falls
and used this Railway as a patron daily? A. Yes, used it regularly for
transportation purposes to and from my work. And then practically
continuously from 1917 until the present time I have been a resident of
Niagara Falls. I came over here at the start of the construction work
on the Queenston development, and have been here ever since.

* * * ¥* #*

I do not think it is necessary. Just before I pass on, may I
ask you to tell us in connection with your experience in the construction
and operation of electric railways, which you detailed to us yesterday,
and in connection with your consulting practice where you were brought
in to appraise and value electric railways in connection with your con-
sulting practice as a hydraulic or hydro-electric engineer, using that
term not for the Hydro-Electric Power Commission of Ontario but in
your experience as an engineer dealing with hydrauliec matters and
electric matters, sometimes perhaps separately and sometimes in com-
bination, what factors, if any, have you had to investigate or look into?
A. In the course of my experience I have had to investigate all phases
of the art from the standpoint of technical study and conception, and the
economic relationship of power development to the various elements of
use, and naturally the question of the marketability of the produet, and
the conditions under which it can be sold.

Have interurban railways been purchasers of power? Have
thev been a factor in connection with the marketability of hydro-electric
developed power? A. Yes; they have been a very material factor.

And I think you told us that the Park and River Division is on

direct current? A. Yes,
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Q. Are all interurban electric railways in the Provinee of Ontario
on direct current, or are some on direct and some on alternating? A.
The type of power varies.

Q. That is, some interurban electric railways are operating on di-
rect current? A. Yes.

Q. We have an instance here? A. Yes.

Q. And some operate on an alternating current? A. Some do; I
could not name offhand any particular railways in Canada which are
operting with alternating current, but it is an existing means of operating
interurban railways. Street railways are in another class; I am not
aware of any street railways that operate on anything but direct current.

Q. By street rilways you mean urban or city railways? A. A
purely city transportation system.

Q. Have there not been any conditions which affected or influenced
interurban electric railways in Ontario during the past twelve years,
either for good or evil? A. The condition that overshadows all others
so far as the engineer’s viewpoint of the transportation system is con-
cerned was the discovery and development of the internal combustion
engine; that constituted the nucleus of the subsequent development of
what is now our modern system of mass transportation.

Q. How did that first manifest itself? A. The first manifestation
of that evolutionary process was the development of the automobile.
Public opinion and public imagination gave the automobile such an im-
portant place in our economy that the ancillary development to the de-
velopment of the automobile were these enormously extensive and ex-
pensive systems of paved and graded roads that are covering the whole
of North America. The next stage of development after the building
of the roads was the development of a system of mass transportation
which was really more analogous to the interurban electric transporta-
tion than even the automobile, and that was the motor bus; and, of
course, to a secondary extent, so far as our own problem is concerned,
the motor truck; and as I say, that whole sequence of evolutionary
development grows out of the discovery and adaptation to practical
use of the internal combustion engine. It is a process of evolutionary
development which is quite similar to that which took place when
Stephenson’s discovery led to the development of the steam engine which
displaced the stage coach. It is a case of history repeating itself.

Q. You told us yesterday, I think, of your acquaintance with this
road and your own user of it, and so on. You have given us the general
viewpoint of change of conditions. What effect, if any, has that had on
the International Railway in your opinion, I mean the division we are
appraising? A. It could have no effect other than the general one which
was dictated by the public, the new fashion in transportation and public
preference and public need. .

Q. In what way has that affected this railway, if at all# A. Tt has
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led to the extinguishment of this particular system as an up to date and
fashionable system of transportation, as it has done elsewhere.

Q. Have you seen Exhibit No. 68, which was put in by the Railway
Company under the witness Mr. Schmunk, the Accountant? A. Yes.

Q. Having the facts which are disclosed in that Railway Exhibit in
mind and your knowledge of the general conditions in Ontario which
vou have described, and what you have indicated as your view of the
effect on this railway we are valuing, what do you say? A. I will say
that the figures shown in this Exhibit offer an exemplification of the
ruling trend, in this last eolumn particularly,

. You are looking at Exhibit No. 68% A. Yes, the last column
of this Exhibit called ‘‘Profit and Loss’ I would say tells a very graphic
story, the life story of the interurban railway enterprise.

Q. How does that accord with your own experience of the general
trend of interurban railways in Ontario generally? A. It is entirely in
accord with it.

Q. You say it tells a story. What do you mean by that? A. I will
trv to explain; this column called Profit and Loss shows losses at the
baginning over a long period of years, the franchise period of forty years,
presumably. The initial years of operation show losses.

Q. They are shown in red? A. Yes; and the final years of oper-
ation show losses. There is a considerable period of intervening years
showing what purport to be profits. In my opinion there is a very vital
distinetion to be drawn between those red figures in the earlier vears and
the red figures in the later years. I think the evidence submitted at one
or other stage of the proceedings here by the Claimant was to the effect
that this project when it was conceived and initiated was one of the
original interurban railway enterprises in this country, and these figures
showing losses in the initial years of the enterprise are quite in line with
that idea; the important thing about them is that they show a downward
trend as the years pass. There comes a time when there is a sort of
oscillation from year to year between profit and loss until finally the
operations of the enterprise merge into a continuous period of profitable
operation. ,

You have been speaking of the earlier vears in the red? A.
Yes; those earlier years might be called the years of infaney and adolesc-
ence, if you like to put it way. The period when profits are shown re-
present the period when the enterprise has arrived at the full vigour
of manhood, you might say. Then you ecome to another period of oscilla-
tion around the years 1916 and 1917, where you have a loss one year and
a profit the next until finally you get the inverse process where profits
gradually merge or deteriorate into continuous loss.

Q. That appears to begin at the year 19207 A. Yes. Knowing
what I know about the interurban railway enterprise and having in mind
what I have said about the development of the internal combustion engine
which became a real factor in transportation at or about this particular
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year 1920 and 1921, to pursué the analogy we could liken this final period
of increasing loss to the affliction by the subject of an incurable functional
disease, call it cancer, something that nipped off what should have been
the period of its maximum vigour; that is really what this is.

Q. I see the patient had periods even during the last twelve years
where it got a little better, a fluctuating period? A. Yes; but the
general trend was downward.

Mgr. RoBERTSON : Have you had any particular experience in that sort
of thing? You never ran an interurban railway? A. I do not need to
run an interurban railway to know what the economic implications are.

I do not understand from what you have told us that you were
familiar with what was going on in interurban railways in 1892 and
along in that period. You have attempted to relate this all to one
cause. Suppose you throw into the pieture a few other elements: first
of all, that perhaps from 1892 to 1896 there was still a hangover of a
very long depression. Then throw into the brighter side of the picture
later, the Pan-American Exposition. Then you come on to a period when
you throw the War in, and then a later period when you throw the present
depression into it. Are there not a lot of elements that get into this
picture other than the simple single cause you put down? A. Were
not those things you have mentioned incidentals? Let me pursue my
analogy for a bit: 1901 was the year of the large profit, but the trend down
to that point was a trend of more or less orderly increase in prosperity.

Q. T am a little older than you are, I judge? A. I do not think
very much; I am a little older than I look.

Q. You graduated in 1903 and I was through a little before 1903.
All T am suggesting to you, Mr. Acres, is that you are trying to line
everything up with one theory and make it accord with one theory, and
I am suggesting to vou that there is a lot more to it than that? A.
Hardly that; I am showing how a preponderating and outstanding event
can account for what these figures show.

Q. If you keep that within limits it is all right? A. It is a matter
of vour own judgment whether I keep within limits or not; T have been
trying to interpret this column of figures as I see it in the light of what
I know. °

Mg. SragHT: Q. It has been suggested by Mr. Robertson, one of
our Arbitrators, that the recent depression, for instance, may be an im-
portant factor. What do you say, aside altogether from the recent
depression, as to whether or not the conditions which you outlined, namely
the motor car, and so on, have so affected interurban railways as to enable
us to say what would have happened to them regardless of the depres-
sion? A. What I have to say about that is not subject to the inhibition
which Mr. Robertson mentioned in connection with the earlier figures
which took place when I was possibly in short skirts, because as to these
Jatter figures—

Q. That is the last twelve vears? A. Yes—I know what the
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agencies I have mentioned and their ancillary reactions have meant in
connection with mass transportation, and how the public preference and
public need has swung from one method of transportation to another.
That I know from personal knowledge, and the depression was not the
governing factor in that swing.

Q. Has that problem or not been a factor to which you have had to
give personal thought and consideration in connection with what you told
us part of your consulting duties were, namely, to have regard to avail-
able markets for electric power? A. Oh, yes, of course.

Q. Just a word as to your opinion with regard to the prognosis or
future of interurban electric railways including this one, as to whether
or not in your opinion there is any reasonable expectation that their con-
ditions will improve so far as being operated successfully or otherwise
are concerned? A. Well, unless there is what you might call a psychical
reversal of trend in public opinion and public preference and public need,
which moves the masses to revert once more, and forsake automobiles and
motor busses and go back to electric railway cars, there is obviously no
future in store for interurban railways; and I cannot conceive that such
a psychical change would be possible in view of the supporting develop-
ment that has taken place relative to this new type of transportation,
more particularly our huge expenditure on public roads and public fa-
cilities for travel actuated by the internal combustion engine; people can-
not afford to revert to a previous type of transportation which would
have the effect of vitiating their investment in public highways. That
would be my opinion.

. You cannot conceive of the future bearing any promise in that
regard? A. No.

* * * * *

MR. SLaGgHT: Q. Then, Mr. Acres, will you express yourself to the
Board as to the rentability or saleability of the assets comprising this
railroad in 1932 to a purchaser who might expect to operate it as a
railway? A. Well, if I were offered the railway for nothing on condition
that T would have to continue to operate it, I certainly would not
accept it.

Q. That is not quite answering my question, because you are an
engineer and not in the railway business; but from the fair value stand-
point of the railway at that time as a saleable entity to he operated, what
is your opinion? A. I will put it another way, that if I were called upon
to advise a client as to the advisability of taking possession of that rail-
way by some means or other, I would be forced to tell him that if it was
given to him with the eondition attached to it that he had to continue to
operate it I could not advise him to take delivery of it.

Q.- Would that apply either to a delivery under a purchase basis or
a rental basis? A. The greater contains the less. If T could not advise
him to take it for nothing I could not advise him to buy it or rent it;
always with the understanding that the property is not being taken over
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to sell as scrap but to be taken over to operate the co-related physical
elements of the enterprise as a transportation system.

Q. I want to get an expression from you as to the fair value of
these assets as a whole, or the fair value of these assets turned over as
they were to the Parks Commission in 1932, You have negatived their
value for the purpose of operating as a railroad. What other fair value,
if any, is there in the assets which were turned over? A. There are only
two other possible elements of value: the element of value associated
with the enterprise as a whole and the possibility of it being used for
some other purpose, and the value of the constituent elements not in
place but moved somewhere else; and the only place they could be moved
somewhere else feasibly is on the basis of scrap commodity. In other
words if the enterprise has arrived at such a stage that it is not con-
vertible by any other means than by the dismantling of it, the dismantling
of it results in the appraisal of the resultant quantities as scrap.

Q. Is there any other method of disposal of it that is feasible or
was feasible in 1932, in your opinion, than the dismantling of it? A.
No, T do not think there was. Of course, that leaves out of consideration
the lands. I am not talking about the lands because the lands cannot be
moved and cannot be sold as serap. If they are to be sold they are to be
sold as realty. They have some realty value, I presume.

* * * * *

CROSS-EXAMINED BY MR. McCARTHY:

MR. McCarTHY: Without waiving my objection there are one or
two questions I want to ask Mr. Acres, having relation to what my friend
has just been asking.

Q. Is there any reason why the direct current could not be used in
connection with elevators, inclined railways? A. No, none whatever.

Q. So there are two inclined railways we know of, and the Table
Rock elevator, for which the direct current would be suitable? A. I
presume so.

MR. SLAGHT: One is burned down.

MRr. McCarTtHY: The shed has been burned down.

Mg. SragHT: No, the whole thing.

THE CHAIRMAN: That was after it was taken over.

MR. McCarTHY: Quite so. If my friend wants to burn his ma-
chinery I am not affected by it any more than if he wants to operate it.

Q. I am also told, Mr. Acres, that the Canadian National Railways
buy alternating current and convert it to direct current for the operation
of their railways? A. I think probably they do. .

Is there any reason why the power could not be sold to the
Canadian National Railways for the operation of their railways? A.
No reason, as far as I know.

Q. TIs there any reason why it could not be sold to Niagara Falls,
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New York, across the bridge? A. Has it been previously ?

Q. Is there any reason why it should not be? A. I can answer
that in the same way: It is physically possible.
. I am only asking physiecal questions. You are only an electrician
after all. You are not a lawyer yet. So there are apparently plenty
of places or sources to which this direct current could be applied in and
about the Park and across the bridge? A. There are presumptive pos-
sibilities from the strictly physical sense, as I have said before.

* * * * *

No. 15. Extract from Evidence of A. E. K. BUNNELL, Engineer.
Called on behalf of NTAGARA PARKS COMMISSION.

EXAMINED by MR. SLAGHT.
ARTHUR E. K. BUNNELL, Sworn. EXAMINED by MR. SLAGHT:

Q. First let us ascertain some of your qualifications and your ex-
perience. I understand you graduated from Toronto University with
a degree in 19079 A. Yes, with the degree of B.A.Sc. from the Uni-
versity of Toronto in Civil Engineering.

Q. Just prior to that, in the summer of 1906, did you have some
practical experience in setting lines and grade stakes for maintenance
lift on the Grand Trunk Railway, Montreal, Portland Division? A.
Yes; I spent that summer with the Grand Trunk Railway.

Did you work out on the line? A. Yes, working out on the
line all the time.
. Then following your graduation in 1907 you became Assistant
Engineer of the City of Brantford, I believe? A. Yes.

Q. And there your work was largely in connection with waterworks
and sewer construction? A. There were no waterworks; there were
sewer and sidewalk works; the waterworks was under a scparate Com-
mission with which the City Engineer had nothing to do.

Q. From the fall of 1907 until the spring of 1909 I believe you were
Assistant Engineer on Maintenance of Way, Middle Division, of the
Grand Trunk Railway under Mr. E. I.. Cousins? A. Yes, that is right.

Q. And in that connection did you have to do with the designing
and laying out of track, drains, sidings and grade separation crossings?
A. Yes, grade sepearated crossings; that meant the design of subways,
overhead bridges, sometimes singly and sometimes in groups.

. And I understand you spent the summer of 1909 in Northern
Ontario prospecting? A. Yes.
Did you have anything to with the use of dynamite there? A.
Yes, I learned to handle dynamite there.

Q. In the fall of 1909 and the spring of 1910 after you returned
you were Assistant Engineer on the Middle Division of the Grand Trunk
Railway? A. Yes. I stayed there all that winter and the early spring.

Q.  And in 1910 from the spring to the end of the year I believe
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you were Resident Engineer for the firm of Chipman and Power, first
at Estevan and then at Weyburn, Saskatchewan? A. Yes.

Q. What type of work were you engaged on there? A. On sewer
and water main construction and the construction of a water pump house,
sewage disposal plant, both equipment and buildings, the electric light
stations, building only; I think that is about all.

Q. That is sufficient detail. In January, 1911, T believe you re-
turned to Toronto as prinecipal Assistant Engineer of the Railways and
Bridges Division of the Works Department of the City of Toronto, again
under Mr. E. L. Cousins? A. I did.

Q. And in that capacity did you have charge of any work there?
A. I was in direct charge of the Railway Section of the Railways and
Bridges, and as such I had direct charge of the design and subsequent
construction of the civic car lines. I had charge of the city’s interest
in connection with the Grand Trunk grade separation through Parkdale,
and T also bad charge of the City’s studies in connection with grade
separation plans through West Toronto, and the C.P.R. through North
Toronto. In fact, when Mr. Cousins left the department I presented the
City’s plans of grade separation for the C.P.R. through North Toronto
to the Dominion Board of Railway Commissioners.

* * * . *® *

Q. I believe from the fall of 1912 down to the spring of 1914 you
were with the Lake Erie and Northern Railway? A. I was, yes.

. That railway runs from Port Dover through Simcoe and Brant-
ford to Galt? A. Yes.

Q. That is an interurban railroad that traverses that area? A. Yes.

Q. What is the mileage from Galt to Port Dover? A. 50 odd
miles. :
. What did you have to do with the construction of that road from
1912 to 1914% A. 1 was one of two engineers who handled the work.
Mr. Kellett was the promoter and Chief Engineer of the railway. I was
one of two Assistant Engineers in charge of the location from Brantford
to Galt, afterwards taking over the whole location; only part of the time
were there two of us.

. Yes? A. Afterwards I took over the whole location from
Brantford to (Galt, and then I was in charge of construction from Brant-
ford to a point north of Paris, in all about ten miles.

Q. You had charge of the location you have mentioned, and then
charge of construction? A. Yes; it was a fairly heavy piece of con-
struction, between 300,000 and 400,000 cubic yards of grading in ten
miles.

How was that road constructed? Did you have a general con-
tract for the whole business, or did you let a general contractor buy your
power house equipment, and that sort of thing? A. T cannot speak as
to the power house equipment because I left the road before that was
purchased or installed; but in so far as the whole construction itself was
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concerned Mr, Kellett functioned not only as Chief Engineer, but as
Manager of Construction. The rails and ties and ballast pits were pur-
chased by the railway, and a general contractor was awarded by tender
the contract for the grading, the track laying and the ballasting. He
was also awarded by tender the concrete substructures for the bridges,
but the superstructure, which was mostly in the form of steel spans, was
let directly to one of the bridge companies; there may have been one or
more, I am not sure.

Q. Let by the railway? A. Yes; and those superstructures were
installed complete by the bridge company.

Who purchased the rails and ties? A. The Railway Company.

And the ballast? A. The Railway Company purchased the
ballast pits and turned over the pits to the contractor to take out the
ballast and remove it to the required points on the line.

Q. From 1914 to 1918 I believe you were with the Imperial Muni-
tions Board of Ontario on work connected with munitions? A. Yes.
In 1915 I was with the Civic Transportation Committee on the first
studies that were made preparatory to the taking over of the Toronto
Railway System.

You were with the City on studies preparatory to the City tak-
ing over the T.T.C.? A. Yes; it is what was known as the Civic Trans-
portation Committee. The Provincial Hydro was represented, the City
was represented, and the Toronto Hydro-Electric System was repre-
sented on the Committee.

Q. Were you the representative of the City? A. No; we had an
organization under the direct charge of Mr. Lazenby, and I was Assist-
ant Engineer under Mr. Liazenby in charge of the preparation of all the
estimates.

Q. From 1919 to 1923 I believe you practised as a Consulting En-
gineer? A. Yes.

Q. During that time T want to ascertain whether you had some
railway work. Did you have a task there with the Hydro-Electric Com-
mission? A. Yes; I was working part time with the Hydro-Electric
Power Commission throughout the Sutherland investigation into Hyvdro
Radials.

Q. That was the investigation the late Mr. Justice Sutherland con-
ducted in connection with the proposal to expand the radial system in
Ontario? A. Yes; the Hydro had a scheme to blanket Ontario with
Hydro radials, and the Drury Government decided it was a rather large
bite to chew, and they ordered an investigation.

That was the Sutherland investigation? A. Yes.

. Mr. Robertson knows all about that investigation. Was that
Sir Adam Beck’s scheme? A. Yes.

Q. His scheme of putting a network of radial lines throughout the
province? A. Yes.

Q. I do not know what the Sutherland Report was, but the Drury
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Government ultimately decided not to go on with that general scheme, did
they not? A. They did, and the scheme has not been gone on with.

Q. In 1923 did you do some special work for Mr. Couzens and Mr.
Harvey including the valuation of the lines of the Toronto Suburban
Electric Railway? A. While I was with the Hydro I was also working
with the T.T.C. and doing special work for Mr. Couzens.

Q. Not Mr. E. L. Cousins? A. No, Mr. H. H. Couzens. I was in
charge of the estimates that were prepared by the company with respeet to
the new construction and rehabilitation of the Toronto Railway System
prior to the Commission actually taking over. When the T.T.C. actually
took over the Toronto Railway Mr. H. H. Couzens continued as General
Manager, Mr. Harvey was brought from the Civic Car Lines and made
Assistant Manager, and I continued to do special work of various kinds
for Mr. Couzens and Mr. Harvey, in which was included as you men-
tioned a moment ago, the valuation of the Toronto Suburban Railway.

. What about the Metropolitan Railway? Did you have anything
to do with that? A. Not in a valuation sense, but I made some traffic
studies in connection with the Metropolitan Railway, which was a radial
that ran on Yonge Street north to Jackson’s Point.

Q. For whom did you make those traffic studies? A. Directly for
Mr. Couzens.

Q. From 1924 down to date you have been in partnership with Mr.
Norman D. Wilson? A. Yes.

Q. As Consulting Engineers? A. Yes.

Q. Have you personally had to do with street railway traffic reports
and have you investigated electric railways for the purpose of making
such reports in different places in Ontario? A. Yes.

Q. Give me a list of those shortly? A. I made a complete report
on the Brantford Street Railway System, which included a radial line to
Paris, and I reported on certain phases of the radial that was part of
the svstem that ran from Paris to (falt.

Q. What happened to the Pariz to Galt road? A. It was shut
down when the Lake Erie and Northern was opened, as it more or less
paralleled what was known as the (irand Valley road from Brantford to
Galt.

Q. And London? A. T think the next work I had was assisting
Mr. H. L. Cummings in St. Catharines with respect to the franchise ar-
rangements being entered into between the Canadian National Railways
and the City of St. Catharines. Mr. Cummings was acting for the King-
stone firm for the City of St. Catharines. ,

Q. In London did you have anything to do? A. Yes. I personally
made a report on the street railway system, in London, Ontario, in all
its phases. .
‘Who was vour client? A. I reported to a special committee
appointed by the City Council. Sir Adam Beck was the Chairman, and
the late Mr. Pocock was—
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Q. We need not have the personnel. Sir Adam Beck was Chair-
man, and it was a work you did and a report you made to the City of
London under Sir Adam Beck’s Chairmanship? A. Yes.

. What about the Public Utilities Commission of Manitoba? A.
In the fall of 1930 I was engaged and in the spring of 1931 1 completed
a report to the Public Utilities Commission of Manitoba with respect to
the traction utility of the Winnipeg Electric Railway Company. The
Company made an application for an increase in fares, and it embraced
an analysis of the whole railway operation.

Q. In coopertion with Mr. Wilson I think you had something to do
with the electric railway at Windsor and adjacent municipalities. When
and what was that? A. In 1932 at the request of the municipalities
we prepared a report on the operation finances of the Windsor, Sandwich
and Ambherstburg Railway, which is the railway which handles the local
transportation in Windsor and adjacent municipalities.

Q. Isthat an interurban road? A. In the main, no; it is an urban
road; but it had a connection to Amherstburg and another one to
Tecumseh.

Q. You were asked by the Parks Commission in the spring of 1932
to make an investigation and report to the Niagara Parks Commission,
I believe, prior to their taking over in September, 1932, after they had
received notice from the International Railway Company? A. Yes,
that was in the late fall of 1930-1931, when we were so commissioned, and
we reported in May, 1932.

Did you, prior to reporting, make an investigation of the physi-
cal conditions and other conditions connected with this road that we are
now appraising? A. Yes, sufficient for the purposes of the report.

Q. Did Mr. Wilson cooperate in that investigation? A. He did.

Q. And you made a report when? A. Some time in May, 1932.

Q. And I believe in 1927 and 1928 you had some task for the City
of Hamilton. What was that? A. I am not sure which yvear it was,
but it was in 1927 or 1928. I was retained by the City of Hamilton to
assist Mr. R. S. Robertson in the presentation of the City’s case in op-
position to an application by the Hamilton Street Railway to raise its
fares in Hamilton.

* * %* * %*

MR. SLAGHT: Q. From your experience with electric railways and
the various studies and consulting tasks and practical tasks which you
have recited in your experience, what do you say as to whether during
the past twelve years conditions generally as to interurban electric
railways have altered or have not? A. Yes, they have entirely altered
for the worse. I explain that in this way, that riding on interurban elec-
tric railways or any railway is made up of two types; one, necessity
riding, and the otber might be termed recreational, social or pleasure
riding. The latter type of riding, the social or recreational riding has
been declining at a precipitous rate. The decline in necessity riding has
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been very much less. So a railway that depends for its business on recre-
ational or pleasure riding has suffered and lost a much greater proportion
of its traffic than one that would depend more largely on necessity riding.

. What conditions have contributed to that? A. Well, the con-
ditions that have contributed to that are the development of personal
transportation through the automobile, and with the automobile came
the demnand then for good roads, and people have changed their pleasure
habits entirely as a result of the automobile. Before the automobile came
their movements for recreational purposes were restricted, and were
largely restricted to forms of mass transportation, and they are no longer
so restricted.

Q. In addition to the good roads and the automobile, which I take
to mean the private motor car, are there any other factors that have
eontributed to the downfall of the electric railway? A. It has been the
ability of the man on the street to buy a motor car. Whether he has had
the money in his pocket or not he has been able to persuade someone to
sell him a car—he has found a car. I know when I was—

I do not know that we can go into personal instances. You have
spoken of the private motor car and the good roads. Is there any other
element than that which has contributed? A. Yes, the development of
bus transportation has had a bearing on it.

Do you know anything vourself? Have you made a user of
this railroad, the Park & River Division we are appraising? What has
been vour personal experience, if any, with that? A. I know as a
youngster it was an annual affair almost to come to Niagara Falls on a
pienie.

MR. McCarTHY: T don’t think we want his personal experience. We
have all had them.

MR. SLAGHT: Q. Where did you reside at the time to which you
last referred? A. I lived in Brantford.

. Did you say you had to do with the study, or something to do
with the Metropolitan Railroad that ran from Toronto up to Jackson’s
Point? A. I had.

What has become of that? A. It has been dismantled and torn
up from Richmond Hill north to Jackson’s Point due entirely to lack
of carry.

Q. Based on your experience and the conditions you have been
mentioning to us, what do you say as to whether or not in the future,
from 1932, looking at the date we are visualizing, down to the present
time of 1935, and from 1935 on in the future—what do you say as to
whether or not the interurban electric railroad, or railroad of the type
we are appraising here, bas a future promise of getting better or not
in the matter of the business it might expect to carry? A. T cannot con-
ceive that it can. At the time interurban railways were built and con-
structed. they were the best vehicle of their time. The electric street car
at that time was the best vehicle that had been conceived for handling
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large bodies of people. Since that we have had the automobile come along,
and in the form of the bus. For the volume of business that is left to
a mass transportation unit or agency after the bulk of the people are
taken care of by private automobile, the bus is a much cheaper vehicle
with which to handle it.

Q. Looking at September, 1932, what do you say as to whether or
not at that time the Railway we are valuing here would have a sale value
or a rental value from the point of view of its being continued to be
operated as a railway or transportation system?

Mg. McCarTHY: That, of course, will be subject to my objection.

MR. SragHT: Yes, the same objection you took.

THE CHAIRMAN: Yes.

MR. SvagHT: Q. What do you say? A. I cannot conceive, based
on the figures of losses as presented to this Board by Mr. Schmunk in
Exhibit 68, and based on my own examination of the Railway from the
standpoint of the present, speaking of 1932, and the future—I cannot
conceive of its being operable either on an ownership basis or under a
rental basis.

Q. Why not operable? You
A. No, I mean financially.

Q. What do you mean by, you cannot conceive of it being finan-
cially operable? Tell us exactly what you mean by that? A. It would
not make any money or would not break even. It would be a sink hole
for dollars. No organization can continue to put more money into an
operation than it takes out, and this property certainly could not be
sustained indefinitely on the takings. It had to give a certain minimum
of service if it was going to run at all.

Q. Have you examined Exhibit 68 filed by Mr. Schmunk? A. To
some extent.

Q. And you referred to that I think a minute ago. I do not know
whether you gave the number of it, but you said the figures put in by
Mr. Schmunk? A. It is Exhibit 68.

Q. In order to ascertain the fair value of the assets which we have
been appraising here, and which go to make up the railway as a whole,
as of 1932, what do you say would be a basis for that fair value, if any,
having negatived the hope of selling it or renting it? A. It would be
merely the dollars that could be taken out of it as salvage.

Q. In what way? A. By breaking the railway up into its component
parts and obtaining the best prices available for those components.

* * »* * *

do not mean physically non-operable?

Q. Would there in that paving item as put forward on pages 34
and 35, assuming the valuation basis was adopted on a dismantling or
salvage or secrap value—would there be any market value or method of
disposal of that pavement to produce any net returns to anybody? A.
No, there would not, Mr. Slaght. It is perhaps something I should not
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speak of as an engineer, but I cannot conceive how the ownership of that
pavement, in any event, would be in the Park.

Q. I do not know whether it is in the Park or not. I am not asking
vou to pass on that point. Can you sell a piece of laid pavement to any-
body as scrap, or has it a salvage value if you are dismantling or break-
ing up assets? A. None whatsoever.

* * * %* *

Mg. SLagHT: Q. You have told us the traffic count data that you
had before you in making your recommendations. You were asked by my
friend something regarding the cost of operation between a bus and a
street car, and I do not think you completed your explanation to him.
Will you give me your explanation of that? A. In the cost of operation
of any vehicle—to follow the answer through to completion—consider-
ation must be given to the matter of the capital invested or the interest
on the investment. In addition to such day to day out of pocket expenses
such as wages, repairs of equipment, power in the case of the street car,
and gasoline or oil in the case of the bus, you are faced with definite
fixed charges in connection with the investment in the equipment. Now,
to put an electric street car on a railway—we will take this railway in
particular: this railway had an investment on the basis of production
new before the rolling stock and before the car barn of over $2,000,000.
Now, to put a bus on the road to give the same type of service is only a
question of the capital invested in the actual vehicles. On that basis
and with the traffic to be handled it is only as you get to a very high
density of traffic where street cars or the units operate at very close
headways, headways of a closeness that did not exist here, that the
street car is then a cheaper vehicle to operate than the bus. Here we
had through the slack months of the year a condition when the cars, for
instance, on the Belt Line service operated either once an hour or every
two hours.

Q. 1 suppose the capital expenditure is running against the en-
terprise during the winter months the same as it does while they are
carrving loads in the summer months? A. Yes, it is running all the
time.
" Q. I think that clears that up, Mr. Bunnell? A. There is a furth-
er item of depreciation that has a bearing on the cost of operation, and
Mr. McCarthy asked me something about it.

Q. Just complete your statement on that? A. As having a bearing
on the cost of operation, Mr. MecCarthy asked me vesterday in connec-
tion with Mr. Schmunk’s Exhibit 68 whether I had given consideration
to the fact that the depreciation charges were simply a book figure, and
I said Yes; but whether they are a book figure or not, they have to be
provided for because depreciation in equipment is as sure as death, and
you have to provide for it unless you are going to see your capital
melt away. Further than that, you have to provide for obsolescence
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of Transportation: we all know, although we are not old enough to go
so far back, that we had the ox cart and the stage coach, and then we
came to the horse railway and then we came to the electric railway and
then we came to the bus. Now, if the capital that was invested in those
enterprises in their time is to be kept intact, then out of the earnings
of those railways there had to be set aside sufficient money in the form
of obsolescence to enable them to convert themselves from what they
were, for instance, the horse car into the electric railway, else the capital
is entirely dissipated.
#* * * * *

No. 16. Extract from Evidence of JOHN H. JACKSON, Superin-
tendent of NIAGARA FALLS PARK. Called on behalf of NTAGARA
PARKS COMMISSION.

Mg. SLagHT: Q. Then, Mr. Jackson, just let us have the advertise-
ments that you have inserted, and tell us the result. I believe twelve
newspapers were used? A. An advertisement was inserted in twelve
newspapers and the paid accounts for those advertisements are handed
to you now.

Q. And attached to some of them, or perhaps to all of them, is a
clipping of the advertisement inserted, and the bills show the number
of insertions and the receipted account for the insertions in each case?
A. Yes.

MRg. SLagHT: I put in twelve vouchers and paid aceounts for the
insertions of the advertisement in these various papers as Exhibit No.
279. .
EXHIBIT No. 279: Twelve paid vouchers for advertisement, pro-
duced by Respondent’s witness J. H. Jackson.

MR. McCarTHY: How are we concerned with what it cost the Parks
Commission ¥

MR. SpagHT: 1 am not asking the Board to look at the amounts
paid as having any bearing, but this is the most convenient method of
showing that these advertisements were inserted.

MR. McCarTHY: I suggest that we are not interested whether they
were paid for or not.

MR. SLagHT: The proof of insertion and of payment are linked to-
gether, but T am asking the Board to give no heed to the amount paid for
their insertion.

MR. McCaRTHY: We do not know what the advertisement contained.

Mg. SpagHT: I am just going to enlighten you:—

“The Niagara Parks Commission
‘“(Ontario, Canada)
“QOperation of Electric Railway.

“The Niagara Parks Commission of Ontario, Canada, an-
“pounces that the agreement with the International Railway Com-
‘“pany for the operation of the electric railway extending eleven
¢“‘miles along the Canadian side of the Niagara River from the
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‘““Village of Chippawa to the Village of Queenston terminates on
‘“August 31st next, and that the Commission is willing to enter into
‘“the negotiations for the operation of the railway thereafter on
‘‘reasonable terms, either by purchase or lease.

“Communications should be addressed and delivered to the
‘‘undersigned on or before August 15th, 1932.

(Sgd.) ‘““John H. Jackson,
General Manager,
The Niagara Parks Commission.
““Niagara Falls, Ont., Canada,
““May 2nd, 1932.

MRg. McCarTHY: What is the date of the insertion?

Mgz. SLAGHT: The insertions by the Montreal Financial Times Pub-
lishing Company, Limited were on May 13, 20 and 27, 1932.

Q. Were the others about the same time? A. Yes.

Q. The data all appears here. I notice some in June, 1932¢
depended upon the date of publication of the particular paper.

Q. The Montreal Financial Times, F. H. Leslie. What is that
sheet I now show you? A. The Review.

Q. And the Courier Express. These are all in May. The McLean
They publish the Financial Post. In
each instance the advertisement is attached. The Globe Printing Com-
pany of Toronto, the Mail & Empire Publishing Company of Toronto.
This advertisement is in June, another MclLean insertion. What is this
one? A. The Financial Post.

Q. Is that a duplicate? Here is the Mcl.ean Publishing Company
in May? A. This is an additional insertion.

Q. May 14, 21 and 28? A. This is June.

Q. There are two publications in the Post of certain items in May
and again i<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>